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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
This report contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled “Description of Business,” “Risk

Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements expressed
or implied by the forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the factors described in the section captioned “Risk Factors” below.
In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,”
“predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “would,” and similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with
respect to future events and are based on assumptions and subject to risks and uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements include, among other things, statements relating to:

 
• our ability to secure sufficient funding and alternative source of funding to support our current and proposed operations;
• our anticipated growth strategies and our ability to manage the expansion of our business operations effectively;
• our ability to maintain or increase our market share in the competitive markets in which we do business;
• our ability to keep up with rapidly changing technologies and evolving industry standards, including our ability to achieve technological advances;
• our dependence on the growth in demand for our products;
• our ability to diversify our product offerings and capture new market opportunities;
• our ability to source our needs for skilled labor, machinery, parts, and raw materials economically; and
• the loss of key members of our senior management.
 

Also, forward-looking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this report. You should read this report and the documents that we
reference and file as exhibits to this report completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect. Except as
required by law, we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements publicly, or to update the reasons actual results could differ materially from those
anticipated in any forward-looking statements, even if new information becomes available in the future.
 
Use of Certain Defined Terms

 
Except where the context otherwise requires and for the purposes of this report only:

 
• the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to the combined business of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Flux Power,

Inc. (“Flux Power”), a California corporation;
• “Exchange Act” refers the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
• “SEC” refers to the Securities and Exchange Commission; and
• “Securities Act” refers to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

 

 



 

 
 PART I

 
 ITEM 1 — BUSINESS
 
Overview
 

We design, develop and sell rechargeable advanced energy storage systems. We have developed an innovative high power battery cell management system (“BMS”)
and have structured our business around this core technology. Our proprietary BMS provides three critical functions to our battery systems:
 

• Cell Balancing: This is performed by adjusting the capacity of each cell in a storage system according to temperature, voltage, and internal impedance metrics. This cell
balancing management assures longevity of the overall system.

 
• Monitoring: This is performed by way of a physical connection to individual cells for monitoring voltage and performing calculations from basic metrics to determine

remaining capacity and internal impedance. This monitoring assures accurate measurements to best manage the system and assure longevity.
 
• Error Reporting: This is performed by analyzing data from system monitoring and making decisions on whether the system is operating out of normal specifications.

This error reporting is crucial to system management as it ensures ancillary devices are not damaging the storage system and will give the operator an opportunity to take
corrective action to maintain long overall system life.

 
Using our proprietary BMS technology, we are able to offer completely integrated energy storage solutions or custom modular standalone systems to our clients. In

addition, we have also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that accompany and enhance the abilities of our core BMS products to meet the needs of
the growing advanced energy storage market.
 
Current Business Strategy
 

We are currently primarily focusing on the lift equipment with dealers/distributors, and secondarily, with other related industrial equipment, portable power, and
stationary grid applications. We are working with various lift equipment original equipment manufacturers (OEMs), and their dealers and battery distributors to bring our
advanced energy storage systems to the lift equipment market. This process has included securing “technical approval” by the OEMs for compatibility with their equipment and
then developing a sales network utilizing existing battery distributors and equipment dealers.

 
We are leveraging from our prior experience of developing and shipping over 14 megawatts of battery packs in a variety of applications ranging from electrical

vehicles, electric boats, and various industry specific applications. The current process of working with the lift equipment sector has included securing “technical approval” by
the OEMs for compatibility with their equipment and then developing a sales network utilizing existing battery distributors and equipment dealers. Our product development has
included pilot programs and trials with national account end users and industrial equipment manufacturers. We formally launched our products to the lift equipment industry in
January 2014; this launch typically includes shipping demonstration units to equipment dealers and battery distributors who invite their customers to trial the battery packs.
These trial periods have a duration ranging from two weeks to several months.

 
In addition, we are developing advanced energy storage systems for other related industrial equipment, portable power, and stationary grid applications ranging from

24 volt to 48 volt applications. One of these larger applications included shipment at year end to support a 48 volt, 900 amp hour pack for robotic mining equipment in South
America. We have also developed portable 24 volt battery packs for trial by the US military, which is currently in trial.

 
In summary, the Company has also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that utilizes our core BMS technology. Sales during the twelve

months ended June 30, 2014 were primarily to customers located throughout the United States.
 
History

We were incorporated in Nevada in 1998 under the name Olerama, Inc. Since our incorporation, there have been several name changes, including the change in
January 2010 where we changed our name to Lone Pine Holdings, Inc. and in May 2012, in connection with the reverse acquisition, we changed our name from Lone Pine
Holdings, Inc. to our current name, Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“Flux”).
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We operate our business through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Flux Power, Inc. (“Flux Power”). Flux Power was incorporated in October 2009 to exploit the lithium

battery solution market for small electric vehicles and began shipping prototype product in the second quarter of 2010 while continuing to develop its intellectual property
portfolio.

 
Reverse Acquisition of Flux Power Inc.

 
On June 14, 2012, we completed the acquisition of Flux Power (the “Reverse Acquisition”) pursuant to a Securities Exchange Agreement dated May 18, 2012

(“Exchange Agreement”) by and among Flux Power, and its shareholders, Mr. Christopher (“Chris”) Anthony, Esenjay Investments, LLC, and Mr. James Gevarges
(collectively the “Flux Power Shareholders”). In connection with the Reverse Acquisition, we purchased 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of Flux
Power from the Flux Power Shareholders in exchange for 37,714,514 newly issued shares our common stock (“Exchange Shares”) based on an exchange ratio of 2.9547039
(“Share Exchange Ratio”). As a result of the Reverse Acquisition, the Flux Power Shareholders collectively owned approximately 91% of the issued and outstanding shares of
our common stock, and Flux Power became our wholly-owned operating subsidiary.

 
The Reverse Acquisition has been reflected as a reverse merger where Flux was the surviving legal entity after the merger. Flux Power remained the accounting

acquirer. The merger has been accounted for as a recapitalization as of the earliest period presented. Accordingly, the historical condensed consolidated financial statements
represented are those of Flux Power.

 
Our principal executive office is located at 985 Poinsettia Avenue, Suite A, Vista, CA 92081. The telephone number at our principal executive office is (877) 505-

3589 (FLUX).
 
DESCRIPTION OF OUR BUSINESS
 
Our Business
 

We are in the business of energy storage and battery management. In October 2009, we started to develop technologies for the advanced energy storage market and
began shipping prototype product in the second quarter of 2010 while continuing to develop our intellectual property portfolio. In 2011, we began shipping Federal Motor
Vehicle Safety Standards validated products and then started shipping ancillary products to enhance our overall product line. Focusing on cell management of large format
lithium cells, our technology dramatically extends the battery system life, lowering the overall cost of ownership to a level which makes lithium competitive with lead-acid in
numerous applications. We have spent over four years developing lithium battery energy storage technology, including shipping over 14 megawatts of power in a variety of
applications ranging from electrical vehicles to industrial equipment applications.
 

We design, develop, and sell rechargeable advanced energy storage systems. We have developed an innovative high power battery cell management system (“BMS”)
and have structured our business around this core technology. Our proprietary BMS provides three critical functions to our battery systems:

 
· Cell Balancing: This is performed by continuously adjusting the capacity of each cell in a storage system according to temperature, voltage, and internal

impedance metrics. This management assures longevity of the overall system.
 
· Monitoring: This is performed through temperature probes, a physical connection to individual cells for voltage and calculations from basic metrics to

determine remaining capacity and internal impedance. This monitoring assures accurate measurements to best manage the system and assure longevity.
  
· Error reporting: This is performed by analyzing data from monitoring each individual cell and making decisions on whether the individual cell or the system

is operating out of normal specifications. This error reporting is crucial to system management as it ensures ancillary devices are not damaging your storage
system and will give the operator an opportunity to take corrective action to maintain long overall system life.

 
Using our proprietary battery management technology, we are able to offer completely integrated energy storage solutions or custom modular standalone systems to

our clients. In addition, we have also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that accompany and enhance the abilities of our BMS to meet the needs of
the growing advanced energy storage market.
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We sold our first validated product in the second quarter of 2010 and have since delivered over 14 mega watt-hours of advanced energy storage to clients such as

NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. (NACCO), GreenTech Automotive, Inc. (GTA), Crown Equipment Corporation, Damascus Corporation, Columbia Parcar
Corporation, Wheego Electric Cars Inc., (“Wheego”), Epic Electric Vehicles, and Texas Association of Local Health Officials (TALHO).
 
Industry Background for the Energy Storage Market
 

The energy storage market has grown over recent years from one mostly reliant on lead-acid technologies created in the 1800s to one leveraging advanced chemistries
and the corresponding ability to store more energy in less space. Back-up power has increasingly grown to depend on telematics to accurately gauge system health. Electric
vehicles have adopted lighter weight energy storage to increase range and payload abilities and grid management applications have sought to increase the cycle life of their
systems to assure better returns on their investments over the long term. We believe that all of these needs will cause the advanced energy storage market to grow exponentially
over the next five (5) to ten (10) years.
 
Lift Equipment – Material Handling Equipment

 
Lift equipment commonly called a forklift truck (also called a lift truck, a fork truck, or a forklift) is a powered industrial truck used to lift and transport materials. The

modern forklift was developed in the 1960s by various companies including the transmission manufacturing company Clark and the hoist company Yale & Towne
Manufacturing. The forklift has since become an indispensable piece of equipment in manufacturing and warehousing operations. Lift equipment is produced in a range of
power capacities from smaller lift type equipment such as a Walkie (ie, pallet jack) to a ride-on fork-lift. Lift equipment vehicles are not new technology and don’t require new
testing, which can cause delays in product placement. The existing lift equipment market uses lead-acid batteries, which is outdated technology and can lead to customer
dissatisfaction with life cycles, performance, and additional maintenance costs. The replacement of lead-acid batteries with lithium cells dramatically extends run time and the
battery system life, lowering the overall cost of ownership to a level which makes lithium competitive with lead-acid in numerous applications.
 
Other Equipment Solutions
 

 The micro-grid market includes working with companies to provide mobile and man-portable advanced energy storage to act as gas generator replacements and
convenient mobile power for lighting, disaster preparedness, communications and water filtration. We have demonstration units currently being evaluated by the U.S. military
providing us with their assessment and feedback. Additionally, we have placed solar, grid-tie energy storage in an office setting facility to evaluate the results of the output to
meet operational needs.
 
Battery Types
 

The most common battery technologies currently available to address the electric vehicle and grid management markets include the following:
 

Lead-acid Batteries: Lead-acid is one of the most developed battery technologies as it has been in use since the 1800s. It is relatively easy to manufacture and is
inexpensive and ubiquitous energy storage medium. Automobile manufacturers use lead-acid for starter batteries and lead-acid has been used widely in electric vehicle and grid
management solutions. Unfortunately, lead-acid batteries weigh more per unit of stored energy and have less power output per unit mass versus advanced energy storage system
technologies and thus are not well suited for advanced applications such as grid management devices and electric vehicles. In addition, lead can be hazardous to the environment
and there are efforts in many countries to phase this legacy technology out over time.

 
Nickel Batteries: Nickel batteries, NiCd (nickel cadmium) or NiMH (nickel metal hydride) are durable and inexpensive technologies with relatively high power.

Unfortunately, cadmium is not a safe material and exposure can result in health hazard to humans and damage to the environment. An alternative to the toxic NiCd battery is
NiMH, which has greater energy versus lead-acid batteries and is more suitable to a wider range of applications. The NiMH was used in early electric vehicles and some other
bulk storage applications. Unfortunately, these chemistries are not as energy dense as advanced lithium batteries and thus are now being leveraged out of the advanced energy
storage system market by more energy dense chemistries.

 
Legacy Lithium Chemistries: Lithium batteries are more energy dense versus lead-acid, NiCd or NiMH batteries and are more volumetrically and weight efficient.

Introduced in the 1990s, lithium batteries made their way into portable electronics devices like laptop computers and cell phones. Unfortunately, early lithium cobalt was prone
to heat issues when arranged in large groups and if a battery cell were compromised a fire or explosion could result. This attribute made early lithium batteries unsuitable for
large grid management devices and electric vehicles. The cobalt in these early cells was also a more expensive metal versus the compounds used in modern lithium batteries.
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Advanced Energy Storage Lithium Batteries: The current generation of advanced energy storage lithium batteries was developed in the late 1990s. These new
chemistries improve upon energy density, volumetrics and weight metrics. There have also been great enhancements to the safety of these modern lithium batteries. Heat and
catastrophic failure issues do not plague advanced energy storage systems today. There has also been a significant increase in modern lithium batteries’ cycle life. This makes
today’s advanced energy storage systems the most conducive to electric vehicle and grid management use.
 

Other Technologies: Ultra capacitors and fuel cells have been proposed as potential alternatives or replacements to lithium batteries. Ultra capacitors deliver high
power and have an extended cycle life but suffer from poor energy density. This makes them suitable for small burst power needs but not for grid storage and electric vehicle
devices. Fuel cells generate energy converting a fuel, typically hydrogen to energy. Fuel cell systems offer good energy density but are poor performers in terms of power and
cycle life. Fuel cell systems are suitable for devices with small power needs and short life spans but are generally not suitable for use in electric vehicles and grid management
devices.
 
Current Advanced Energy Storage Application Needs
 

There are a number of features required of advanced energy storage applications today, such as:
 

Target Application Power: An advanced energy storage system must be able to deliver the electrical power required. Electrical power, measured in watts, is the rate at
which electrical energy is delivered. Electric industrial vehicles, in particular, need enough power to assure smooth acceleration through a systems discharge curve and grid
management systems need enough power to meet load demands.
 

Duration of Charge/Run Times: An advanced energy storage system must be able to provide a certain total amount of electrical energy. Total electrical energy is
measured in watt hours and is the product of power and time. Advanced energy storage systems with greater energy can perform for a longer duration when compared to legacy
technologies. For example, Lithium ion batteries provide up to 25% longer run times than legacy batteries of comparable capacity, or amps per hour rating. The total electrical
energy of an advanced energy storage system determines an electric vehicle’s range per charge and a grid management device’s total power.
 

High/Sustained Power: The energy that an advanced energy storage system can provide in total depends on the power requirements of the device in which it is
installed. When an advanced energy storage system delivers higher power, the available energy of the advanced energy storage system is less than if it was delivering lower
power. Advanced energy storage systems are better suited to deliver high power versus legacy lead-acid. For example, the higher power required to push a vehicle like an
electrically propelled boat through the water would be detrimental to legacy power technologies because their lack of ability to operate as efficiently in high power applications.
Advanced energy storage systems are able to supply a high power required without detriment to the energy storage system.

 
Safe Operation: For almost all industrial equipment, electric vehicle and grid management solutions, the safety of an advanced energy storage system is of utmost

importance. Legacy lead-acid batteries tend to get hot with heavy operation and the toxic nature of these legacy chemistries can be troublesome in the event of a cell breach.
Advanced energy storage systems focus on chemistries that do not violently react with oxygen so a cell breach is less likely to result in an explosion or fire. Lithium iron
phosphate is known to be the “lithium chemistry of choice” for many large format applications due to its lower cost and greater safety attributes.
 

Extended Life: The cycle life of an advanced energy storage system is the total number of times the system can be charged and discharged while still performing to
specification in the device installed. Legacy lead-acid technologies often do not perform to specification past a several hundred cycles in industrial equipment applications. In
comparison, an advanced energy storage system can last three to five times as long in the same application.
 

Volumetrics and Weight: The weight and size of advanced energy storage systems are of crucial importance to both portable power and grid management devices. In
electric vehicles, where packaging space is precious, a lightweight system can greatly enhance range. In grid management devices that seek to extend current back-up power
time benefit from better volumetrics and devices that shift load or peak-shave for improved average energy costs benefit from small advanced energy storage systems that keep
connections between cells at a minimum.
 

Lowest Cost: Advanced energy storage systems provide power dense solutions with extended cycle life which, together, equate to very cost conscious solutions for
most applications in the industrial vehicle equipment, portable power, and grid management market segments. We believe that, in our products, advanced energy storage
systems can cost much less than legacy lead-acid technologies over the course of device operation.
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Our Products and Services

 
We seek to gain market share in the advanced energy storage segment with our system technologies that extend life, add much needed safety mechanisms, and

communication and cycle life memory tools. We are focused on cell and system management tools. From our modular 24-volt energy storage solutions to stackable charging,
we provide the building blocks to create custom systems designed for a diverse set of applications. Whether it is vehicle or grid storage systems, we provide capable systems
that meet cost and performance targets which we believe, in many cases and based on the life cycle data of the lead-acid batteries provided by the manufacturers; outperform
traditional lead-acid technologies on both metrics. Our systems use lithium-ion cells that are denser in energy than traditional lead-acid batteries, which allow our batteries to
hold more charge over the same weight. In addition, our BMS protects the lithium-ion batteries enabling the lithium-ion batteries to reach their full life and cycle potential and
outlasting lead-acid based batteries which would have to be replaced and thereby adding additional costs over the same time period. Our systems manage individual cells and
their charge cycles, which generally allows for more consistent discharge capability and ease of maintenance over an unmanaged battery. Through our BMS, we have enhanced
battery systems overall to provide safer, more reliable and extended life rechargeable energy storage systems for applications including motive, marine, industrial, military,
stationary, and grid management markets.

 
Based on our experience, we believe that, compared to our competitors, our expertise in the large format energy storage market segment is paving the way for lower

cost and higher performance solutions.
 
BMS. Our proprietary BMS product provides three critical functions for battery systems: cell balancing, monitoring parameters and reporting errors to the system. Our BMS
monitors parameters and reports errors to other devices, which can then determine the best action to take to prevent failure. Another BMS function is system cell balancing. The
BMS will analyze each battery cell in the system during charge and discharge to determine which cells to balance to prevent overcharging and allow the other batteries to catch-
up and equalize capacity throughout the system.
 
Battery Modules. We supply high-power, energy-dense advanced energy storage modules for the electrical vehicles, industrial, governmental and grid storage applications. Our
primary product consists of the Flux Power 24-volt lithium pack and individual 3.2 volt cells in various sizes from 60AH to 900AH. We offer varying chemistries and
configurations based on the applications. Our battery modules are designed for our BMS.
 
Chargers. Our smart charging solutions are designed to interface with our battery management system. Our smart chargers consist of both air-cooled and liquid-cooled chargers.
These modular chargers can be stacked from 3kW – 300kW.
 
Application Integration. We are one of the few developers to successfully integrate lithium packs in a variety of applications including industrial equipment to portable energy
storage. The technology complexity of lithium requires knowledgeable engineering and testing.
 
Marketing and Sales
 
Customer Concentrations
 

We currently sell products directly to our customers, through lift equipment dealers, or through battery distributors. Our direct customers vary from small companies to
military integrators.

 
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, we had two major customers that each represented more than 10% of our revenues on an individual basis, or

approximately $129,000 or 36% of our total revenues, which was a result of sales to two customers, Penguin ASI and Southern States Motive Power, which represented $67,000
or 18.7% and $62,000 or 17.3% of sales, respectively.

 
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, we had one major customer that represented more than 10% of our revenues on an individual basis, or approximately

$480,000 or 62% of our total revenues, which was a result of deferred revenue as previously reported. Revenue from our customer, Wheego Electric Cars (“Wheego”) was
recognized on the sell-through method with their customer, which was completed during our third quarter.
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Technology
 

We believe our cell management and communication tools extend battery system life and improve system performance by managing individual cells in a system,
communicating individual cell conditions to ancillary devices, and communicating individual cell conditions to other devices which either require or supply power. Whether it is
vehicle, lift equipment or grid storage systems, we provide capable systems that meet cost and performance targets which we believe, in many cases and based on the life cycle
data of the lead-acid batteries provided by the manufacturers; outperform traditional lead-acid technologies on both metrics. Our systems use lithium-ion cells that are denser in
energy than traditional lead-acid batteries, which allow our batteries to hold more charge over the same weight. In addition, our BMS protects the lithium-ion batteries enabling
the lithium-ion batteries to reach their full life and cycle potential and outlasting lead-acid based batteries which would have to be replaced and thereby adding additional costs
over the same time period. Our systems manage individual cells and their charge cycles, which generally allow for more consistent discharge capability and ease of maintenance
over an unmanaged battery by:

 
— Managing individual cells within a system to maximize

Ø     Life Cycles
Ø     Discharge Rate
Ø     Depth of Discharge per Cycle

 
— Allowing Cells to Communicate their State of Health to

Ø     Ensure Proper Charging
Ø     Protect the Cells from Over Discharge
Ø     Adjust System Parameters during Varying Temperature

 
— Enabling other system components to adjust their functions to

Ø     Protect Drive Components from Damage
Ø     Tie Properly to Grid Power Systems
Ø     Optimize Charge Efficiency
 

— Other benefits of our battery packs
Ø     Lower total costs of ownership
Ø     Maintenance free
Ø     Lighter in weight
Ø     Longer life than lead-acid batteries

 
Production process
 
Except for charger components and battery cells, we design all of our own products in-house and outsource manufacturing and assembly when possible.

 
Batteries. Since our battery management system and battery modules are not tied to any specific lithium-ion battery chemistry, we can source our batteries from a

variety of manufacturers to meet our needs as well as our customer’s needs. During this past year, we have sourced our batteries from several suppliers, all with manufacturing
operations in China.
 

Battery Modules and Packs. We design all of our battery modules and packs in-house. In addition, we occasionally design and assemble prototype battery packs and
storage systems for our customers.

 
Chargers. We currently buy chargers from several sources, all of whom are U.S. based suppliers.

 
BMS. On August 1, 2009, Flux Power entered into a Manufacturing Implementation Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with LHV Power, a related party.

Pursuant to the Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power granted LHV Power a right of first refusal to manufacture our battery management systems. Further, under the
Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power agreed to pay for any specialized tooling LHV Power may require to manufacture Flux Power’s battery management systems. Under the
Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power would retain ownership of all intellectual property developed under the Manufacturing Agreement. The Manufacturing Agreement
expired on August 1, 2014. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, we paid approximately $0 and $108,000 respectively, to LHV Power pursuant to the
Manufacturing Agreement. There are a number of manufacturers which could produce the battery management system on comparable terms; therefore, a change in
manufacturer is unlikely to cause a delay in manufacturing since we have inventory that should be adequate for six months.
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In-House Product Assembly:
 
BMS units, Chargers and CAN Current Sensors: Units are outsourced, programmed and tested at our facility before shipping.

 
24-volt Modules: We receive completed 24-volt module cases and lids. Cells are packed in the module cases, connected to BMS, and secured in place. Lids with BMS

installed are programmed and calibrated. Each full unit is sealed and tested before shipping.
 

Strategic Relationship with LHV Power: LHV Power is one of our early business supporters. LHV Power’s Chief Executive Officer, President and owner, James
Gevarges, sits on our Board of Directors and is one of our major shareholders. LHV Power has an advanced engineering team that has produced products for Hewlett Packard,
Dell, Black and Decker, Train, and Carrier. LHV has several contracts with manufacturing facilities in China and Taiwan. In the past, our BMS units and CAN Current Sensor
Builds were outsourced to LHV Power where they were built to industry standards. In addition, LHV had assisted us with manufacturing assessments of our other products. Our
relationship with LHV Power was governed by the Manufacturing Agreement with LHV Power as described above under section titled “Production Process”, which expired
August 1, 2014. We have no near term plans to use LHV Power as a supplier. We plan to outsource the manufacturing of our BMS to other manufacturers in the future.

 
Volume sales will enable cost reductions by:
 

Manufacturability Optimization: We are currently building products to be as robust and full-featured as possible to meet initial demand that typically reflects smaller
quantity needs. With investment in design, these premium components hopefully can be value-engineered with the goal to continue to offer full-featured devices at less than
50% of the cost.

 
Low Cost Version Designs: We will have a growing number of clients that do not need full-featured devices to make their products perform well. With working

capital, we believe that we can design low cost options for customers which can be marketed at a deeper discount to our current full-featured products.
 

Advanced Manufacturing Capabilities: We are currently seeking out advanced manufacturing relationships to further enhance our abilities.
 
Suppliers
 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we obtained a limited number of components and supplies included in our products from a small group of suppliers and
had two suppliers who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases, on an individual basis. Purchases for these two suppliers totaled $96,000, for a total of 38.7% of our
total purchases.

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, we obtained a limited number of components and supplies included in our products from a small group of suppliers and

had one supplier who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases; i.e., LHV Power accounted for 34% of our total purchases.
 
In the past we have sourced Lithium batteries from a number of suppliers. We are realigning our battery sourcing to improve consistency, responsiveness, and quality.
 

Research and Development
 

Research and development expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $536,000 and $992,000, respectively. Such expenses
consist primarily of materials, supplies, salaries and personnel related expenses, consulting costs and other expenses. We currently perform our research and development at our
facility in Vista, California. We seek to develop innovative new and improved products for cell and system management along with associated communication, display, current
sensing and charging tools.
 
Competition
 

Our competitors in the lift equipment sector are major lead acid battery manufacturers, including, but not limited to: GNB Hawker, Dekka, Enersys, Crown Battery
and Interstate. We are not aware that these suppliers currently offer lithium or other advanced energy products in any significant volume to end users, equipment dealers, OEMs
or battery distributors.
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We believe that we have several technological and business advantages over our competitors, which will lead to our success in the advanced energy storage market.

Our concentration on cell and system management tools has allowed us to compete with a much lower capitalization structure. Further, since our BMS are not based on any
specific cell chemistries, we can source cells from different manufacturers based on the performance needs and cost. This flexibility in cell sourcing allows us to provide
complete storage systems at much lower cost versus our current competition. We are also differentiated by the ability to integrate battery packs successfully into a variety of
applications.
 
Our marketing and sales strategy is to actively pursue the following market segments:

 
Lift Equipment – Material Handling Equipment: The advantage of the lift equipment market is that it is an indispensable piece of equipment in manufacturing and

warehousing operations. Lift equipment vehicles are not new technology and don’t require new testing which can cause delays in product placement. The existing lift equipment
market uses lead-acid batteries, which is outdated technology and can lead to customer dissatisfaction with life cycles, performance, and additional maintenance costs. The
replacement of lead-acid batteries with lithium cells dramatically extends the battery system life, lowering the overall cost of ownership to a level which makes lithium
competitive with lead-acid in numerous applications. We believe with marketing efforts we will be able to reach larger target markets.

 
Grid Management Solutions: Our products’ telematics, modularity, longevity and low cost solutions fit with smart grid management solutions, peak shaving devices,

bulk storage, back-up power, and frequency modulation devices at every level of grid management. These devices have the longest integration timelines, but have the potential
to become our largest revenue component over time.

 
Military (Defense) and Municipal: Our products’ longevity, easy integration and telematics make it a fit for energy storage applications for both the military and

municipal markets. These markets have longer integration timelines but will become a healthy addition to our revenue mix over the next two years.
 
Intellectual Property
 

Our success depends, at least in part, on our ability to protect our core technology and intellectual property. To accomplish this, we rely on a combination of patents
pending, patent applications, trade secrets, including know-how, employee and third party nondisclosure agreements, copyright laws, trademarks, intellectual property licenses
and other contractual rights to establish and protect our proprietary rights in our technology. In addition to such factors as innovation, technological expertise and experienced
personnel, we believe that a strong patent position is important to remain competitive.

 
We have developed our intellectual property portfolio through our continued investment in research and development, and through our acquisition of technologies

from Epic Boats (an entity founded and controlled by Chris Anthony, our board member and former Chief Executive Officer), Gottlieb Inventions, and Joseph Gottlieb.
 
In connection with our BMS, we are actively pursuing patent applications relating to determining battery life and remaining battery life cycles. Several patent

applications relating to these inventions have been approved and others will soon be filed with the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office. We are developing a certain number of
BMS related patents. In addition, we have a number of trademark applications and registrations protecting the Flux Power name and logo. These include Flux, Flux Power, and
the Flux Power logo.

 
As of June 30, 2014, we have filed 11 patent applications in the United States, with two patents approved and issued. In addition, we intend to continue to file

additional patent applications with respect to our technology and to seek protection of our intellectual property internationally in a broad range of areas. We do not know
whether any of our pending patent applications will result in the issuance of patents or whether the examination process will require us to narrow our claims. Even if granted,
there can be no assurance that these pending patent applications will provide us with protection.
 
Government Regulations
 

Product Safety Regulations. Our products are subject to product safety regulations by Federal, state, and local organizations. Accordingly, we may be required, or may
voluntarily determine to obtain approval of our products from one or more of the organizations engaged in regulating product safety. These approvals could require significant
time and resources from our technical staff and, if redesign were necessary, could result in a delay in the introduction of our products in various markets and applications.

 
 

Environmental Regulations. Federal, state, and local regulations impose significant environmental requirements on the manufacture, storage, transportation, and
disposal of various components of advanced energy storage systems. Although we believe that our operations are in material compliance with current applicable environmental
regulations, there can be no assurance that changes in such laws and regulations will not impose costly compliance requirements on us or otherwise subject us to future
liabilities.
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Moreover, Federal, state, and local governments may enact additional regulations relating to the manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of components of

advanced energy storage systems. Compliance with such additional regulations could require us to devote significant time and resources and could adversely affect demand for
our products. There can be no assurance that additional or modified regulations relating to the manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of components of advanced
energy systems will not be imposed.

 
Occupational Safety and Health Regulations. The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and other regulatory agencies have

jurisdiction over the operations of our Vista, California facility. Because of the risks generally associated with the assembly of advanced energy storage systems we expect
rigorous enforcement of applicable health and safety regulations. Frequent audits by or changes, in the regulations issued by Cal/OSHA, or other regulatory agencies with
jurisdiction over our operations, may cause unforeseen delays and require significant time and resources from our technical staff.
 
Employees
 

As of June 30, 2014, we have thirteen (13) employees, of which twelve (12) are full-time and one is part time. We engage outside consultants for business development
and operations or other functions from time to time. None of our employees are currently represented by a trade union. We consider our relations with our employees to be
good.

 
Legal Proceedings
 

We are not currently involved in any legal proceedings.
 
Other Information
 

Our Internet address is www.fluxpwr.com. We make available free of charge on our website our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Other than the information expressly set forth in this annual report, the
information contained, or referred to, on our website is not part of this annual report.
 

The public may also read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The public
may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains a website at www.sec.gov that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers, such as us, that file electronically with the SEC.
 
 ITEM 1A — RISK FACTORS
 

An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other information
included in this report, before making an investment decision. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer.
In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. You should read the section entitled “Special Note Regarding
Forward Looking Statements” above for a discussion of what types of statements are forward-looking statements, as well as the significance of such statements in the context of
this report.
 
Risk Factors Relating to Our Business
 

Our independent auditors have expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
 
In their audit opinion issued in connection with our financial statements as of June 30, 2014 and for the year then ended, our independent registered public accounting

firm included a going concern explanatory paragraph which stated there was substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.  We have prepared our financial
statements on a going concern basis that contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future. Our
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would be necessary should we be unable to continue as a going concern and, therefore, be required to liquidate our
assets and discharge our liabilities in other than the normal course of business and at amounts different from those reflected in our financial statements.  If we are unable to
continue as a going concern, our stockholders may lose all or a substantial portion or all of their investment.
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We have a history of losses and negative working capital and currently our lender has the right not to advance funds under our credit facilities, and require

additional funding to support operations and provide working capital for growth.
 
As of June 30, 2014, we had a cash balance of approximately $116,000, negative working capital of approximately $887,000 and an accumulated deficit of

approximately $8,276,000. We have a history of losses and have experienced a lack of revenue due to the time to launch our revised business strategy. We have experienced a
decrease in our revenues and gross profit. Our revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, decreased approximately $414,000, or 54%, compared to the year ended June
30, 2013. Our gross loss of $4,299,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, increased by approximately $4,650,000, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 net
income of $351,000. Not including an increase to income of $5,731,000 in fiscal 2013 related to the revaluation of derivative warrant liabilities, the company would have had a
loss of $5,380,000. The Company does not currently believe that its existing cash resources are sufficient to meet its anticipated needs during the next twelve months. Our
operations have been primarily funded through the sale of our securities and borrowings under our credit facilities. Our continued operations and growth are dependent on our
ability to complete equity financings, make borrowings under our credit facilities or/and generate revenues. For the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, we have conducted
private placements of our common stock and warrants to accredited investors and raised gross cash proceeds of $1.4 million. In addition, during the twelve months ended June
30, 2014, a total of $3,136,000 was converted from debt to equity from our largest shareholder, Esenjay Investments, LLC (“Esenjay”), and as of June 30, 2014 no balances
were owed by the Company under existing agreements with Esenjay. We are currently pursuing additional funds through private placements and through October 7, 2014 an
additional $142,500 has been raised. In addition, we are pursuing additional sources of funding, which could result from certain distributor relationships, joint operating
ventures, acquisitions or mergers. We expect to cover our anticipated operating expenses through cash on hand, collections on additional customer billings and proceeds from
the private placement of equity securities. However, there is no guarantee we will be able to obtain additional funds in the future if required or that funds will be available on
terms acceptable to us, or that shareholders will not experience dilution as a result of funds raised through the sale of securities. If such funds are not available, management will
be required to curtail its investments in additional sales and marketing and product development resources and capital expenditures, which may have a material adverse effect on
our future cash flows and results of operations, and its ability to continue operating as a going concern.

  
Our level of indebtedness and an event of default under existing notes and credit facility could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of

operations or liquidity.
 

We have had substantial indebtedness in the past and have relied on our credit facilities to provide working capital. As of June 30, 2014 we have converted all
previously outstanding debt of approximately $3,136,000 under our existing credit facilities into equity. We have $3,250,000 of availability under our existing credit facilities
with Esenjay through December 31, 2015; however our ability to borrow under these facilities is at the discretion of Esenjay. Esenjay has no obligation to disburse such funds
and has the right not to advance funds under these loans. As of June 30, 2014 there were no balances owed under the credit lines with Esenjay, which include: revolving note for
$1.0 million (“Revolving Note”), additional note payable of $250,000 (“Bridge Note”) and line of credit for $2.0 million (“Credit Line”). In the event of default under the
Revolving Note, Bridge Note and Credit Line, the interest rate on unpaid balance all lines accrue interest at a rate of 6%. In addition, as a secured party, upon an event of
default, Esenjay will have a right to the collateral granted to them under the Revolving Note, Bridge Note and Credit Line, and we may lose our ownership interest in the assets.
A loss of our collateral will have material adverse effect on our operations, our business and financial condition. 

 
We have realigned our marketing focus to smaller number of products and selling to customers that do not require extensive product development.

 
Beginning 2010, we focused on providing customized solutions to larger OEM customers.  Recent experience has shown that we could achieve higher longer-term

revenue by focusing on a smaller number of products and selling to customers that do not require extensive and lengthy product development and negotiation periods. An
example was the decision in late 2013 by NACCO to pursue a much larger supplier that can provide extensive resources to support lengthy prove-out requirements for one of
their product areas.  As a response, we have determined to narrow our focus to product segments including “lift equipment” and “micro-grid energy storage”. We feel that we
are well positioned to address these markets, which include applications such as industrial electric vehicles like lift equipment, tug equipment, back-up power, grid tie power,
solar storage, electric service vehicles and pallet drivers. However, we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in transitioning companies in these segments from legacy
lead-acid technologies to our advanced energy storage solutions.

 
We have a limited operating history which makes evaluating our business and future prospects difficult and may increase the risk of your investment.
 
There are risks and difficulties we face as an early stage company with limited operating history. If we do not successfully address these risks, our business, prospects,

operating results and financial condition will be materially and adversely harmed. We began delivering our first battery product and BMS in the second quarter of 2010, and as
of June 30, 2014, we have 43 customers, almost all of which are in the lift equipment, robotic equipment, emergency back-up power supply, or solar storage market segments.
We have a very limited operating history on which investors can base an evaluation of its business and operating results can vary significantly.

 
We have not derived material revenues from our component cell or BMS products, during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, less than 5% of its revenue was

derived from such sales. We intend to extend the application of our battery products and BMS for industrial energy storage, government applications and specialty applications.
There are no assurances that we will be able to successfully extend the application of our battery products and BMS into other targeted end markets.
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Our success depends on the success of manufacturers of the end applications that use our battery products and BMS.
 
Because our products are designed to be used in other products such as lift equipment, our success depends on whether end application manufacturers and their end

dealers will incorporate our battery products and BMS in their products. Although we strive to produce high quality battery products and BMS, there is no guarantee that end
application manufacturers will accept our products. Our failure to gain acceptance of our products from these manufacturers could result in a material adverse effect on our
results of operations.

 
Additionally, even if a manufacturer or their end dealers decides to use our batteries, the manufacturer may not be able to market and sell its products successfully.

The manufacturer’s inability to market and sell its products successfully could materially and adversely affect our business and prospects because this manufacturer may not
order new products from us. Therefore, our business, financial condition, results of operations and future success would be materially and adversely affected.
 

Lithium-ion battery modules have been observed to catch fire or vent smoke and flame, and such events have raised concerns over the use of large format high-
power batteries.

 
We sell and supply large format high-power lithium based battery modules for industrial equipment and we intend to supply these lithium packs for governmental and

grid storage applications. Historically, lithium-ion batteries in laptops and cellphones have been reported to catch fire or vent smoke and flames, and more recently, news have
been reported that several electric vehicles that use high-power lithium-ion batteries have caught on fire which trigger investigation as to the cause of the fires. As such, any
adverse publicity and issues as to the use of high-power batteries in automotive or lift equipment applications will affect our business and prospects since we sell and supply
large format high-power lithium based battery packs for industrial applications. In addition, any failure of our battery modules may cause damage to the industrial equipment or
lead to personal injury or death and may subject us to lawsuits. We may have to recall our battery modules, which would be time consuming and expensive.

 
Current economic conditions may adversely affect consumer spending and the overall general health of our retail customers, which, in turn, may adversely affect

our financial condition, results of operations and cash resources.
 
Uncertainty about the current and future global economic conditions may cause our customers to defer purchases or cancel purchase orders for our products in response

to tighter credit, decreased cash availability and weakened consumer confidence. Our financial success is sensitive to changes in general economic conditions, both globally and
nationally. Recessionary economic cycles, higher interest borrowing rates, higher fuel and other energy costs, inflation, increases in commodity prices, higher levels of
unemployment, higher consumer debt levels, higher tax rates and other changes in tax laws or other economic factors that may affect consumer spending or buying habits could
continue to adversely affect the demand for our products. In addition, a number of our customers may be impacted by the significant decrease in available credit that has
resulted from the current financial crisis. If credit pressures or other financial difficulties result in insolvency for our customers it could adversely impact our financial results.
There can be no assurances that government and consumer responses to the disruptions in the financial markets will restore consumer confidence.

 
We are dependent on a limited number of suppliers for our battery cells, and the inability of these suppliers to continue to deliver, or their refusal to deliver, our

battery cells at prices and volumes acceptable to us would have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects and operating results.
 
Our battery cells, which are an integral part of our battery products and systems, are currently sourced from three manufacturers, two located in China and one with

distribution in the United States. While we obtain components for our products and systems from multiple sources whenever possible, we have spent a great deal of time in
developing and testing our battery cells that we receive from these three manufacturers. We refer to these battery cell suppliers as our limited source suppliers. To date we have
no qualified alternative sources for our battery cells and we generally do not maintain long-term agreements with our limited source suppliers. While we believe that we will be
able to establish alternate supply relationships for our battery cells, we may be unable to do so in the short term or at all at prices, quality or costs that are favorable to us.

 
Changes in business conditions, wars, governmental changes and other factors beyond our control or which we do not presently anticipate, could also affect our

suppliers’ ability to deliver components to us on a timely basis. Furthermore, if we experience significant increased demand, or need to replace our existing suppliers, there can
be no assurance that additional supplies of component parts will be available when required on terms that are favorable to us, at all, or that any supplier would allocate sufficient
supplies to us in order to meet our requirements or fill our orders in a timely manner. In the past, we have replaced certain suppliers because of their failure to provide
components that met our quality control standards. The loss of any limited source supplier or the disruption in the supply of components from these suppliers could lead to
delays in the deliveries of our battery products and systems to our customers, which could hurt our relationships with our customers and also materially adversely affect our
business, prospects and operating results.
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Increases in costs, disruption of supply or shortage of raw materials, in particular lithium-iron phosphate cells, could harm our business.
 
We may experience increases in the costs or a sustained interruption in the supply or shortage of raw materials. Any such increase or supply interruption could

materially negatively impact our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. For instance, we are exposed to multiple risks relating to price fluctuations for
lithium-iron phosphate cells.

 
These risks include:

· the inability or unwillingness of current battery manufacturers to supply the number of lithium-iron phosphate cells required to support our sales as demand for
such rechargeable battery cells increases;

· disruption in the supply of cells due to quality issues or recalls by the battery cell manufacturers; and
· an increase in the cost of raw materials, such as iron and phosphate, used in lithium-iron phosphate cells.

 
We may be unable to successfully execute our long-term growth strategy or increase our current revenue levels.
 
We can provide no assurance that our revenues will grow. Our ability to maintain our revenue levels or to grow in the future depends upon, among other things,

adequate capital to support current operations and the continued success of our efforts to maintain our brand image and bring new products to market and our ability to expand
within our current distribution channels.

 
Our success is highly dependent on continually developing new and advanced products, technologies, and processes and failure to do so may cause us to lose our

competitiveness in the battery industry and may cause our profits to decline.
 
To remain competitive in the battery industry, it is important to continually develop new and advanced products, technologies, and processes. There is no assurance

that competitors’ new products, technologies, and processes will not render our existing products obsolete or non-competitive. Alternately, changes in legislative, regulatory or
industry requirements or in competitive technologies may render certain of our products obsolete or less attractive. Our competitiveness in the renewable battery market
therefore relies upon our ability to enhance our current products, introduce new products, and develop and implement new technologies and processes. Our battery system
predominately uses lithium-iron phosphate cells. If our competitors develop alternative products with more enhanced features than our battery system, our financial condition
and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected.

 
The research and development of new products and technologies is costly and time consuming, and there are no assurances that our research and development of new

products will be either successful or completed within anticipated timeframes, if at all. Our failure to technologically evolve and/or develop new or enhanced products may
cause us to lose competitiveness in the battery market. In addition, in order to compete effectively in the renewable battery industry, we must be able to launch new products to
meet our customers’ demands in a timely manner. However, we cannot provide assurance that we will be able to install and certify any equipment needed to produce new
products in a timely manner, or that the transitioning of our manufacturing facility and resources to full production under any new product programs will not impact production
rates or other operational efficiency measures at our manufacturing facility. In addition, new product introductions and applications are risky, and may suffer from a lack of
market acceptance, delays in related product development and failure of new products to operate properly. Any failure by us to successfully launch new products, or a failure by
our customers to accept such products, could adversely affect our results.

 
We have historically depended on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of our revenues and this dependence is likely to continue.
 
We are dependent on one core technology and product category and limited products to generate revenues. We cannot assure you that these or other future products

will achieve customer acceptance to attain a level of sales to support our operating costs. Historically the vast majority of our product sales were generated from a small number
of customers, however we are concentrating on increasing our customer base in the lift equipment market to expand our product placement. We currently do not have long-term
agreements with any of our customers. Future agreements with respect to pricing, returns, promotions, among other things, are subject to periodic negotiation with each
customer. No assurance can be given that current customers will continue to do business with us. The loss of any of our significant customers will have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. In addition, the uncertainty of product orders can make it difficult to forecast our sales and allocate our
resources in a manner consistent with actual sales, and our expense levels are based in part on our expectations of future sales. If our expectations regarding future sales are
inaccurate, we may be unable to reduce costs in a timely manner to adjust for sales shortfalls.
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The market for our products and services is very competitive and, if we cannot effectively compete, our business will be harmed.
 
The market for our products and services is very competitive and subject to rapid technological change. Many of our competitors are larger and have significantly

greater assets, name recognition and financial, personnel and other resources than we have. As a result, our competitors may be in a stronger position to respond quickly to
potential acquisitions and other market opportunities, new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
maintain or increase our market share against the emergence of these or other sources of competition. Failure to maintain and enhance our competitive position could materially
adversely affect our business and prospects.

 
 Our business may be adversely affected by declines in the global economy, in addition to uncertainties in the financial markets.
 
Although the global economy has substantially recovered from the recession of 2009, economic growth has been much slower than historical recoveries. The

uncertainties in the pace of economic recovery and growth and the financial markets are well-known and could adversely affect our business.
 
Warranty claims, product liability claims and product recalls could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
 
Our business inherently exposes us to potential warranty and product liability claims, in the event that our products fail to perform as expected or such failure of our

products results, or is alleged to result, in bodily injury or property damage (or both). Such claims may arise despite our quality controls, proper testing and instruction for use of
our products, either due to a defect during manufacturing or due to the individual’s improper use of the product. In addition, if any of our designed products are, or are alleged,
to be defective, then we may be required to participate in a recall of them.

 
Although we have product liability insurance for our products, this may be inadequate to cover all potential product liability claims. In addition, while we often seek to

limit our product liability in our contracts, such limits may not be enforceable or may be subject to exceptions. Any product recall or lawsuit seeking significant monetary
damages either in excess of our coverage, or outside of our coverage, may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition. We may not be able to secure
additional product liability insurance coverage on acceptable terms or at reasonable costs when needed. If we were to experience a large insured loss, it might exceed our
coverage limits, or our insurance carriers could decline to further cover us or raise our insurance rates to unacceptable levels, any of which could impair our financial position
and results of operations. A successful product liability claim against us could require us to pay a substantial monetary award. We cannot be assured that such claims will not be
made in the future.

 
We may need to defend ourselves against patent or trademark infringement claims, which may be time-consuming and would cause us to incur substantial costs.
 
Companies, organizations or individuals, including our competitors, may hold or obtain patents, trademarks or other proprietary rights that would prevent, limit or

interfere with our ability to make, use, develop or sell our battery products and BMS, which could make it more difficult for us to operate our business. Companies holding
patents or other intellectual property rights relating to battery packs or electronic power management systems may bring suits alleging infringement of such rights or otherwise
asserting their rights and seeking licenses. In addition, if we are determined to have infringed upon a third party’s intellectual property rights, we may be required to do one or
more of the following:

 
— cease selling, incorporating or using products that incorporate the challenged intellectual property;
— obtain a license from the holder of the infringed intellectual property right, which license may not be available on reasonable terms or at all; or
— re-design our battery management systems.

 
In the event of a successful claim of infringement against us and our failure or inability to obtain a license to the infringed technology, our business, prospects,

operating results and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. In addition, any litigation or claims, whether or not valid, could result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources and management attention.

 
We may license patents and other intellectual property from third parties, and we may face claims that our use of this in-licensed technology infringes the rights of

others. In that case, we may seek indemnification from our licensors under our license contracts with them. However, our rights to indemnification may be unavailable or
insufficient to cover our costs and losses, depending on our use of the technology, whether we choose to retain control over conduct of the litigation, and other factors.
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Our business will be adversely affected if we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights from unauthorized use or infringement by third parties.
 
Any failure to protect our proprietary rights adequately could result in our competitors offering similar products, potentially resulting in the loss of some of our

competitive advantage and a decrease in our revenue, which would adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. Our success depends, at
least in part, on our ability to protect our core technology and intellectual property. To accomplish this, we rely on a combination of patents, patent applications, trade secrets,
including know-how, employee and third party nondisclosure agreements, copyright laws, trademarks, intellectual property licenses and other contractual rights to establish and
protect our proprietary rights in our technology.

 
The protection provided by the patent laws is and will be important to our future opportunities. However, such patents and agreements and various other measures we

take to protect our intellectual property from use by others may not be effective for various reasons, including the following:
 
—the patents we have been granted may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented because of the pre-existence of similar patented or unpatented intellectual property

rights or for other reasons;
—the costs associated with enforcing patents, confidentiality and invention agreements or other intellectual property rights may make aggressive enforcement

impracticable; and
—current and future competitors may independently develop similar technology and/or duplicate our systems in a way that circumvents our patents.

 
Our patent applications may not result in issued patents, which may have a material adverse effect on our ability to prevent others from commercially exploiting

products similar to ours.
 
Our patent applications may not result in issued patents, which may have a material adverse effect on our ability to prevent others from commercially exploiting

products similar to ours.
 
We cannot be certain that we are the first creator of inventions covered by pending patent applications or the first to file patent applications on these inventions, nor can

we be certain that our pending patent applications will result in issued patents or that any of our issued patents will afford protection against a competitor. In addition, patent
applications that we intend to file in foreign countries are subject to laws, rules and procedures that differ from those of the United States, and thus we cannot be certain that
foreign patent applications related to issue United States patents will be issued. Furthermore, if these patent applications issue, some foreign countries provide significantly less
effective patent enforcement than in the United States.
 

The status of patents involves complex legal and factual questions and the breadth of claims allowed is uncertain. As a result, we cannot be certain that the patent
applications that we file will result in patents being issued, or that our patents and any patents that may be issued to us in the near future will afford protection against
competitors with similar technology. In addition, patents issued to us may be infringed upon or designed around by others and others may obtain patents that we need to license
or design around, either of which would increase costs and may adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results.

 
We rely on trade secret protections through confidentiality agreements with our employees, customers and other parties; the breach of such agreements could

adversely affect our business and results of operations.
 
We rely on trade secrets, which we seek to protect, in part, through confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with our employees, customers and other parties.

There can be no assurance that these agreements will not be breached, that we would have adequate remedies for any such breach or that our trade secrets will not otherwise
become known to or independently developed by competitors. To the extent that consultants, key employees or other third parties apply technological information
independently developed by them or by others to our proposed projects, disputes may arise as to the proprietary rights to such information that may not be resolved in our favor.
We may be involved from time to time in litigation to determine the enforceability, scope and validity of our proprietary rights. Any such litigation could result in substantial
cost and diversion of effort by our management and technical personnel.

 
Our production capacity might not be able to meet with growing market demand or changing market conditions.
 
We cannot give assurance that our production capacity will be able to meet our obligations and the growing market demand for our products in the future.

Furthermore, we may not be able to expand our production capacity in response to the changing market conditions. If we fail to meet demand from our customers, we may lose
our market share.
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Our business depends substantially on the continuing efforts of our executive officers, and our business may be severely disrupted if we lose their services.
 
We believe that our success is largely dependent upon the continued service of the members of our management team, who are critical to establishing our corporate

strategies and focus, and ensuring our continued growth. Our continued success will depend on our ability to attract and retain a qualified and competent management team in
order to manage our existing operations and support our expansion plans. Although we are not aware of any change, if any of our executive officers are unable or unwilling to
continue in their present positions, we may not be able to replace them readily, if at all. Therefore, our business may be severely disrupted, and we may incur additional
expenses to recruit and retain new officers. In addition, if any of our executives joins a competitor or forms a competing company, we may lose some of our customers.
 

Workforce reductions may impair our ability to comply with legal and regulatory requirements as a Public Company.
 
There can be no assurance that our management team will be able to implement and affect programs and policies in an effective and timely manner that adequately

respond to increased legal, regulatory compliance and reporting requirements imposed by such laws and regulations. Our failure to comply with such laws and regulations could
lead to the imposition of fines and penalties and further result in the deterioration of our business.

 
Compliance with changing regulations concerning corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses.
 
There have been changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(“Sarbanes-Oxley”), new regulations promulgated by the SEC and rules promulgated by the national securities exchanges. These new or changed laws, regulations and
standards are subject to varying interpretations in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance
is provided by regulatory and governing bodies, which could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to
disclosure and governance practices. As a result, our efforts to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards are likely to continue to result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities. Members of our Board of Directors and
our Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer could face an increased risk of personal liability in connection with the performance of their duties. As a result,
we may have difficulty attracting and retaining qualified directors and executive officers, which could harm our business. If the actions we take in our efforts to comply with
new or changed laws, regulations and standards differ from the actions intended by regulatory or governing bodies, we could be subject to liability under applicable laws or our
reputation may be harmed.
 

In addition, Sarbanes-Oxley specifically requires, among other things, that we maintain effective internal controls for financial reporting and disclosure of controls and
procedures. In particular, we must perform system and process evaluation and testing of our internal controls over financial reporting to allow management to report on the
effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley. Our testing, or the subsequent testing by our independent registered
public accounting firm, when required, may reveal deficiencies in our internal controls over financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses. Our compliance with
Section 404 will require that we incur substantial accounting expense and expend significant management efforts. We currently do not have an internal audit group, and we will
need to hire additional accounting and financial staff with appropriate public company experience and technical accounting knowledge. Moreover, if we are not able to comply
with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner, or if we or our independent registered public accounting firm identifies deficiencies in our internal controls over
financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses, the market price of our stock could decline, and we could be subject to sanctions or investigations by the SEC or
other regulatory authorities, which would require additional financial and management resources.
 

We may be required to obtain the approval of various government agencies to market our products.
 
Our products are subject to product safety regulations by Federal, state, and local organizations. Accordingly, we may be required, or may voluntarily determine to,

obtain approval of our products from one or more of the organizations engaged in regulating product safety. These approvals could require significant time and resources from
our technical staff, and, if redesign were necessary, could result in a delay in the introduction of our products in various markets and applications. There can be no assurance that
we will obtain any or all of the approvals that may be required to market our products.

 
We may face significant costs relating to environmental regulations.
 
Federal, state, and local regulations impose significant environmental requirements on the manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of various components of

advanced energy storage systems. Although we believe that our operations are in material compliance with current applicable environmental regulations, there can be no
assurance that changes in such laws and regulations will not impose costly compliance requirements on us or otherwise subject us to future liabilities. Moreover, Federal, state,
and local governments may enact additional regulations relating to the manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of components of advanced energy storage systems.
Compliance with such additional regulations could require us to devote significant time and resources and could adversely affect demand for our products. There can be no
assurance that additional or modified regulations relating to the manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of components of advanced energy systems will not be
imposed.
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We may face significant costs relating to Occupational Safety and Health Regulations
 
The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and other regulatory agencies have jurisdiction over the operations of our Vista, California

facility. Because of the risks generally associated with the assembly of advanced energy storage systems, we expect rigorous enforcement of applicable health and safety
regulations. Frequent audits by or changes in the regulations issued by Cal/OSHA, or other regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over our operations, may cause unforeseen
delays and require significant time and resources from our technical staff.
 
Risks Related to Our Common Stock and Market
 

The market price of our common stock can become volatile, leading to the possibility of its value being depressed at a time when you may want to sell your
holdings.

 
The market price of our common stock can become volatile. Numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, may cause the market price of our common

stock to fluctuate significantly. These factors include:
 

—our earnings releases, actual or anticipated changes in our earnings, fluctuations in our operating results or our failure to meet the expectations of financial market
analysts and investors;

—changes in financial estimates by us or by any securities analysts who might cover our stock;
—speculation about our business in the press or the investment community;
—significant developments relating to our relationships with our customers or suppliers;
—stock market price and volume fluctuations of other publicly traded companies and, in particular, those that are in our industry;
—limited “public float” in the hands of a small number of persons whose sales or lack of sales could result in positive or negative pricing pressure on the market price for

our common stock;
—customer demand for our products;
—investor perceptions of our industry in general and our Company in particular;
—general economic conditions and trends;
—announcements by us or our competitors of new products, significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships or divestitures;
—changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretation or principles;
—loss of external funding sources;
—sales of our common stock, including sales by our directors, officers or significant stockholders; and
—additions or departures of key personnel.

 
The ownership of our stock is highly concentrated in our management.

 
As of October 7, 2014, our present directors and executive officers, and their respective affiliates beneficially owned approximately 70.6% of our outstanding common

stock, including underlying options and warrants that were exercisable or which would become exercisable within 60 days.  As a result of their ownership, our directors and
executive officers and their respective affiliates collectively are able to significantly influence all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and
approval of significant corporate transactions.  This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control.

 
We do not intend to pay dividends on shares of our common stock for the foreseeable future.
 
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on shares of our common stock. We intend to retain any future earnings to fund the operation and expansion of our

business and, therefore, we do not anticipate paying cash dividends on shares of our common stock in the foreseeable future.
 
Our common stock is illiquid and this low trading volume may adversely affect the price of our common stock.
 
Our common stock currently is quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol “FLUX.” However, with limited trading history, a trading market that does not represent an

“established trading market,” a limited current public float, volatility in the bid and asked prices and the fact that our common stock is very thinly traded, you could lose all or a
substantial portion of your funds if you make an investment in us. In addition, potential dilutive effects of future sales of shares of common stock by us and our shareholders,
and subsequent sale of common stock by the holders of warrants and options, could have an adverse effect on the price of our securities, which could hinder our ability to raise
additional capital to fully implement our business, operating and development plans.
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Penny stock regulations affect our stock price, which may make it more difficult for investors to sell their stock.
 
Broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in “penny stocks” are regulated by certain penny stock rules adopted by the SEC. Penny stocks generally are

equity securities with a price per share of less than $5.00 (other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges or quoted on the NASDAQ Stock Market,
provided that current price and volume information with respect to transactions in such securities is provided by the exchange or system). The penny stock rules require a
broker-dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document that provides information about
penny stocks and the risks in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer must also provide the customer with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the
compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction, and monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s
account. In addition, the penny stock rules generally require that prior to a transaction in a penny stock the broker-dealer make a special written determination that the penny
stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction. These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing
the level of trading activity in the secondary market for a stock that becomes subject to the penny stock rules. Our securities are subject to the penny stock rules, and investors
may find it more difficult to sell their securities.
 

We may not have enough common stock authorized under our Articles of Incorporation to continue to raise capital through equity financing.
 

Our Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuance of up to 145,000,000 shares of common stock. As of October 7, 2014, 93,274,113 are issued and outstanding and
29,134,042 are reserved for our outstanding options, warrants and convertible notes. Without amending our Articles of Incorporation to increase the authorized number of
common stock, we may not have enough available shares of common stock to continue to with our equity financing. This may have an adverse effect on the Company’s future
cash flows and results of operations, and its ability to continue operating as a going concern.

 
Preferred Stock may be issued under our Articles of Incorporation.
 
Our Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuance of up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The preferred stock may be issued in one or more series, the terms of

which may be determined at the time of issuance. These terms may include voting rights including the right to vote as a series on particular matters, preferences as to dividends
and liquidation, conversion rights, redemption rights and sinking fund provisions. The issuance of any preferred stock could diminish the rights of holders of our common
stock, and therefore could reduce the value of such common stock.

 
We were a “shell company” and are subject to additional restrictions under Rule 144 on resales of our Restricted Securities.
 
The following is a quotation from subparagraph (i)(B)(2) of Rule 144: “Notwithstanding paragraph (i)(1), if the issuer of the securities previously had been an issuer

described in paragraph (i)(1)(i) but has ceased to be an issuer described in paragraph (i)(1)(i); is subject to the reporting requirements of section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act; has filed all reports and other materials required to be filed by section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as applicable, during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter
period that the issue was required to file such reports and materials), other than Form 8-K reports (§249.308 of this chapter); and has filed current “Form 10 information” with
the Commission reflecting its status as an entity that is no longer an issuer described in paragraph (i)(1)(i), then those securities may be sold subject to the requirements of this
section after one year has elapsed from the date that the issuer filed “Form 10 information” with the Commission.” As a “shell company” immediately prior to the Reverse
Acquisition, we are subject to additional restrictions under Rule 144 which provides that no sales of our restricted securities could be sold until we have complied with
subparagraph (i)(B)(2) of Rule 144.
 
 ITEM 1B — UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
 

None.
 
 ITEM 2 — PROPERTIES
 

 
Effective July 1, 2013, we relocated our principal office and manufacturing to the Epic Boats (an entity founded and controlled by Chris Anthony, our board member

and former Chief Executive Officer) facility in Vista, California. We entered into a month-to-month sublease agreement for shared space with Epic Boats.
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On March 1, 2014, the landlord terminated its lease with Epic Boats resulting in the termination of our previous sublease agreement with Epic Boats, and entered into a

lease with Flux Power as lessee. On February 25, 2014, Flux power entered into a two-year sublease agreement to rent the property, at $12,130 per month, with an annual
increase of 3%. The agreement provides for monthly payments of approximately 10% of the monthly rental payment. On March 26, 2014, Flux Power as the sub-lesser entered
into a new sublease agreement with Epic Boats as the sub-lessee, whereas Epic Boats agrees to pay Flux Power 10% of facility costs on a month to month basis, for a period no
longer than through the end of the two year lease agreement. We believe our facility at Vista, California provide adequate space for our current and projected needs.

 
The Company recorded rent expense, net of sublease income during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, of approximately $77,000 and approximately

$161,000, respectively.
 
 ITEM 3 — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

 
From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is subject to

inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business. To the best knowledge of management, there are
no material legal proceedings pending against the Company.
 
 ITEM 4 — MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
 

Not applicable.
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 PART II
  

 ITEM 5 — MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES
 
Market Data

 
Our common stock is quoted on the OTCQB under the stock symbol “FLUX.” The following table sets forth the range of the closing prices for our common stock

during each quarter for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2014, as set forth below.  Such prices do not represent actual transactions, and do not include retail mark-ups,
mark-downs or commissions.

 
  High   Low  
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2014         
First quarter  $ 0.15  $ 0.03 
Second quarter  $ 0.10  $ 0.04 
Third quarter  $ 0.40  $ 0.06 
Fourth quarter  $ 0.39  $ 0.19 
         
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2013         
First quarter  $ 2.25  $ 1.49 
Second quarter  $ 1.84  $ 0.84 
Third quarter  $ 1.70  $ 0.74 
Fourth quarter  $ 0.86  $ 0.10 

 
Shareholders

 
The approximate number of record holders of our common stocks as of October 7, 2014 was 1,376.

 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
 
Grants to Non-Executive Board Members.

 
As compensation for Board services provided to the Company, on March 13, 2014 the Board granted non-qualified stock options to purchase 300,000 shares of

common stock at an exercise price of $0.31 per share to each of the following directors: Messrs. Gevarges, Johnson and Anthony. The stock options vest over 2 years in
quarterly installments and expire on March 13, 2024.
 

The securities issued to the Board have not been registered under the Securities Act and have been issued pursuant to exemption available under Section 4(a)(2) of the
Securities Act.
 
Common Stock and Warrants
 
Private Placement Offering of Units – September 2014
 

As of October 7, 2014, we sold and aggregate of 1.58 units to 9 accredited investors (“Investors”) for total gross proceeds of $142,500, pursuant to which we issued
1,583,333 shares of common stocks and warrants to purchase up to 791,667 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable for three years and each warrant entitles the
holder to purchase one share of common stock at $0.25 per share. The units were offered only to accredited investors and the purchase price of each unit was $90,000 with each
unit consisting of 1,000,000 shares of common stock and 500,000 warrants. Security Research Associates, Inc. (“SRA”) served as our placement agent. We paid SRA $6,750
for the first $75,000 of gross proceeds and issued a warrant to purchase 75,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.09 for its services as our private
placement agent. The newly appointed director and executive chairman of the Board of Directors, Timothy Collins, is the Chief Executive Officer, President, director and
shareholder of SRA. The securities offered and sold have not been registered under the Securities Act. The securities were offered and sold in reliance upon exemptions from
registration pursuant to Rule 506 promulgated thereunder.
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Private Placement Offering of Units – March 2014
 

From January to March 2014, the Company conducted a Private Placement Offering of Units (“Offering”). The Units were offered only to accredited investors and the
purchase price of each Unit was $60,000, with each Unit consisting of 1,000,000 shares of common stock and 500,000 warrants. The warrants are exercisable for 5 years and
each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $0.20 per share. On March 12, 2014, the Company completed the Offering by
selling an aggregate of 32.4 Units to 41 accredited investors resulting in the conversion of debt to equity in the amount of $550,000 and cash proceeds of approximately
$1,394,000, and issuance of 32,400,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase up to 16,200,000 shares of common stock. The Offering was conducted in three
tranches. On January 13, 2014, we completed our first tranche of the Offering by selling 10 Units to Esenjay for an aggregate purchase price of $600,000, of which (i) $200,000
was paid in cash, and (ii) $400,000 was a conversion of $400,000 of principal amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as amended (see Note 5). In connection with
Esenjay’s purchase of the Units, we issued 10,000,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase up to 5,000,000 shares of our common stock. On February 14,
2014, we completed our second tranche of the Offering by selling 2.8 Units to five accredited investors for an aggregate purchase price of $168,000, all of which were paid in
cash. In connection with the closing of the second tranche, we issued a total of 2,800,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase up to 1,400,000 shares of our
common stock. On March 12, 2014, we completed the final tranche, to a cumulative total of 41 accredited investors, of the Offering by closing on the sale of 19.6 Units for total
purchase price of $1,176,000, pursuant to which we issued 19,600,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase up to 9,800,000 shares of common stock. Esenjay
participated in the final tranche by purchasing a total of 2.5 Units for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000, of which the $150,000 was a conversion of principal amount
outstanding under the Revolving Note, as amended (see Note 5).

 
Security Research Associates Inc. (“SRA”) of San Francisco served as Company’s placement agent in connection with the March Offering. The Company engaged

SRA for services rendered in conjunction with this Offering and paid cash compensation in the amount of 9% of the gross proceeds raised and a warrant to purchase the number
of shares of common stock equal to 9% of the aggregate gross proceeds from the Offering received by the Company from all investors placed by SRA divided by $0.06 per
share. The Company paid SRA $107,460 and issued a warrant to purchase 1,791,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.06 for its services as the Company’s
private placement agent in the Offering. The newly appointed director and executive chairman of the Board of Directors, Timothy Collins, is the Chief Executive Officer,
President, director and shareholder of SRA.

 
In connection with the Offering, the Company inadvertently in error issued duplicate stock certificates representing an aggregate of 600,000 shares of common stock

of the Company. As a result, there was an additional 600,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding on the records of the Company’s transfer agent as of June 30,
2014. The Company has already corrected this error. The number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding reflected in the financial statements and these notes
exclude 600,000 shares of common stock which were inadvertently issued in error. All such common share certificates have been returned as of July 2014.

 
The securities offered and sold in the Offering have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”). The Securities were offered

and sold to accredited investors in reliance upon exemptions from registration pursuant to Rule 506 promulgated thereunder.
 
Conversion of Debt to Equity - June 2014
 

On June 11, 2014, the Company converted all $2,586,000 of outstanding principal and $304,000 of accrued interest related to the Revolving Note, Bridge Note and
Line of Credit, into common stock and warrants, eliminating all of Flux’s long and short-term debt. Flux Power’s largest shareholder, Esenjay Investments LLC, converted all of
its long-term debt and accrued interest into 12.1 million shares of Flux Power restricted common stock at a price of $0.24 per share. Esenjay was also granted 3-year warrants to
purchase 1.9 million shares of common stock at $0.30 per share, as an incentive for the conversion. The exchange has been accounted for as a capital transaction in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic No. 470-50-40, “ Debt, Modifications and Extinguishments”.
Accordingly, no gain or loss has been recognized.

 
Purchases of Equity Securities

 
We have never repurchased any of our equity securities.

 
Dividends

 
The Company did not declare or pay dividends on its common stock during fiscal years 2014 and 2013 and we presently do not expect to declare or pay such dividends

in the foreseeable future and expect to reinvest all undistributed earnings to expand our operations, which the management believes would be of the most benefit to our
shareholders. The declaration of dividends, if any, will be subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors, which may consider such factors as our results of operations,
financial condition, capital needs and acquisition strategy, among others.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

 
Information for our equity compensation plans in effect as of the end of fiscal year 2014 is as follows:
 

  (a)   (b)   (c)  

  

Number of securities
to be issued upon

exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights   

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights   

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column a) 

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders   N/A  N/A   0 
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders   6,335,695   $ 0.19   0 
Total   6,335,695  $ 0.19   0 
 
* Consists of 1,424,722 options granted under the 2010 Stock Option Plan (“Option Plan”) and assumed by the Company in a Reverse Acquisition. An additional 4,910,973
“non-qualified” options were issued for a total outstanding at June 30, 2014 of 6,335,695. No additions shares of common stock may be granted under the Option Plan.
  
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
 
Common Stock
 

We are authorized to issue up to 145,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share. Each outstanding share of common stock entitles the holder thereof
to one vote per share on all matters. Our bylaws provide that any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the
remaining directors though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors.
 

The holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to dividends out of funds legally available when and as declared by our Board of Directors. Our Board of
Directors has never declared a dividend and does not anticipate declaring a dividend in the foreseeable future. Should we decide in the future to pay dividends, as a holding
company, our ability to do so and meet other obligations depends upon the receipt of dividends or other payments from our operating subsidiary and other holdings and
investments. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock are entitled to receive, ratably, the net assets available to stockholders after
payment of all creditors.

 
To the extent that additional shares of our common stock are issued, the relative interests of existing stockholders will be diluted.

 
Preferred Stock
 

We may issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value of $0.001 in one or more classes or series within a class pursuant to our Articles of Incorporation.
There are currently no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.
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 ITEM 6 — SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

 
As a Smaller Reporting Company as defined by Rule12b-2 of the Exchange Act and in item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing scaled disclosure reporting

obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item.
 

 ITEM 7 — MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
The following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the Company’s results of

operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements and Notes thereto contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

 
Some of the statements contained in the following discussion of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations refer to future expectations or include

other “forward-looking” information. Those statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause the actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by these statements. The forward-looking information is based on various factors and was derived from numerous assumptions. See
“Special Note regarding Forward Looking Statements” included in this Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of factors to be considered when evaluating forward-looking
information detailed below. These factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from the forward looking statements.
 
Overview

 
We design, develop and sell rechargeable advanced energy storage systems. We have developed an innovative high power battery cell management system (“BMS”)

and have structured our business around this core technology. Our proprietary BMS provides three critical functions to our battery systems:
 
· Cell Balancing: This is performed by continuously adjusting the capacity of each cell in a storage system according to temperature, voltage, and internal impedance

metrics. This management assures longevity of the overall system.
 
· Monitoring: This is performed through temperature probes, a physical connection to individual cells for voltage and calculations from basic metrics to determine

remaining capacity and internal impedance. This monitoring assures accurate measurements to best manage the system and assure longevity.
 
· Error reporting: This is performed by analyzing data from monitoring each individual cell and making decisions on whether the individual cell or the system is

operating out of normal specifications. This error reporting is crucial to system management as it ensures ancillary devices are not damaging your storage system
and will give the operator an opportunity to take corrective action to maintain long overall system life.

 
Using our proprietary battery management technology, we are able to offer completely integrated energy storage solutions or custom modular standalone systems to

our clients. In addition, we have also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that accompany and enhance the abilities of our BMS to meet the needs of
the growing advanced energy storage market.

 
We sold our first validated product in the second quarter of 2010 and have since delivered over 14 mega watt-hours of advanced energy storage to predominately to

clients in the electrical vehicle industry. However, since the end of FY 2013, we have shifted our focused and efforts  primarily to lift equipment market targeting dealers and
distributors, and secondarily, with the non-OEM micro-grid market. We anticipate that these markets will be the strongest for aggressive revenue growth over the coming year.

 
Two years ago, our work with NACCO under a Prototype Agreement confirmed that our advanced energy storage systems can address a broad range of lift equipment.

However, a proprietary arrangement with an OEM partner proved to be elusive and time consuming. In addition, working exclusively with one manufacturer would
significantly limit our market opportunity. As such, we have shifted our focus from proprietary OEM partner to a national distribution network across all OEM markets, which
pose fewer barriers to entry. Currently, we are working with various OEMs, their dealers and battery distributors to bring our advanced energy storage systems to the lift
equipment market.

 
The micro-grid market includes working with companies to provide mobile and man-portable advanced energy storage to act as gas generator replacements and

convenient mobile power for lighting, disaster preparedness, communications and water filtration. We have demonstration units currently being evaluated by the U.S. military
providing us with their assessment and feedback. Additionally, we have placed solar, grid-tie energy storage in an office setting facility to evaluate the results of the output to
meet operational needs.
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Proposed Acquisition

 
In June 2013, we entered into a non-binding letter of intent (“LOI”) to acquire KleenSpeed Technologies (“KleenSpeed”), a company controlled by Tim Collins, our

executive chairman. KleenSpeed develops technology for distributed energy markets, including grid storage. The LOI proposes that upon the successful closing of the
acquisition, KleenSpeed will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Flux Power. While the specific terms of the acquisition will be announced upon the execution of a definitive
agreement, the acquisition is expected to be completed within the next twelve months. The LOI contemplates that 11 million shares of our common stock would be issued to
KleenSpeed shareholders upon closing as consideration for the purchase of KleenSpeed. As of October 7, 2014, we are still pursuing acquisition of KleenSpeed but have yet to
sign a definitive agreement.

 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

 
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and the related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our
estimates based on its historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

 
We believe the following critical accounting policies and estimates affect the preparation of our financial statements:
 

Inventory Valuation
 
Inventories consist primarily of batteries, battery management systems and the related subcomponents, and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.

Prepaid inventory represents deposits made by us for inventory purchases. We evaluate inventories to determine if write-downs are necessary due to obsolescence or if the
inventory levels are in excess of anticipated demand at market value based on consideration of historical sales and product development plans. We recorded an adjustment
related to obsolete inventory in the amount of approximately $29,000 and $77,000 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Revenue Recognition

 
We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, price is fixed or determinable, and collectability of the selling price is

reasonably assured. Delivery occurs when risk of loss is passed to the customer, as specified by the terms of the applicable customer agreements. When a right of return or
consignment exists, contractually or implied, we recognize revenue on the sell-through method. Under this method, revenue is not recognized upon delivery of the inventory
components. Instead, we record deferred revenue upon delivery and recognize revenue when the inventory components are sold through to the end user.

 
There was no deferred revenue recognized during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 or accrued at June 30, 2014 or 2013. During the twelve months ended June

30, 2013, we recognized approximately $480,000 of previously deferred revenue (as the right of return was waived) and the related product cost of approximately $429,000.
  
Classification of Equity Instruments
 

We follow FASB ASC Topic No. 815, Derivatives and Hedging to classify and value warrant liabilities. Warrants classified as derivative liabilities are recorded at
their fair values at the issuance date and are revalued at each subsequent reporting date, using a Monte Carlo simulation (“MCS”). A MCS model uses a simulation technique to
generate multiple random price paths for the stock price to simulate many possible future outcomes, which are then discounted at the risk-free rate. These simulated paths are
then averaged to determine the fair value of the warrants (see Note 8, to the financial statements). 

 
We have certain outstanding warrants, issued in 2013, that offer the holders of such warrants protection against dilution whereby the exercise price of the warrants can

be adjusted if the Company completes a subsequent round of financing at less than $1 per share. This provision requires the warrants issued in 2013 be accounted for as
derivative liabilities (See Note 7, to the financial statements).
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Share-based Compensation

 
We account for share-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic No. 718, “Compensation—Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718”) and ASC 505-

50, Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees (“ASC 505-50”) requiring the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards based
on estimated grant or measurement date fair values. ASC Topic No. 718 and ASC Topic No.505-50 require the use of subjective assumptions, including expected stock price
volatility, forfeitures and the estimated term of each award. If actual results differ significantly from our estimates, stock-based compensation expense and our results of
operations could be materially impacted.

 
Segment and Related Information
 

We operate as a single reportable segment.
 
Comparison of Results of Operations
 
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013
 
Net Income (Loss)

 
During 2014, we reported net loss of approximately $4,299,000, as compared to a net income of approximately $351,000 in fiscal 2013. Excluding the impact of the

change in fair value of warrant derivative liability of $5,731,000, we would have reported a net loss of $5,380,000 in fiscal 2013.
 

Revenues
 

We currently sell products primarily through a distribution network of equipment dealers and battery distributors in North America. This distribution network mostly
sells to large company, national accounts. We do sell certain battery packs directly to other accounts including industrial equipment manufacturers and third party integrators
serving the military.

 
Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, decreased by approximately $414,000, or 54%, compared to the year ended June 30, 2013. This large decrease in sales

was primarily attributable to the deferred revenue recognized in FY 2013 of $480,000.
 
We have narrowed our focus to product segments including “lift equipment” and “micro-grid energy storage”. We feel that we are well positioned to address these

markets, which include applications such as industrial electric vehicles like electric forklifts, floor scrubbers, back-up power, grid-tie power, solar storage, electric service
vehicles, pallet drivers, and mobile cooling units. However, we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in transitioning companies in these segments from legacy lead-acid
technologies to our advanced energy storage solutions.

 
Cost of Revenues

 
Cost of revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, decreased approximately $433,000 or 57% compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This large decrease

in cost of revenues was attributable to decrease in related sales costs as discussed above.
 
Gross Profit

 
Gross profit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, increased by approximately $19,000 or 119%, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Gross profit as a

percentage of revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, increased to 10% compared to 2% in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The increase in gross profit primarily
relates to a reduction in the write-off of obsolete inventory of $48,000 from $77,000 for fiscal 2013 to $29,000 for fiscal 2014, which was partially offset by an overall reduction
in gross profit as a result of decreased sales, due to the one-time recognition of deferred revenue as noted above.
 
Selling and Administrative Expenses

 
Selling and administrative expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $1,659,000 and $2,659,000, respectively. Such expenses

consist primarily of salaries and personnel related expenses, stock-based compensation expense, public company costs, consulting costs, professional fees and other expenses.
The decrease of approximately $1,000,000 or 38% was primarily due to a May 2013 reduction in staffing and overhead.

 
Amortization of Prepaid Advisory Fees

 
Amortization of prepaid advisory fees for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $1,561,000 and $1,629,000, respectively. The prepaid

advisory fees are related to the fair value of the warrants issued under an advisory agreement with Baytree Capital dated June 14, 2012, and to value of the shares of our
common stock issued pursuant to the same agreement where Baytree Capital agreed to provide us with business and advisory services. Additionally, we have issued common
stock to other consultants for payment of advisory services that are amortized and included in the amount of amortized prepaid advisory fees for the twelve months ended June
30, 2014.
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Research and Development Expense

 
Research and development expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $536,000 and $992,000, respectively. Such expenses

consist primarily of materials, supplies, salaries and personnel related expenses, stock-based compensation expense, consulting costs and other expenses. The decrease of
approximately $456,000 or 46% was primarily due to decreases increase in personnel costs and benefits, and an overall material and supplies consumption due to cost cutting
measures and a shift from product development to launch and production of our lift equipment products, beginning January 1, 2014, as described further in “Current Business
Strategy” under Item 1.

 
Change in Fair Value of Warrant Derivative Liability
 

We follow FASB ASC Topic No. 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”) in connection with financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis subsequent to initial recognition. Changes in the warrant derivative liability fair value during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 resulted in expense of
approximately $330,000 and a gain of $5,731,000, respectively (see Note 10, to the financial statements). During the year ended June 30, 2014, as a result of anti-dilution
provisions in the outstanding warrants, the Company re-priced its outstanding warrants issued under the 2012 Private Placement closings to a lower exercise price, resulting in a
revaluation of the warrants as compared to prior periods (see Note 7, to the financial statements). The impact of the re-pricing was a reduction in the outstanding warrant
liability of $98,000, which was recorded in equity, as this was deemed to be an expense relating to an equity financing. The warrant liability and revaluations have not had a
cash impact on the Company’s working capital, liquidity or business operations. The increase in fair value of warrant derivative liabilities resulting from new warrants and the
change in the estimated fair value of derivative liabilities that we recorded during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, related to warrants issued in connection
with our private placement transactions and Baytree Advisory Agreement (see Note 7, to the financial statements).
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
Overview
 

As of June 30, 2014, we had a cash balance of approximately $116,000, negative working capital of approximately $887,000 and an accumulated deficit of
approximately $8,276,000. We do not have sufficient liquidity and capital resources to fund planned operations through our fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. See “Future
Liquidity Needs” below.

  
Cash Flows
 
Operating Activities

 
Our operating activities resulted in net cash used in operations of approximately $2,151,000, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 compared to net cash used in

operations of approximately $3,371,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
 

The net cash used in operating activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 reflects our use of proceeds to build the business including launching lift equipment
products and increasing expenditures such as additional marketing and research and development. The net loss of approximately $4,299,000 was offset by non-cash items
including; depreciation of approximately $55,000, amortization of prepaid advisory fees of approximately $1,561,000 stock-based compensation of approximately $239,000, an
increase in accrued expenses of $8,000, changes in the fair value of warrants issued of approximately $330,000, a decrease of $47,000 in other assets, stock issued for services
of $152,000 and a decrease in inventories of $104,000 (net of $29,000 valuation adjustment to inventory). These reductions of the net loss were supplemented by increases of
$29,000 for the write-off of obsolete inventory, changes in deposits of $7,000, a decrease in accounts payable of approximately $50,000, a decrease of $127,000 in accounts
receivable and a decrease of $135,000 in accrued interest.

 
The  net cash used in operating activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 reflects our use of proceeds to build the business including increasing expenditures

such as additional marketing and research and development. We generated $3,371,000 of cash outflows primarily due to the payment of operating expenses of $2,483,000 and
R&D expenses of $982,000. Non-cash activity was total net reduction to expense of $3,877,000, which did not affect our cash flows from operating activities.
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Investing Activities
 

Net cash used in investing activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist primarily of purchases of equipment of approximately $4,000 and $41,000,
respectively and $3,000 proceeds from the sale of one fixed asset for fiscal 2014.
 
Financing Activities
 

Net cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $2,248,000 and $2,620,000, respectively. The increase in
financing activities is the result of additional requirements for capital.
 
Future Liquidity Needs

 
We have evaluated our expected cash requirements over the next twelve months, which include, but are not limited to, investments in additional sales and marketing and

product development resources, capital expenditures, and working capital requirements and have determined that our existing cash resources are not sufficient to meet our
anticipated needs during the next twelve months, and that additional financing is required to support current operations. Based on our current and planned levels of expenditure,
we estimate that total financing proceeds of approximately $2 million will be required to fund current and planned operations through June 30, 2015. In addition, we anticipate
that further additional financing may be required to fund our business plan subsequent to that date, until such time as revenues and related cash flows become sufficient to
support our operating costs.

 
 We intend to continue to seek capital through the private placement of securities. We launched a round of private placement in August 2014 with the intent of raising

$990,000, of which $142,500 has been raised as of October 7, 2014. The timing of our need for additional capital will depend in part on our future operating performance in
terms of revenue growth and the level of operating expenses and capital expenditures incurred. Early in 2015, we plan to raise another $1 million to achieve our target of $2
million mentioned above. We are exploring alternative financing options and investment structures that may provide us with additional cash funding.

 
Although management believes that the additional required funding will be obtained, there is no guarantee we will be able to obtain the additional required funds in the

future or that funds will be available on terms acceptable to us. If such funds are not available, management will be required to curtail its investments in additional sales and
marketing and product development resources, and capital expenditures, which may have a material adverse effect on our future cash flows and results of operations, and its
ability to continue operating as a going concern.

 
To the extent that we raise additional funds by issuing equity or debt securities, our shareholders may experience additional significant dilution and such financing

may involve restrictive covenants. To the extent that we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements, it may be necessary to relinquish some rights
to our technologies or our product candidates, or grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. Such actions may have a material adverse effect on our business.

 
Additionally, the stabilizing economy during 2014 provides less uncertainty of market demand for industrial equipment, but is no guarantee of demand for Flux

products.
 
Going Concern
 

For the year ended and through June 30, 2014, we incurred net losses from operations and have incurred an accumulated deficit of approximately $4,299,000 and
$8,276,000, respectively. In addition, as of June 30, 2014 we had limited available cash balances and negative working capital, and were in need of additional capital to fund
operations. In their report on the annual consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, our independent auditors included an explanatory paragraph in
which they expressed substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability
to raise additional capital on a timely basis until such time as revenues and related cash flows are sufficient to fund our operations. Management’s plans are to continue to seek
funding, as necessary, through private placements of equity securities.

 
The issuance of additional equity securities by us could result in a significant dilution in the equity interests of our current stockholders. (See Note 2, to the financial

statements)
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

 
As of June 30, 2014, we did not have any other relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partners, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or

special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. As
such, we are not exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

 
In June 2014, The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-12 regarding ASC topic No. 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation. The standard

requires a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period to be treated as a performance condition. To account for such
awards, a reporting entity should apply existing guidance in FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation, as it relates to awards
with performance conditions that affect vesting. ASU 2014-12 is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15,
2015. Early adoption is permitted. We do not believe the adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

 
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 regarding ASC Topic No. 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard provides principles for

recognizing revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers with the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The guidance is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2018 using either of two methods: (i) retrospective to each prior reporting period presented with the option
to elect certain practical expedients as defined within the guidance; or (ii) retrospective with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date of
initial application and proving certain additional disclosures as defined per the guidance. Early adoption is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the accounting, transition
and disclosure requirements of the standard and cannot currently estimate the financial impact of adoption.

 
In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740) – Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss

Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. The standard requires us to present an unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction of a deferred tax asset for
a net operating loss (NOL) carryforward or other tax credit carryforward when settlement in this manner is available under applicable tax law. The guidance is effective for us in
the first quarter of fiscal 2015 and will be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. We do not believe the adoption of his guidance will have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

 
 ITEM 7A — QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 

The Company is a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and is not required to provide the information required under this item.
 

 ITEM 8 — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
 

The financial statements required by this item begin on page F-1 with the index to financial statements followed by the financial statements.
 
 ITEM 9 — CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
 

None
 
 ITEM 9A - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

 
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as of the end of the period

covered by this report, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Act of 1934. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be included in
our Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, relating to
the Company, including our consolidated subsidiaries, and was made known to them by others within those entities, particularly during the period when this report was being
prepared. Based on the management's assessment and review of our financial statements and results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective for purposes stated above.

 
 (a) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

 
The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal control

over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. All internal control systems, no matter how well
designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurances with respect to financial statement
preparation and presentation. Additionally, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Our management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules

13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. As of June 30, 2014, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based
on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Based on the assessment, management determined that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of June 30, 2014 based on the COSO criteria.

  
This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm regarding the effectiveness

of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, as such report is not required due to the Company’s status as a smaller reporting company.
 

Change in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
 
 ITEM 9B — OTHER INFORMATION
 

None.
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 PART III
 

 ITEM 10 — DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 
Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Employees
 
Identification of Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Employees
 

The following table and text set forth the names and ages of our current directors, executive officers and significant employees as of the date of this report. Our Board
of Directors is comprised of only one class. All of the directors will serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors are elected and qualified, or
until their earlier death, retirement, resignation or removal. There are no family relationships among any of the directors and executive officers. Our Board of Director members
are not paid for their service.

 
Name  Age  Position
Timothy Collins  74  Executive Chairman
Ronald F. Dutt  67  Director, Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer, and Interim Corporate

Secretary
Christopher L. Anthony  38  Director and former Chief Executive Officer and President
Michael Johnson  66  Director
James Gevarges  49  Director
 

There are no arrangements or understandings between our directors and executive officers and any other person pursuant to which any director or officer was or is to
be selected as a director or officer.
 
Business Experience

 
Timothy Collins, Executive Chairman. Mr. Collins is co-founder, Chairman and President of KleenSpeed Technologies, Inc. KleenSpeed, which develops lithium-

ion energy storage systems for industrial, solar and smart home applications, and is also known for its record-setting electric racecar. Mr. Collins is also CEO of Security
Research Associates (SRA), a San Francisco-based investment banking firm specializing in emerging growth companies in technology, cleantech and life sciences. SRA was
placement manager for Flux’s recently completed $1.94 million private financing. Mr. Collins became a principal with a small NASD firm, F.I. Dupont, in Denver at the age of
23 and, a year later, bought the balance of the firm and changed the name to Collins Securities Corporation (CSC). CSC quickly gained a foothold in the institutional equity
community by recognizing the private demand for Uranium created by the construction of numerous nuclear power plants. CSC expanded by opening offices in New York and
Los Angeles. The firm broadened its research to the technology sectors. CSC completed several public offerings and banking assignments, which included the IPO of
Sensormatic Electronics and the sale of Shakey’s Pizza Parlors. In 1975 Mr. Collins exited the securities business and formed United Mining Corporation (UMC), which
focused on gold and silver exploration and development. UMC’s corporate headquarters moved to Reno, NV and developed projects in Nevada, Washington state and Bolivia.
UMC became traded on the Vancouver Exchange and subsequently NASDAQ. The price of metals and economics led the company to sell off the projects, which was completed
in 1990. Mr. Collins joined L.H. Alton in San Francisco in 1993 and joined Van Kasper & Co. in January 1994 as Head of Institutional Sales. He served as VP at Van Kasper,
which was purchased by First Security Bank and subsequently at Wells Fargo bank in August of 2005 he joined SRA in 2005 as Managing Director. Mr. Collins became
President and CEO of SRA in February of 2012. Mr. Collins received his BSBA from the University of Denver.
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Ronald F. Dutt. Director, Chief Executive Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer, Director and Interim Corporate Secretary. Mr. Dutt has been our Chief Executive

Officer, Interim Chief Financial Officer and Director since March 19, 2014. Previously he was our Chief Financial Officer since December 7, 2012 and our interim Chief
Executive Officer since June 28, 2013. Mr. Dutt has served the Company’s interim Corporate Secretary since June 28, 2013. Mr. Dutt will serve as the interim of Chief
Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary until the Company and Board replaces the position(s) with qualified individuals. Prior to Flux Power, Mr. Dutt provided Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer consulting services during 2008 through 2012. In this capacity Mr. Dutt provided financial consulting, including strategic
business modeling and managed operations. Prior to 2008, Mr. Dutt served in several capacities as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer for various
public and private companies including SOLA International, Directed Electronics, Fritz Companies DHL Americas, Aptera Motors, Inc., and Visa International. Currently, Mr.
Dutt serves as a board member of Rising International, a not-for-profit organization in Santa Cruz, California since 2011, and as a board advisor for Tyga-Box Systems, a New
York City based company since 2011. Rising International and Tyga-Box are not affiliates of the Company. Mr. Dutt holds an MBA in Finance from University of Washington
and an undergraduate degree in Chemistry from the University of North Carolina. Additionally, Mr. Dutt served in the United States Navy and received an honorable discharge
as a Lieutenant.

 
Christopher L. Anthony, Director. Mr. Anthony has been a board member since June 14, 2012 and was the Company’s Chief Executive Officer from June 14, 2012

to June 28, 2013. Prior to the Company’s Reverse Acquisition of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., in June 2012 Mr. Anthony served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Flux
Power since it was incorporated in 2009. Mr. Anthony is the founder and a majority owner of Epic Boats, LLC (“Epic Boats”) a Delaware Corporation and has served as an
R&D advisor since it was founded in 2002 and also served as Chief Executive Officer though October 2010. On June 28, 2013 Mr. Anthony resigned as Flux Power’s Chief
Executive Officer to return full time to his position as Chief Executive Officer of Epic Boats to manage the day to day operations. Epic Boats is primarily engaged in the
business of providing recreational and competitive watercrafts, including an electric wake boarding boat. From 2005 to 2009 Mr. Anthony served as the Chief Operating Officer
of Aptera Motors, Inc., a Delaware company engaged in the business of manufacturing a three-wheel electric car (“Aptera Motors”) and was a Director of that company from
2005 to 2010. Aptera Motors and Epic Boats are not affiliates of the Company. Mr. Anthony is an expert in energy storage, electric propulsion systems, and advanced
composite manufacturing processes. He has significant experience building advanced products in the marine and commuter vehicle industries. Mr. Anthony has a Bachelor’s of
Science degree in finance from the Cameron School of Business.

 
Michael Johnson, Director. Mr. Johnson has been our director since July 12, 2012. Mr. Johnson has been a director of Flux Power since it was incorporated. Since

2002, Mr. Johnson has been a director and the Chief Executive Officer of Esenjay Petroleum Corporation (“Esenjay Petroleum”), a Delaware company located in Corpus
Christi, Texas which is engaged in the business oil exploration and production. Mr. Johnson’s primary responsibility at Esenjay Petroleum is to manage the business and
company as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Johnson is director and shareholder of Esenjay Investments LLC, a Delaware company engaged in business of investing in companies,
and an affiliate of the Company beneficially owning approximately 52.2% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company. As a result of Mr. Johnson’s leadership and
business experience he is an industry expert in the natural gas exploration industry and brings a wealth of management and successful company building experience to the
board. Mr. Johnson received a BS degree in mechanical engineering from the University of Southwestern Louisiana in 1971.

 
James Gevarges, Director. Mr. Gevarges has been our director since July 14, 2012. Mr. Gevarges has been a director of Flux Power since it was incorporated. Mr.

Gevarges is the President, Chief Executive Officer, and a majority owner of Current Ways, Inc., a California company engaged in the business of manufacturing chargers and
other components for electric vehicles, which he founded in 2010. Current Ways, Inc. is not an affiliate of the Company. Since 1991 Mr. Gevarges has also been a Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of LHV Power Corporation (formerly known as HiTek Power, Corp) (“LHV Power”), a California company located in Santee, California which is
engaged in the business of designing, manufacturing and marketing of power supply systems. Mr. Gevarges is the sole owner of LHV Power. LHV Power is not an affiliate of
the Company. Mr. Gevarges’ primary responsibilities at LHV Power are to manage the company and business as Chief Executive Officer and President. As a result of Mr.
Gevarges’ management and industry experience he is a power supply industry expert and brings an enormous amount of manufacturing and successful company management
experience to the Company. Mr. Gevarges has a Bachelor’s of Science degree in electrical engineering from Louisiana State University.
 
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

 
To the best of our knowledge, during the past ten years, none of our directors or executive officers were involved in any of the following: (1) any bankruptcy petition

filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; (2)
any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses); (3) being subject to any order,
judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities or banking activities; and (4) being found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the
Securities and Exchange Commission or the Commodities Futures Trading Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has
not been reversed, suspended or vacated.
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Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight
 
The Board does not have a policy as to whether the roles of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate. Instead, the Board makes this determination

based on what best serves our Company’s needs at any given time.
 
In its governance role, and particularly in exercising its duty of care and diligence, the Board is responsible for ensuring that appropriate risk management policies and

procedures are in place to protect the company’s assets and business. Our Board has broad and ultimate oversight responsibility for our risk management processes and
programs and executive management is responsible for the day-to-day evaluation and management of risks to the Company.
 
Audit Committee

 
We have not adopted an audit committee charter. Our Board of Directors serves the function of the audit committee. The Board of Directors intends to establish an

audit committee in the future.
 
Audit Committee Financial Expert

 
Our Board of Directors has not established a separate audit committee within the meaning of Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

(the “Exchange Act”). Instead, our entire Board of Directors acts as the audit committee within the meaning of Section 3(a)(58)(B) of the Exchange Act. In addition, our Board
of Directors has not made a determination as to whether a director on the Board meets the definition of an “audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of Item 407(d)
(5) of Regulation S-K. We continue to seek candidates for outside directors and for a financial expert to serve on a separate audit committee when we establish one.
 

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Board has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with management and discussed with the independent
auditors the matters required to be discussed by PCAOB Standard 16, formerly SAS 61. Management is responsible for the financial statements and the reporting process,
including the system of internal controls. The independent auditors are responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited financial statements with
generally accepted accounting principles.

 
The Board of Directors discussed with the independent auditors, the auditors’ independence from the management of the Company and received written disclosures

and the letter from the independent accountants required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1.
 

After Board of Director’s review and discussions, as mentioned above, the Board of Directors recommended that the audited financial statements be included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.
 
Compensation Committee and Governance and Nomination Committee

 
We have not adopted a compensation committee and governance committee charters. The Board of Directors currently serves these functions. The Board of Directors

will consider establishing a compensation committee and governance committee in the future. There were no material changes to the procedures by which security holders may
recommend nominees to our Board of Directors.
 
Code of Conduct and Ethics

 
We have not adopted a Code of Conduct for our Chief Executive Officer and Senior Executive Officers.

 
Indemnification Agreements
 

We executed a standard form of indemnification agreement (“Indemnification Agreement”) with each of our Board members and executive officers (each, an
“Indemnitee”).

 
Pursuant to and subject to the terms, conditions and limitations set forth in the Indemnification Agreement, we agreed to indemnify each Indemnitee, against any and

all expenses incurred in connection with the Indemnitee’s service as our officer, director and or agent, or is or was serving at our request as a director, officer, employee, agent
or advisor of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, limited liability company, or other entity or enterprise but only if the Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a
manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to our best interest, and in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was
unlawful. In addition, the indemnification provided in the indemnification agreement is applicable whether or not negligence or gross negligence of the Indemnitee is alleged or
proven. Additionally, the Indemnification
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Agreement establishes processes and procedures for indemnification claims, advancement of expenses and costs and contribution obligations.

 
Compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
 

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our executive officers and directors and persons who own more than 10% of a registered
class of our equity securities, to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (hereinafter referred to as the “Commission”) initial statements of beneficial ownership,
reports of changes in ownership and Annual Reports concerning their ownership, of Common Stock and other of our equity securities on Forms 3, 4, and 5, respectively.
Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by Commission regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based
solely on information available to us in public filings, we believe that all reports required by Section 16(a) for transactions in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, were timely
filed except for the late Form 4 filing by Michael Johnson and the late filing of Forms 3 and 4 by Timothy Collins.
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 ITEM 11 — EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
 
Compensation for our Named Executive Officers
 

The following table sets forth information concerning all forms of compensation earned by our named executive officers during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013
and 2014 for services provided to us and our subsidiaries. None of our current executive officers earned compensation that exceeded $100,000 during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013.

 

Name and Principal Position  Year  
Salary

($)   
Bonus
($) (1)   

Stock
Awards ($)

(2)   

Option
Awards ($)

(3)   

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($) (4)   
All Other

Compensation ($)   Total ($)  
                               
Ronald F. Dutt (5),  2014  $ 146,681  $ —  $ —  $ 108,937  $ —  $ —  $ 255,618 
Chief Executive  Officer, Interim Chief

Financial Officer, Director and Interim
Corporate Secretary  2013  $ 69,881  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 69,881 

                               
Christopher L. Anthony (6),  2014  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 

Director and former Chief Executive
Officer  2013  $ 174,427  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 174,427 

                               
Stephen G. Jackson (7),  2014  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 
Former Chief Financial Officer and Chief

Operating Officer  2013  $ 85,985  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 85,985 
 

(1)Amounts listed under the “Bonus” column for fiscal 2014 and 2013 reflect the discretionary bonuses paid (if any) to each of the Named Executive Officers.
(2)The “Stock Awards” column is the grant date fair value of stock awards issued during each respective year, adjusted where applicable for our assessment of the probability that

performance conditions will be achieved. The grant date fair value was determined in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic No. 718. There were no stock
awards issued in fiscal ended June 30, 2014 or 2013.

(3)The “Option Awards” column is the grant date fair value of stock options granted during each respective year, adjusted where applicable for our assessment of the probability
that performance conditions will be achieved. The grant date fair value was determined in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic No. 718 using the Black-
Scholes valuation model with assumptions described in more detail in the notes to our audited financial statements included in this report. None of the stock options with
performance conditions that were granted in fiscal ended June 30, 2014 or 2013 were considered probable of achieving their vesting conditions at the date of grant. Therefore
the grant date fair value of such performance awards for purposes of the Summary Compensation Table was zero.

(4)There were no bonuses paid in fiscal 2014 or 2013 related to Incentive Plan performance.
(5)Mr. Dutt’s Employment Agreement effective December 11, 2012 provided for option grants of 200,000 and on July 30, 2013, Mr. Dutt was granted 1,750,000 shares of non-

qualified stock options subject to certain vesting restrictions, respectively.
(6)Mr. Anthony resigned on June 28, 2013 as the Chief Executive Officer.  Mr. Anthony was granted on October 1, 2011 options to purchase 100,000 shares or 295,470 as

adjusted (see Note 1, to the financial statements) of our common stock at $0.04 per share. The options vest quarterly over a 2-year period and expire on October 1, 2021. The
fair value of the option award as of June 30, 2012 was approximately $9,000. Mr. Anthony’s options were granted for his participation as a Board of Director. Subsequently, on
July 27, 2013, the Company’s board of director’s approved on a request by Mr. Anthony to forfeit all of his stock options, including 258,537 shares that were exercisable at
June 30, 2013.

(7)Mr. Jackson was granted on January 25, 2012 options to purchase 300,000 shares or 886,411 as adjusted (see Note 1, to the financial statements) of our common stock at
$0.34 per share. The fair value of the option award as of June 30, 2012 was approximately $223,000 and unvested. As a result of the termination of Mr. Jackson on December
7, 2012, his options have been forfeited.

 
Benefit Plans
 

We do not have any profit sharing plan or similar plans for the benefit of our officers, directors or employees. However, we may establish such plan in the future.
 

33



 
 
Equity Compensation Plan Information

  
In connection with the Reverse Acquisition, we assumed the Option Plan. As of June 30, 2014, the number of shares of common stock outstanding under the 2010

Option Plan was 1,424,722. An additional 4,910,973 “non-qualified” options were issued for a total outstanding at June 30, 2014 of 6,335,695. No additional shares of common
stock may be granted under the Option Plan. Alternatively, non-qualified option grants can be approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

 
The following table sets forth certain information concerning unexercised options, stock that has not vested, and equity compensation plan awards outstanding as of

June 30, 2014 for the named executive officers below:
 

  Option Awards(1)    Stock Awards   

Name  

Award
Grant
Date   

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options
Exercisable    

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options
Unexercisable    

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Unearned
Options    

Option
Exercise

Price
($)   

Option
Expiration

Date   

Number of
Shares or
Units of

Stock That
Have Not

Vested    

Market Value
of Shares or

Units of Stock
That Have Not

Vested
($)    

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:

Number of
Unearned

Shares,
Units or

Other
Rights
That

Have Not
Vested    

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:

Market or
Payout 
Value of
Unearned

Shares,
Units or

Other
Rights

That Have
Not

Vested
($)  

                                     
Ronald Dutt  7/30/2013   1,078,559   671,441   —   0.10  7/30/2023  —  $ —   —  $ — 

 
(1) The fair value of each option grant is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility is calculated based on the historical

volatility of the Company’s stock. The risk free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield for a term equal to the expected life of the options at the time of grant.
 

Compensation of Non-Executive Directors
 
In connection with Mr. Collins’ appointment to the Board, the Board granted Mr. Collins (1) non-qualified stock options to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common

stock of the Company at an exercise price of $0.31 per share (the closing price of common stock on March 13, 2014), which are subject to vesting over a 2 year period in
quarterly installments, and also (2) 100,000 shares of restricted common stock as a stock bonus valued at $31,000.

 
The securities issued to the Board have not been registered under the Securities Act and have been issued pursuant to exemption available under Section 4(a)(2) of the

Securities Act.
 
Aggregated Option/SAR exercised and Fiscal year-end Option/SAR value table
 

Neither our executive officers nor the other individuals listed in the tables above, exercised options or SARs during the last fiscal year.
 
Long-term incentive plans
 

No long term incentive awards were granted by us in the last fiscal year.
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Employment Agreements with Executive Officers
 

We entered into an Employment Agreement with our current Chief Executive Officer, Ronald F. Dutt effective December 11, 2012. Mr. Dutt is an “at-will” employee
of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. The Employment Agreement provides an annual salary of $170,000 and option grants of 200,000 shares of non-qualified stock options, subject to
the following vesting schedule: 25% shares vest after 12 months, and remaining shares vest monthly over 36 months. Effective May 27, 2013 Mr. Dutt agreed to a temporary
reduced salary of $2,776 per month or $33,312 per year. On June 28, 2013 Flux’s Chief Executive Officer and President, Christopher Anthony tendered his resignation and the
Board of Directors appointed Mr. Dutt as interim Chief Executive Officer and Corporate Secretary, to assume the duties as such and to continue to hold the position of Chief
Financial Officer until further notice from the Board of Directors. Mr. Dutt is not paid additional compensation for his interim role. However, related to this added
responsibility, effective July 26, 2013, the Board has authorized an increase in his salary from $2,776 to $11,333 per month, reflecting 80% restoration of the salary identified
in his employment agreement dated December 7, 2012. Additionally, Mr. Dutt was granted 1,750,000 non-qualified stock options at an exercise price equal to $0.10, the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock on July 30, 2013, with a vesting schedule of 50% immediately and 50% quarterly over the next four years, pursuant to the terms
of the Company's form of Non-Qualified Option Agreement. All other terms of Mr. Dutt's employment agreement, dated December 11, 2012 remains unchanged.

 
There were no performance based bonuses paid for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

 
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
 

We have not established a Compensation Committee and our Board of Directors will serve this function.
 

Director Independence
 

We currently do not have any independent directors as the term “independent” is defined by the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
 

 ITEM 12 — SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
 
As used in this section, the term beneficial ownership with respect to a security is defined by Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as

consisting of sole or shared voting power (including the power to vote or direct the vote) and/or sole or shared investment power (including the power to dispose of or direct the
disposition of) with respect to the security through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, subject to community property laws where applicable.
As of October 7, 2014 we had a total of 93,274,113 shares of common stock issued outstanding.

 
The following table sets forth, as of October 7, 2014: (a) the names and addresses of each beneficial owner of more than five percent of our common stock known to

us, the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by each such person, and the percent of our common stock so owned; and (b) the names and addresses of each
director and executive officer, the number of shares our common stock beneficially owned, and the percentage of our common stock so owned, by each such person, and by all
of our directors and executive officers as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each of our directors and executive officers is c/o Flux Power Holdings,
Inc., 985 Poinsettia Avenue, Suite A, Vista, California 92081. Each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of our common stock, except as
otherwise indicated. Beneficial ownership consists of a direct interest in the shares of common stock, except as otherwise indicated.
 

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner  
Amount and Nature of

Beneficial Ownership (1)   
Percentage of

Ownership  
       
Directors and Named Executive Officers         
Timothy Collins, Executive Chairman   1,382,818(2)  1.5%
Christopher L. Anthony, Director and Former Chief Executive Officer   11,931,316(3)  12.8%
Ronald F. Dutt, Director, Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer   1,203,125(4)  1.3%
Michael Johnson (Esenjay Investments, LLC)   53,144,260(5)  52.2%
James Gevarges, Director   6,317,378(6)  6.7%
Current Executive Officers & Directors as a Group (5 people)   73,978,897(7)  70.6%
 

(1) As used in this section, the term beneficial ownership with respect to a security is defined by Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as
consisting of sole or shared voting power (including the power to vote or direct the vote) and/or sole or shared investment power (including the power to dispose of
or direct the disposition of) with respect to the security through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, subject to community property
laws where applicable. Accordingly, shares of common stock which an individual or group has a right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to the exercise of options
or warrants are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of such individual or group, but are not deemed to be beneficially
owned and outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person shown in the table.

(2) Includes 375,000 of stock options, all of which are vested, and 299,568 warrants issued to Mr. Collins and 608,250 warrants issued to SRA. Mr. Collins is the chief
executive officer, president and director of SRA.

(3) Includes 112,500 of stock options, all of which are vested.
(4) 1,203,125 stock options, all of which are vested.
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(5) Includes shares held by Esenjay Investments, LLC, a Texas limited liability company of which Mr. Johnson is the sole director and beneficial owner. Includes

407,970 stock options, all of which are vested and 8,150,000 of warrants. The options have been adjusted given effect to the Share Exchange Ratio, see Note 1, to
the financial statements.

(6) Includes 407,970 stock options, all of which are vested. The options have been adjusted given effect to the Share Exchange Ratio, see Note 1, to the financial
statements.

(7) Includes 11,564,383 stock options, all of which are vested. The options have been adjusted given effect to the Share Exchange Ratio, see Note 1, to the financial
statements.

 
 ITEM 13 — CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
 
Transactions with Related Persons
 

In connection with the Reverse Acquisition, Mr. Anthony, our former Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board, and Director James Gevarges,
and Esenjay Investments, LLC, an entity which Director Michael Johnson, severally agreed not to offer, sell, assign, transfer, pledge, contract to sell, or otherwise dispose of
any shares of our common stock or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable into our common stock beneficially owned by such shareholder, for a period of
eighteen (18) months from the closing date (or December 31, 2013) of the Reverse Acquisition, except during the period after the first anniversary of the closing date and a
period of six (6) months thereafter, in such an amount which constitutes less than three percent (3%) in the aggregate of such shareholder’s beneficial ownership of our common
stock per month.
 

On June 26, 2013, we entered into an agreement with Security Research Associates, Inc. (“SRA”), a company which Mr. Collins, our executive chairman is also the
Chief Executive Office, President, Director and shareholder of SRA, pursuant to which SRA agreed to provide business and advisory services. SRA served as our placement
agent in connection with the Company’s 2014 Private Placement Offering (“Offering”) and was paid cash compensation in the amount of 9% of the gross proceeds raised and a
warrant to purchase the number of shares of our common stock equal to 9% of the aggregate gross proceeds from the Offering received by the Company from all investors
(excluding Esenjay) placed by SRA divided by $0.06 per share. SRA was paid $107,460 in cash and reimbursement for related expenses of approximately $10,000 and issued a
warrant to purchase 1,791,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.06 for its services as our private placement agent in the Offering. In connection with this
agreement, the estimated fair value of the warrants issued in the approximate amount of $107,460 (1,791,000 warrants at $0.06) and related expenses of approximately $10,000
was recorded as an offset to equity related to expense associated with the Offering. The Company’s contract with SRA has been amended to reflect renewal to support the
March 2014 placement and the recent August 2014 placement.
 
Loans from Stockholder and Conversion into Common Stock
 

In October 2011, we entered into a revolving promissory note agreement (“Revolving Note”) for $1,000,000 with Esenjay Investments, LLC (“Esenjay”), which is one
of our major stockholders who beneficially own approximately 52.2.5% of our common stock. Mr. Michael Johnson is a current member of our board of directors and is the
director and sole shareholder of Esenjay. The Revolving Note had an interest rate of 8% per annum, and an original maturity date of September 30, 2013, as amended, and is
secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company. As of September 30, 2013, the balance outstanding payable on the note was $1,000,000. On October 16, 2013, we
entered into the Second Amendment to the Revolving Note pursuant to which the Revolving Note was amended to: (i) extend the maturity date from September 30, 2013, to
December 31, 2015; (ii) change the interest rate on the outstanding principal amount as of October 16, 2013, and forward to 6% per annum, and (iii) grant the holder of the
Revolving Note the option to convert any or all of the amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as amended, into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of
$0.30 per share until December 31, 2015.
 

On March 7, 2012, we entered into an additional note payable agreement with Esenjay for $250,000 (“Bridge Note”). The Bridge Note had an original maturity date of
March 7, 2014, and bore interest at the rate of 8% per annum. As of September 30, 2013, the balance outstanding payable on the Bridge Note was $250,000 and there were no
further funds available under the Bridge Note. On October 16, 2013, we entered into the First Amendment to the Bridge Loan Promissory Note (the “Amendment”) pursuant to
which the Bridge Note was amended to: (i) extend the maturity date from March 7, 2014, to December 31, 2015; (ii) change the interest rate on the outstanding principal
amount as of October 16, 2013, and forward to 6% per annum; and (iii) grant the holder of the Bridge Note the option to convert any or all of the amount outstanding under the
Bridge Note, as amended, into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of $0.30 per share until December 31, 2015. As of June 30, 2014, the remaining outstanding
principal balance on the Bridge Note was $0.
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On September 24, 2012, we entered into a Line of Credit agreement with Esenjay for $1,500,000 (“Line of Credit”). Borrowings under the Line of Credit are secured
by our assets and bore interest at the rate of 8% per annum, with all unpaid principal and accrued interest due and payable on September 24, 2014. On October 16, 2013, we
entered into the First Amendment to the Line of Credit (the “Amendment”) pursuant to which the Line of Credit was amended to: (i) extend the maturity date from September
24, 2014, to December 31, 2015; (ii) change the interest rate on the outstanding principal amount as of October 16, 2013, and forward to 6% per annum; (iii) increase the line of
credit to $2,000,000; and (iv) grant holder the option to convert up to $400,000 of the outstanding amount under the Line of Credit into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price of $0.06 per share until December 31, 2013, and the option to convert any or all of the remaining amount outstanding under the Line of Credit into shares of
our common stock at a conversion price of $0.30 per share until December 31, 2015.
 

On January 13, 2014, we accepted a subscription agreement from Esenjay pursuant to which we sold Esenjay 10 Units for an aggregate purchase price of $600,000, or
$60,000 per Unit, of which (i) $200,000 was paid in cash, and (ii) $400,000 was a conversion of $400,000 of principal amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as
amended. Each Unit consisted of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock and 500,000 warrants.  In connection with Esenjay’s purchase of the Units, we issued 10,000,000
shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase up to 5,000,000 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price of $0.20 per share until January 13, 2019.

 
On March 12, 2014, we accepted a subscription agreement from Esenjay pursuant to which we sold Esenjay 2.5 Units for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000, or

$60,000 per Unit, which was a conversion of $150,000 of principal amount outstanding under the Revolving, as amended.  Each Unit consisted of 1,000,000 shares of our
common stock and 500,000 warrants.  In connection with Esenjay’s purchase of the Units, we issued 2,500,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase up to
1,250,000 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price of $0.20 per share until March 12, 2019. On June 11, 2014, the Company converted all $2,586,000 of principal and
$304,000 of accrued interest related to the Revolving Note, Bridge Note and Line of Credit, into common stock and warrants, eliminating all of Flux’s long-term debt. Flux
Power’s largest shareholder, Esenjay Investments LLC, converted all of its long-term debt and accrued interest into 12.1 million shares of Flux Power restricted common stock
at a price of $0.24 per share. Esenjay was also granted 3-year warrants to purchase 1.9 million shares of common stock at $0.30 per share, as an incentive for the conversion.

 
All of the above mentioned debt conversions have been accounted for as a capital transaction in accordance with FASB ASC Topic No. 470-50-40, “Debt,

Modifications and Extinguishments”. Accordingly, no gain or loss has been recognized.
 
During fiscal 2014, a total of $3,136,000 of debt principal was converted to equity, which resulted in an ending balance of $0 for the Revolving Note, Bridge Note and

Line of Credit at June 30, 2014. The amount available under all of these facilities was $3,250,000 as of June 30, 2104, subject to approval of fund withdrawal by Esenjay.
Esenjay has no obligation to disburse such funds and has the right not to advance funds under these loans. Subsequent to June 30, 2014 and as of October 7, 2014, we have
borrowed $25,000 against these loans (see Note 13, to the financial statements).
 
Stockholder Agreements

 
During 2009, the Company entered into a cancelable Term Sheet Agreement with a LHV Power Corporation, an entity owned by James Gevarges, one of our major

shareholders. Mr. Gevarges is also the Chief Executive Officer and President of LHV Power. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement, Flux Power was appointed as a distributor
of LHV Power battery charging products allowing Flux Power to sell the products either separately or as part of an energy storage solution. Additionally, Flux Power was
required to develop a microprocessor control board (“MCB”), and the associated software to enable communication between the parties’ respective products which entitles Flux
Power to royalties for any such units sold by the related entity. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement Flux Power may purchase the products at the then current price list for
distributors. Further, under the Term Sheet Agreement, if LHV Power sells its products to a different distributor Flux Power is entitled to a distribution fee equal to 20% of the
gross profits on such sale. This distribution fee and royalties are capped at a total of $200,000. The chargers are not currently under commercial production and therefore no
Distribution and Royalty Fee has been received by Flux Power. On September 1, 2010, with our consent, LHV assigned the Term Sheet Agreement to Current Ways Inc. a
different company that is owned by Mr. Gevarges. The parties are also subject to restrictions on the use and disclosure of confidential information of the other party until April
1, 2013.

 
Pursuant to our standard purchase order terms and conditions, during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company purchased approximately $0 and

$29,000, respectively, of charger products from Current Ways, Inc., which was not subject to the distribution fee or royalties referred to above under the Term Sheet Agreement.
 
On August 1, 2009, the Company entered into a Manufacturing Implementation Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with LHV Power. Pursuant to the

Manufacturing Agreement Flux Power granted LHV Power a right of first refusal to manufacture our battery management systems. Further, under the Manufacturing
Agreement, Flux Power agreed to pay for any specialized tooling LHV Power may require to manufacture Flux Power’s battery management systems. Under the Manufacturing
Agreement, Flux Power will retain ownership of all intellectual property developed under the Manufacturing Agreement. The Manufacturing Agreement expired on August 1,
2014. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Flux Power paid approximately $0 and $108,000 respectively, to LHV Power pursuant to the Manufacturing
Agreement.
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Effective July 1, 2013, the Company relocated its principal office and manufacturing to the Epic Boats (an entity founded and controlled by Chris Anthony, our former

Chief Executive Officer and board member) facility in Vista, California. The Company entered into a month-to-month sub-lease agreement for shared space with Epic Boats. On
February 25, 2014, the Company entered into a two-year agreement to rent the property, at $12,130 per month, with an annual increase of 3%. The agreement provides for
monthly payments of approximately 10% of the monthly rental payment, which was terminated on March 1, 2014. Subsequently, the Company became the tenant of that space
and enter into a sublease with Epic Boats, as the sub-lessee in which Epic Boats agreed to pay us 10% of the facility costs through June 30, 2014, with March as a transition
month requiring 20% of the facility cost.

 
The Company recorded rent expense, net of sublease income during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, of approximately $77,000 and approximately

$161,000, respectively. 
 

Title Transfer and Deposit Agreements – Related Parties
 
On October 21, 2009, Flux Power entered into an agreement with Epic Boats where Epic Boats assigned and transferred to Flux Power the entire right, title, and

interest into products, technology, intellectual property, inventions and all improvements thereof, as defined in the table below.
 

Product  Description
Battery Box Design  All hardware, tooling and design reduced to practice otherwise of the battery housings which include the integration of a battery

management system.
CAN Communication Protocol  Top communication protocol that communicates through the CAN bus
CAN based Throttle Controller  All hardware, software and tooling reduced to practice or otherwise of the throttle controller
BMS Head End Interfaces  Interfaces to the motor and generator controller to the diagnostic software

 
As of this date, Flux Power began selling products to Epic Boats under Flux Power’s standard terms and conditions and has continued to sell products to Epic Boats as

a customer. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, Flux Power sold approximately $3,000 and $61,000, respectively, of product to Epic Boats. The customer
deposits balance received from Epic Boats at June 30, 2014 and 2013 is approximately $136,000 and $138,000, respectively. There were no receivables outstanding from Epic
Boats as of June 30, 2014.
 
Promoters and Certain Control Persons
 
The Reverse Acquisition resulted in a change of control by issuance of our securities to the following entities and individuals:

 
· Christopher Anthony. Mr. Anthony, our director and former Chief Executive Officer and President, is one of our major shareholders which beneficially owns
approximately 12.8% of our common stock.

· Esenjay Investments, LLC. Esenjay Investment, LLC is one of our major shareholders which beneficially own approximately 52.2% of our common stock. Mr.
Michael Johnson, our director, is the director and shareholder of this entity.

· James Gevarges. Mr. Gevarges, our director, is one of our major shareholders who beneficially own approximately 6.7% of our common stock.
 
Director Independence

 
We currently do not have any independent directors as the term “independent” is defined by the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
 

 ITEM 14 — PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
 

Independent Auditor
 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company’s independent public accounting firm was Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP

(“Squar”).
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Fees Paid to Principal Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

 
The aggregate fees billed by our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, for fiscal years ended June 30, are as follows: 
 

  2014   2013  
Audit fees  $ 77,000  $ 87,000 
Audit related fees   —   — 
Tax fees   —   — 
All other fees   27,000   — 

Total  $ 104,000  $ 87,000 
 
 
Audit Fees 

 
Audit fees are the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by our independent auditors for the audit of our annual financial statements, the review of the

financial statements included in each of our quarterly reports and services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.
 

Audit Related Fees
 
Audit related fees are the aggregate fees billed by our independent auditors for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the

audit or review of our financial statements and are not described in the preceding category.
 

Tax Fees
 
Tax fees are billed by our independent auditors for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
 

All Other Fees
 

All other fees include fees billed by our independent auditors for products or services other than as described in the immediately preceding three categories.
 
The Company’s Board of Directors serves as the Audit Committee and has unanimously approved all audit and non-audit services provided by the independent

auditors. The independent accountants and management are required to periodically report to the Board of Directors regarding the extent of services provided by the
independent accountants, and the fees for the services performed to date. The Company has not adopted a Charter for the Audit Committee as of June 30, 2014.
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 PART IV
 

 ITEM 15 — EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
 

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules.
 

1. The following financial statements of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., and Report of Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP, independent registered public
accounting firm, are included in this report:

 
  Page
   
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm – Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP  F-1
   
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013  F-2
   
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013  F-3
   
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit for the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013  F-4
   
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013  F-5
   
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  F-6

  
2. Financial Statement Schedules: All schedules have been omitted because the required information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto or because they are

not required.
 
3. See Subsection (b) below:

 
(b) Exhibits:

 
The following exhibits are filed as part of this Report

 
Exhibit
No.

 
Description

2.1  Securities Exchange Agreement dated May 18, 2012.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 24, 2012.
2.2  Amendment No. 1 to the Securities Exchange Agreement dated June 13, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June

18, 2012.
3.1  Restated Articles of Incorporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 on Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 1) filed with the SEC on August 6, 2012.
3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 31, 2012.
10.1  Esenjay Secondary Revolving Promissory Note for Operating Capital dated October 1, 2011. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed with

the SEC on June 18, 2012.
10.2  Esenjay Bridge Loan Promissory Note dated March 7, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18, 2012.
10.3  Flux Power Holdings, Inc. 2010 Stock Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18, 2012.
10.4  Flux Power Holdings, Inc. 2010 Stock Plan: Form of Stock Option Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

June 18, 2012.
10.5  LHV Power Corporation Term Sheet dated June 19, 2009. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18, 2012.
10.6  LHV Manufacturing Implementation Agreement dated August 1, 2009. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18,

2012.
10.7  Baytree Capital Advisory Agreement dated June 14, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18, 2012.
10.8  Form of Warrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2012.
10.9  Form of Securities Purchase Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2012.
10.10  Form of Indemnification Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18, 2012.
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10.11  Vendor Agreement dated January 15, 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 on Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 2) filed with the SEC on August 29,

2012.
10.12  Unrestricted and Open Line of Credit dated September 24, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 27,

2012.
10.13  Terms of Employment with Ronald F. Dutt. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 13, 2012.
10.14  Agreement to Amend Unrestricted and Open Line of Credit. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 10-Q/A filed with the SEC on May 13, 2013.
10.15  Second Amendment to the Secondary Revolving Promissory Note. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 22,

2013.
10.16  First Amendment to the Bridge Loan Promissory Note. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 22, 2013.
10.17  First Amendment to the Unrestricted and Open Line of Credit. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 22, 2013.
10.18  Subscription Agreement Dated January 13, 2014. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 15, 2014.
10.19  Warrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 15, 2014.
10.20  Form of Unit Subscription. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on February 14, 2014.
10.21  Loan Conversion Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 11, 2014.
10.22  Form of Unit Subscription. *
21.1  Subsidiaries. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18, 2012.
31.1  Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
31.2  Certifications of the Chief Financial Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
32.1  Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
32.2  Certifications of the Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
   
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document (**)

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema (**)

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase (**)

101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase (**)

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase (**)

101.FRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase (**)

 
 

* Filed herewith.
** XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to
liability under these sections.
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 SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 
 Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
   
Dated: October 7, 2014 By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt
  Ronald F. Dutt
  Chief Executive Officer and Interim
  Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer and
  Principal Financial and
  Principal Accounting Officer)
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.
 
Signature  Title  Date
     
/s/ Timothy Collins   Executive Chairman of the Board  October 7, 2014 
Timothy Collins     
     
/s/ Ronald F. Dutt  Director, Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial

Officer
 October 7, 2014 

Ronald F. Dutt  (Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial and

Principal Accounting Officer)

  

     
/s/ Christopher L. Anthony  Director  October 7, 2014 
Christopher L. Anthony     
     
/s/ Michael Johnson  Director  October 7, 2014 
Michael Johnson     
     
/s/ James Gevarges  Director  October 7, 2014 
James Gevarges     
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 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., and its subsidiary (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., as of June 30,
2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 the Company
has incurred a significant accumulated deficit through June 30, 2014 and requires immediate additional financing to sustain its operations. These factors, among others, raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2 to the financial
statements. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
 
/s/ SQUAR, MILNER, PETERSON, MIRANDA & WILLIAMSON, LLP
San Diego, California
October 7, 2014
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 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2014 and 2013
 

  2014   2013  
ASSETS         

Current assets:         
Cash  $ 116,000  $ 20,000 
Accounts receivable, net   140,000   13,000 
Inventories, net   85,000   160,000 
Prepaid advisory fees, current portion   -   1,616,000 
Other current assets   18,000   35,000 
         
Total current assets   359,000   1,844,000 
         
Other assets   25,000   - 
Property, plant and equipment, net   78,000   132,000 
         
Total assets  $ 462,000  $ 1,976,000 
         

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT         
Current liabilities:         
Accounts payable  $ 320,000  $ 370,000 
Accrued expenses   147,000   163,000 
Accrued interest   -   135,000 
Accrued payroll   72,000   48,000 
Customer deposits   -   5,000 
Customer deposits from related party   136,000   138,000 
Warrant derivative liability   571,000   143,000 
Notes payable to stockholder, current portion   -   1,250,000 
Total current liabilities   1,246,000   2,252,000 
         
Long term liabilities:         
Notes payable to stockholder, net of current portion   -   1,218,000 
         
Total liabilities   1,246,000   3,470,000 
Commitments and contingencies  (Note 6)         
         

STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT         
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: authorized 5,000,000 shares, none issued and outstanding   -   - 
Common stock, $0.001 par value: authorized 145,000,000 shares, 93,274,113 and 47,355,576 shares issued and outstanding as of
June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively   93,000   47,000 
Additional paid-in capital   7,399,000   2,436,000 
Accumulated deficit   (8,276,000)   (3,977,000)
Total stockholders’ deficit   (784,000)   (1,494,000)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit  $ 462,000  $ 1,976,000 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
 

  2014   2013  
Net revenue (1)  $ 358,000  $ 772,000 
Cost of revenue   323,000   756,000 
         
Gross profit   35,000   16,000 
         
Operating expenses:         
Selling and administrative expenses   1,659,000   2,659,000 
Amortization of prepaid advisory fees   1,561,000   1,629,000 
Research and development   536,000   992,000 
         
Total operating expense   3,756,000   5,280,000 
         
Operating loss   (3,721,000)   (5,264,000)
         
Other income (expense):         
Change in fair value of warrant derivative liability   (330,000)   5,731,000 
Interest expense, net   (169,000)   (116,000)
Other expenses   (79,000)   - 
         
 Net (loss) income  $ (4,299,000)  $ 351,000 
         
Net (loss) income per common share – basic  $ (0.06)  $ 0.01 
Net (loss) income per common share – diluted  $ (0.06)  $ 0.01 
         
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – basic   73,327,069   46,592,334 
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – diluted   73,327,069   50,553,184 
         

 
 (1) Includes sales to related parties of $3,000 and $61,000 in 2014 and 2013 respectively
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
 

     Additional        
  Common Stock   Paid-in   Accumulated     
  Shares   Amount   Capital   Deficit   Total  
Balance at June 30, 2012   44,071,000   44,000   2,140,000   (4,328,000)   (2,144,000)
Issuance of common stock – services   200,000   -   134,000   -   134,000 
                     
Issuance of common stock - option exercises   550,000   1,000   21,000   -   22,000 
Issuance of common stock - private placement transactions,
net   2,535,000   2,000   978,000   -   980,000 
                     
Reclassification of warrants as a derivative liability   -   -   (931,000)   -   (931,000)
                     
Stock-based compensation   -   -   94,000   -   94,000 
Net income   -   -   -   351,000   351,000 
Balance at June 30, 2013   47,356,000  $ 47,000  $ 2,436,000  $ (3,977,000)  $ (1,494,000)
                     
Issuance of common stock – services and director fees   1,160,000   1,000   151,000   -   152,000 
                     
Issuance of common stock - option exercises   258,000   -   -   -   - 
                     
Issuance of common stock - private placement transactions,
net   23,233,000   24,000   1,154,000   -   1,178,000 
                     
Issuance of common stock – conversion of related party debt
to equity   21,267,000   21,000   3,419,000   -   3,440,000 
Stock-based compensation   -   -   239,000   -   239,000 
Net loss   -   -   -   (4,299,000)   (4,299,000)
Balance at June 30, 2014   93,274,000  $ 93,000  $ 7,399,000  $ (8,276,000)  $ (784,000)

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
 

  2014   2013  
Cash flows from operating activities:         

Net (loss) income  $ (4,299,000)  $ 351,000 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash used in operating activities:         

Depreciation   55,000   44,000 
Amortization of prepaid advisory fees   1,561,000   1,629,000 
Inventory valuation adjustment   (29,000)   (77,000)
Change in fair value of warrant liability   330,000   (5,731,000)
Stock-based compensation   239,000   94,000 
Stock issuance for services and director fees   152,000   134,000 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   (127,000)   41,000 
Inventories   104,000   653,000 
Other current assets   47,000   (51,000)
Accounts payable   (50,000)   77,000 
Accrued expenses   8,000   (112,000)
Accrued interest   (135,000)   116,000 
Customer deposits   (5,000)   3,000 
Customer deposits from related party   (2,000)   (62,000)
Deferred revenue   -   (480,000)

 Net cash used in operating activities   (2,151,000)   (3,371,000)
         
Cash flows from investing activities:         

Purchases of equipment   (4,000)   (41,000)
Proceeds from the sale of equipment   3,000   - 

 Net cash used in investing activities   (1,000)   (41,000)
         
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Proceeds from issuance of common shares from the exercise of employee stock options   -   22,000 
Proceeds from the sale of common stock and warrants, net of offering costs paid   1,276,000   980,000 

Proceeds from stockholders note payable and line of credit
  972,000   1,618,000 

 Net cash provided by financing activities   2,248,000   2,620,000 
         
Net increase (decrease) in cash   96,000   (792,000)
Cash, beginning of period   20,000   812,000 
         
Cash, end of period  $ 116,000  $ 20,000 
         
Supplemental disclosures of Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:         

Stock issuance upon conversion of debt to equity  $ 3,136,000  $ - 
Conversion of accrued interest into equity  $ 304,000   - 
Issuance of warrants classified as derivative liabilities  $ -  $ 931,000 

         
Supplemental disclosures of Cash Flow Information :         
Cash paid during the year for:         

Income taxes  $ -  $ 1,000 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 and 2013
 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND REVERSE ACQUISITION
 
Nature of Business
 

Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“Flux” or the “Company”) was incorporated as Olerama, Inc. in Nevada in 1998. Since its incorporation, there have been several name
changes, including the change in January 2010 whereby the name of the Company was changed to Lone Pine Holdings, Inc. Following the completion of a reverse merger on
June 14, 2012, as described below, the Company’s operations have been conducted through its wholly owned subsidiary, Flux Power, Inc. (“Flux Power”), a California
corporation.
 

On May 23, 2012, by way of a merger, Lone Pine Holdings changed its name to Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“FPH”) a Nevada corporation. The transaction has been
reflected as a reverse merger where FPH was the surviving legal entity after the merger. Flux Power remained the accounting acquirer. The merger has been accounted for as a
recapitalization as of the earliest period presented. Accordingly, the historical condensed consolidated financial statements represented are those of Flux Power.
 

Flux Power develops and sells rechargeable advanced energy storage systems. The Company has structured its business around its core technology, “The Battery
Management System” (“BMS”). The Company’s BMS provides three critical functions to their battery systems: cell balancing, monitoring and error reporting. Using its
proprietary management technology, the Company is able to offer complete integrated energy storage solutions or custom modular standalone systems to their clients. The
Company has also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that accompany their core products. Sales during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 were primarily to customers located throughout the United States.

 
As used herein, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” and “Company” mean Flux Power Holdings, Inc., unless otherwise indicated. All dollar amounts herein are in U.S. dollars

unless otherwise stated.
 
Reverse Acquisition of Flux Power Inc.
 

On June 14, 2012, we completed the acquisition of Flux Power (the “Reverse Acquisition”) pursuant to a Securities Exchange Agreement dated May 18, 2012
(“Exchange Agreement”) by and among Flux Power, and its shareholders, Mr. Christopher Anthony, Esenjay Investments, LLC, and Mr. James Gevarges (collectively the
“Flux Power Shareholders”). In connection with the Reverse Acquisition, we purchased 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of Flux Power from the
Flux Power Shareholders in exchange for 37,714,514 newly issued shares our common stock (“Exchange Shares”) based on an exchange ratio of 2.9547039 (“Share Exchange
Ratio”). As a result of the Reverse Acquisition, the Flux Power Shareholders collectively owned approximately 91% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock,
and Flux Power became our wholly-owned operating subsidiary. The Reverse Acquisition was accounted for as a recapitalization affected by a share exchange, wherein Flux
Power is considered the acquirer for accounting and financial reporting purposes and has been reflected in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements as of
the earliest period presented. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entity have been brought forward at their book value and no goodwill has been recognized.
 
NOTE 2 - GOING CONCERN
 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of
liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred an accumulated deficit of $8,276,000 through June 30, 2014, and as of June 30, 2014 had limited cash
and a working capital deficit. To date, the Company’s revenues and operating cash flows have not been sufficient to sustain its operations and it has relied on debt and equity
financing to fund its operations. Management estimates that additional capital of approximately $2.0 million is required to fund planned operations through June 30, 2015.
These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

 
The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to raise additional capital on a timely basis until such time as revenues and related

cash flows are sufficient to fund our operations.
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Management plans to continue to seek funding, as necessary, through private placements of equity securities. The Company initiated a private placement in August
2014 to raise $990,000. A total of $142,500 has been raised as of October 7, 2014. In addition, the Company is pursuing other investment structures that management believes
may generate the necessary funding for the Company. Although management believes that the additional required funding will be obtained, there is no guarantee the Company
will be able to obtain the additional required funds on a timely basis or that funds will be available on terms acceptable to the Company. If such funds are not available when
required, management will be required to curtail its investments in additional sales and marketing and product development resources, and capital expenditures, which may
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future cash flows and results of operations, and its ability to continue operating as a going concern. The accompanying
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern and, therefore, be required to
liquidate its assets and discharge its liabilities in other than the normal course of business and at amounts that may differ from those reflected in the accompanying condensed
consolidated financial statements.
 
NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements follows:
 
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
 

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”). This contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business (see Note 2).
 

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary Flux Power Inc. after
elimination of all intercompany accounts and transactions.
 
Subsequent Events
 

Management has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2014 through the date the accompanying consolidated financial statements were filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission for transactions and other events that may require adjustment of and/or disclosure in such financial statements.
 
Reclassifications

 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation for comparative purposes.

 
 Use of Estimates in Financial Statement Preparation
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as certain financial statement disclosures. Significant estimates include valuations of equity instruments and deferred tax assets.
While management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are appropriate, actual results could differ from these
estimates.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 

As of June 30, 2014, cash totaled approximately $116,000 and consists of funds held in a non-interest bearing bank deposit account. The Company considers all highly
liquid short term investments with maturities of less than three months when acquired to be cash equivalents. The Company had no other cash equivalents at June 30, 2014 and
2013.
 
Fair Values of Financial Instruments
 

The carrying amount of our accounts payable, accounts receivable, accrued liabilities, notes payable and line of credit, and warrant derivative liability approximates
their estimated fair values due to the short-term maturities of those financial instruments. Derivative liabilities recorded in connection with warrants are reported at their
estimated fair value, with changes in fair value being reported in results of operations (see Note 10).

 
Management has concluded that it is not practical to determine the estimated fair value of amounts due to related parties because the transactions cannot be assumed to

have consummated at arm’s length, the terms are not deemed to be market terms, there are no quoted values available for these instruments, and an independent valuation would
not be practical due to the lack of data regarding similar instruments, if any, and the associated potential costs.
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Except for derivative liabilities, we do not have any other assets or liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and, during the fiscal years ended June

30, 2014 and 2013, did not have any other assets or liabilities that were measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.
 
Accounts Receivable and Customer Deposits
 

Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts. The Company may require advance deposits from its customers prior to shipment of the ordered
products. The Company has not experienced collection issues related to its accounts receivable, and has not recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2014 or
June 30, 2013.
 
Inventories
 

Inventories consist primarily of battery management systems and the related subcomponents, and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.
Inventories are primarily raw materials, as product is typically shipped subsequent to assembly. The Company evaluates inventories to determine if write-downs are necessary
due to obsolescence or if the inventory levels are in excess of anticipated demand at market value based on consideration of historical sales and product development plans. The
Company recorded an adjustment related to obsolete inventory in the amount of approximately $29,000 and $77,000 during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
 
Property, Plant and Equipment
 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives, of the related assets ranging from three to ten years, or, in the case of leasehold improvements, over the lesser of the useful life of the related asset or the
lease term.
 
 Stock-based Compensation
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic No. 718-10, Compensation-
Stock Compensation, which establishes accounting for equity instruments exchanged for employee service, we utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair
value of employee stock option awards at the date of grant, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected volatility and expected life. Changes
in these inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measure of estimated fair value of our share-based compensation. These assumptions are subjective and generally
require significant analysis and judgment to develop. When estimating fair value, some of the assumptions will be based on, or determined from, external data and other
assumptions may be derived from our historical experience with stock-based payment arrangements. The appropriate weight to place on historical experience is a matter of
judgment, based on relevant facts and circumstances.
 

Common stock or equity instruments such as warrants issued for services to non-employees are valued at their estimated fair value at the measurement date (the date
when a firm commitment for performance of the services is reached, typically the date of issuance, or when performance is complete). If the total value exceeds the par value of
the stock issued, the value in excess of the par value is added to the additional paid-in-capital account.
 
Revenue Recognition
 

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, price is fixed or determinable, and collectability of the
selling price is reasonably assured. Delivery occurs when risk of loss is passed to the customer, as specified by the terms of the applicable customer agreements. When a right of
return exists, contractually or implied, the Company recognizes revenue on the sell-through method. Under this method, revenue is not recognized upon delivery of the
inventory components. Instead, the Company records deferred revenue upon delivery and recognize revenue when the inventory components are sold through to the end user.

 
As of June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Company did not have any deferred revenue. Deferred revenue was recognized in the Company’s second quarter of fiscal 2013 (as

the right of return was waived) related to one customer of approximately $480,000, representing units not yet sold through by the prior year end. The related product costs of
$429,000 were recorded as costs of sales.

 
Sales Returns and Allowances
 

The Company evaluates its exposure to sales returns and allowances based on historical experience. The Company has not experienced returns during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and accordingly, the Company did not record sales returns and allowance.
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Product Warranties
 

The Company evaluates its exposure to product warranty obligations based on historical experience. Our products, primarily lift equipment packs, are warrantied for
five years unless modified by a separate agreement. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Company recorded a warranty liability of approximately $12,000
and $11,000, respectively, and is included in accrued expenses on the Company’s balance sheet.
 
Shipping and Handling Costs
 

The Company records shipping and handling costs charged to customers as revenue and shipping and handling costs to cost of sales as incurred.
 
Impairment of Long-lived Assets
 

In accordance with authoritative guidance for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, if indicators of impairment exist, the Company assesses the
recoverability of the affected long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value of such assets can be recovered through the undiscounted future operating cash flows.
 

If impairment is indicated, the Company measures the amount of such impairment by comparing the carrying value of the asset to the present value of the expected
future cash flows associated with the use of the asset. The Company believes future cash flows expected to be received from its long-lived assets held in use will exceed the
assets’ carrying values, and accordingly the Company has not recognized any impairment losses during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.
 
Research and Development
 

The Company is actively engaged in new product development efforts. Research and development cost relating to possible future products are expensed as incurred.
 
Income Taxes
 

The Company follows FASB ASC Topic No. 740, Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recorded to reflect the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the financial reporting basis of assets and liabilities and their tax basis at each year-end. These amounts are adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect enacted
changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse.

 
The Company records deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and on operating

loss carry forwards using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
 

We follow the provisions of FASB ASC Topic No. 740 relating to uncertain tax provisions and have commenced analyzing filing positions in all of the federal and
state jurisdictions where the Company is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. As a result of adoption, no additional tax
liabilities have been recorded. There are no unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2014 or June 30, 2013.
 
Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share
 

The Company calculates basic earnings (loss) per common share by dividing net earnings or loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the periods. Diluted earnings (loss) per common share include the impact from all dilutive potential common shares relating to outstanding convertible securities.

 
For the year ended June 30, 2014, basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding were 73,327,069. The Company incurred a net loss for the twelve months
ended June 30, 2014, and therefore, basic and diluted earnings per share for those periods are the same because the inclusion of all potential common equivalent shares would
be anti-dilutive. The potentially dilutive common shares outstanding at June 30, 2014, excluded from diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding, which include
common shares underlying outstanding stock options and warrants, were 1,839,480.
 

For the year ended June 30, 2013, basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding were 46,592,334 and 50,553,184, respectively. Potentially dilutive
common shares outstanding at June 30, 2013, which include common shares underlying outstanding stock options and warrants, included in the diluted weighted-average
calculation were approximately 3,664,000.
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Derivative Financial Instruments
 

The Company does not use derivative instruments to hedge exposures to cash flow, market or foreign currency risk.
 

We evaluate free-standing derivative instruments (or embedded derivatives) to properly classify such instruments within equity or as liabilities in our financial
statements. The classification of a derivative instrument is reassessed at each reporting date. If the classification changes as a result of events during a reporting period, the
instrument is reclassified as of the date of the event that caused the reclassification. There is no limit on the number of times a contract may be reclassified.

 
Instruments classified as derivative liabilities are recorded initially at their estimated fair value and are re-measured each reporting period (or upon reclassification) and

the change in fair value is recorded on our consolidated statement of operations in other (income) expense.
 

The Company follows FASB ASC Topic No. 815, Derivatives and Hedging to classify and value warrant liabilities. Warrants classified as derivative liabilities are
recorded at their fair values at the issuance date and are revalued at each subsequent reporting date, using a Monte Carlo simulation (“MCS”). A MCS model uses a simulation
technique to generate multiple random price paths for the stock price to simulate many possible future outcomes, which are then discounted at the risk-free rate. These simulated
paths are then averaged to determine the fair value of the warrants (see Note 8).
 
New Accounting Standards
 

In June 2014, The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-12 regarding ASC topic No. 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation. The standard
requires a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period to be treated as a performance condition. To account for such
awards, a reporting entity should apply existing guidance in FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation, as it relates to awards
with performance conditions that affect vesting. ASU 2014-12 is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15,
2015. Early adoption is permitted. We do not believe the adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

 
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 regarding ASC Topic No. 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard provides principles for

recognizing revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers with the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The guidance is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2018 using either of two methods: (i) retrospective to each prior reporting period presented with the option
to elect certain practical expedients as defined within the guidance; or (ii) retrospective with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date of
initial application and proving certain additional disclosures as defined per the guidance. Early adoption is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the accounting, transition
and disclosure requirements of the standard and cannot currently estimate the financial impact of adoption.
 

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740) – Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss
Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. The standard requires us to present an unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction of a deferred tax asset for
a net operating loss (NOL) carryforward or other tax credit carryforward when settlement in this manner is available under applicable tax law. The guidance is effective for us in
the first quarter of fiscal 2015 and will be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. We do not believe the adoption of his guidance will have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.
 
NOTE 4 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 
Property, plant and equipment consist of:

 

  
June 30,

 2014   
June 30,

 2013  
Vehicles  $ 48,000  $ 59,000 
Machinery and equipment   60,000   59,000 
Office equipment   86,000   86,000 
Furniture and Equipment   34,000   34,000 
   228,000   238,000 
Less: Accumulated depreciation   (150,000)   (106,000)
Property, plant and equipment, net  $ 78,000  $ 132,000 
 

Depreciation expense was approximately $55,000 and $44,000, for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is included in selling and administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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NOTE 5 - STOCKHOLDER NOTES PAYABLE AND LINE OF CREDIT

 
In October 2011, we entered into a revolving promissory note agreement (“Revolving Note”) for $1,000,000 with Esenjay Investments, LLC (“Esenjay”), which is one of

our major stockholders who beneficially own approximately 52.2 % of our common stock. Mr. Michael Johnson is a current member of our board of directors and is the
director and sole shareholder of Esenjay. The Revolving Note had an interest rate of 8% per annum, and an original maturity date of September 30, 2013, as amended, and
borrowings under this line are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company. As of September 30, 2013, the balance outstanding payable on the note was
$1,000,000. On October 16, 2013, we entered into the Second Amendment to the Revolving Note pursuant to which the Revolving Note was amended to: (i) extend the maturity
date from September 30, 2013, to December 31, 2015; (ii) change the interest rate on the outstanding principal amount as of October 16, 2013, and forward to 6% per annum,
and (iii) grant the holder of the Revolving Note the option to convert any or all of the amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as amended, into shares of our common
stock at a conversion price of $ 0.30 per share until December 31, 2015.

 
On March 7, 2012, we entered into an additional note payable agreement with Esenjay for $250,000 (“Bridge Note”). The Bridge Note had an original maturity date of

March 7, 2014, and bore interest at the rate of 8% per annum. As of September 30, 2013, the balance outstanding payable on the Bridge Note was $250,000 and there were no
further funds available under the Bridge Note. On October 16, 2013, we entered into the First Amendment to the Bridge Loan Promissory Note (the “Amendment”) pursuant to
which the Bridge Note was amended to: (i) extend the maturity date from March 7, 2014, to December 31, 2015; (ii) change the interest rate on the outstanding principal
amount as of October 16, 2013, and forward to 6% per annum; and (iii) grant the holder of the Bridge Note the option to convert any or all of the amount outstanding under the
Bridge Note, as amended, into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of $0.30 per share until December 31, 2015. As of June 30, 2014, the remaining principal
balance on the Bridge Note was $0.

 
On September 24, 2012, we entered into a Line of Credit agreement with Esenjay for $1,500,000 (“Line of Credit”). Borrowings under the Line of Credit are secured

by our assets and bore interest at the rate of 8% per annum, with all unpaid principal and accrued interest due and payable on September 24, 2014. On October 16, 2013, we
entered into the First Amendment to the Line of Credit (the “Amendment”) pursuant to which the Line of Credit was amended to: (i) extend the maturity date from September
24, 2014, to December 31, 2015; (ii) change the interest rate on the outstanding principal amount as of October 16, 2013, and forward to 6% per annum; (iii) increase the Line
of Credit to $2,000,000; and (iv) grant holder the option to convert up to $400,000 of the outstanding amount under the Line of Credit into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price of $0.06 per share until December 31, 2013, and the option to convert any or all of the remaining amount outstanding under the Line of Credit into shares of
our common stock at a conversion price of $ 0.30 per share until December 31, 2015.
 

On January 13, 2014, we accepted a subscription agreement from Esenjay pursuant to which we sold Esenjay 10 Units for an aggregate purchase price of $600,000, or
$60,000 per Unit, of which (i) $200,000 was paid in cash, and (ii) $400,000 was a conversion of $400,000 of principal amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as
amended. Each Unit consisted of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock and 500,000 warrants.  In connection with Esenjay’s purchase of the Units, we issued 10,000,000
shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase up to 5,000,000 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price of $0.20 per share until January 13, 2019.

 
On March 12, 2014, we accepted a subscription agreement from Esenjay pursuant to which we sold Esenjay 2.5 Units for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000, or

$60,000 per Unit, which was a conversion of $150,000 of principal amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as amended.  Each Unit consisted of 1,000,000 shares of our
common stock and 500,000 warrants.  In connection with Esenjay’s purchase of the Units, we issued 2,500,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase up to
1,250,000 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price of $0.20 per share until March 12, 2019. On June 11, 2014, the Company converted all $2,586,000 of principal and
$304,000 of accrued interest related to the Revolving Note, Bridge Note and Line of Credit, into common stock and warrants, eliminating all of Flux’s long-term debt. Flux
Power’s largest shareholder, Esenjay Investments LLC, converted all of its long-term debt and accrued interest into 12.1 million shares of Flux Power restricted common stock
at a price of $0.24 per share. Esenjay was also granted 3-year warrants to purchase 1.9 million shares of common stock at $0.30 per share, in connection with this conversion.

 
During fiscal 2014, a total of $3,136,000 of debt principal was converted to equity, which resulted in an ending balance of $0 for the Revolving Note, Bridge Note and

Line of Credit at June 30, 2014. The exchange has been accounted for as a capital transaction in accordance with ASC Topic No. 470-50-40, “ Debt, Modifications and
Extinguishments”. Accordingly, no gain or loss has been recognized. The amount that could be available under all of these facilities was $3,250,000 as of June 30, 2104, subject
to approval of fund withdrawal by Esenjay. Esenjay has no obligation to disburse such funds and has the right not to advance funds under these loans. Subsequent to June 30,
2014, one additional draw of $25,000 has been made (see Note 13 – Subsequent Events).
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NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 

From time to time, we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations. As of June 30, 2014, we are not a party to any legal proceedings
that are expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.
  
Operating Leases
 

 The Company’s corporate headquarters totals 22,054 square feet and is located in Vista, California.  Effective February 25, 2014, the Company entered into an
amended lease for this facility with average monthly rent payments of approximately $12,130 per month.  In conjunction with the amended lease facility, the Company paid a
security deposit of $25,000, or approximately 2 months of rent. The monthly rent payments after 2014 will increase by 3% per year. The Company also subleases space to a
related party, Epic Boats, on a month-to-month basis at a rate of 10% of lease expense.
 

Total rent expense was approximately $77,000 and $161,000 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, net of sublease income.
 

Future minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows:
 

Years ended June 30,    
2015  $ 135,000 
2016   100,000 
Total  $ 235,000 
 
NOTE 7 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
 

At June 30, 2014 the Company had 145,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of $0.001 authorized for issuance, of which 93,274,113 shares were issued and
outstanding.
 

In addition, at June 30, 2014, the Company is authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value of $0.001 in one or more classes or series within a
class pursuant to our Articles of Incorporation. There are currently no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.
 

Holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends, when, as, and if declared by the Board of Directors, out of any assets legally available to the Company.
Dividends are declared and paid in an equal per-share amount on the outstanding shares of each series of common stock. To date the Board of Directors has neither declared nor
paid common stock dividends to shareholders.
 
Common Stock and Warrants
 
Private Placements – 2014
 

From January to March 2014, the Company conducted a Private Placement Offering of Units (“March Offering”). The Units were offered only to accredited investors
and the purchase price of each Unit was $60,000, with each Unit consisting of 1,000,000 shares of common stock and 500,000 warrants. The warrants are exercisable for 5 years
and each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $0.20 per share. On March 12, 2014, the Company completed the March
Offering by selling an aggregate of 32.4 Units to 41 accredited investors resulting in the conversion of debt to equity in the amount of $550,000 and cash proceeds of
approximately $1,394,000, and issuance of 32,400,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase up to 16,200,000 shares of common stock. The March Offering was
conducted in three tranches. On January 13, 2014, we completed our first tranche of the March Offering by selling 10 Units to Esenjay for an aggregate purchase price of
$600,000, of which (i) $200,000 was paid in cash, and (ii) $400,000 was a conversion of $400,000 of principal amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as amended (see
Note 5). In connection with Esenjay’s purchase of the Units, we issued 10,000,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase up to 5,000,000 shares of our common
stock. On February 14, 2014, we completed our second tranche of the March Offering by selling 2.8 Units to five accredited investors for an aggregate purchase price of
$168,000, all of which were paid in cash. In connection with the closing of the second tranche, we issued a total of 2,800,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to
purchase up to 1,400,000 shares of our common stock. On March 12, 2014, we completed the final tranche, to a cumulative total of 41 accredited investors, of the March
Offering by closing on the sale of 19.6 Units for total purchase price of $1,176,000, pursuant to which we issued 19,600,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase
up to 9,800,000 shares of common stock. Esenjay participated in the final tranche by purchasing a total of 2.5 Units for an aggregate purchase price of $150,000, of which the
$150,000 was a conversion of principal amount outstanding under the Revolving Note, as amended (see Note 5).
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On June 11, 2014, the Company converted all $2,586,000 of outstanding principal and $304,000 of accrued interest related to the Revolving Note, Bridge Note and
Line of Credit, into common stock and warrants, eliminating all of Flux’s long-term debt. Flux Power’s largest shareholder, Esenjay Investments LLC, converted all of its long-
term debt and accrued interest into 12.1 million shares of Flux Power restricted common stock at a price of $0.24 per share. Esenjay was also granted 3-year warrants to
purchase 1.9 million shares of common stock at $0.30 per share, as an incentive for the conversion.

 
All of the above mentioned debt conversions have been accounted for as a capital transaction in accordance with FASB ASC Topic No. 470-50-40, “Debt,

Modifications and Extinguishments”. Accordingly, no gain or loss has been recognized.
 

Security Research Associates Inc. (“SRA”) of San Francisco served as Company’s placement agent in connection with the March Offering. The Company engaged
SRA for services rendered in conjunction with this March Offering and paid cash compensation in the amount of 9% of the gross proceeds raised and a warrant to purchase the
number of shares of common stock equal to 9% of the aggregate gross proceeds from the March Offering received by the Company from all investors placed by SRA divided
by $0.06 per share. The Company paid SRA $107,460 and issued a warrant to purchase 1,791,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.06 for its services as
the Company’s private placement agent in the March Offering. The newly appointed director and executive chairman of the Board of Directors, Timothy Collins, is the Chief
Executive Officer, President, director and shareholder of SRA.

 
In connection with the March Offering, the Company inadvertently in error issued duplicate stock certificates representing an aggregate of 600,000 shares of common

stock of the Company. As a result, there was an additional 600,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding on the records of the Company’s transfer agent as of June
30, 2014. The Company has already corrected this error. The number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding reflected in the financial statements and these notes
exclude 600,000 shares of common stock which were inadvertently issued in error. All such common share certificates have been returned as of July 2014.

 
The securities offered and sold in the Offering have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”). The Securities were offered

and sold to accredited investors in reliance upon exemptions from registration pursuant to Rule 506 promulgated thereunder.
 
Private Placements - 2013
 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Company issued an aggregate of 2,353,093 shares of common stock and 507,019 five (5) year warrants to purchase
shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.41 per share, resulting in aggregate proceeds of approximately $980,000, pursuant to private placement transactions.

 
In June 2012, we initiated a private placement of our common stock and warrants to accredited investors to purchase up to 8 Units, at a price of $500,000 per Unit,

with each Unit consisting of 1,207,185 shares of our common stock and 241,437 five (5) year warrants to purchase one share of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.41
per share. The Company issued 2,813,000 shares and 562,551 warrants raising approximately $1,126,000 in net proceeds through June 30, 2012, and in July 2012 of fiscal 2013
the Company issued 1,690,063 shares and 338,013 warrants raising net proceeds of approximately $672,000.
 

In August 2012, the Company commenced a private placement of its common stock and warrants to accredited investors to purchase up to 8 Units for a purchase price
of $250,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 603,594 shares of our common stock and 120,719 five (5) year warrants to purchase one share of common stock at an
exercise price of $0.41 per share. In connection with this private placement, on August 31, 2012, we sold an aggregate of 603,594 shares of common stock and issued 120,719
warrants, raising net proceeds of $231,000.

  
In October 2012, the Company continued the private placement of its common stock and warrants to an accredited investor to purchase up to 8 Units for a purchase

price of $250,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 603,592 shares of our common stock and 120,718 five (5) year warrants to purchase one share of common stock at an
exercise price of $0.41 per share. In connection with this private placement, on October 30, 2012, we sold an aggregate of 241,436 shares of common stock and issued 48,287
warrants raising net proceeds of approximately $77,000. The October private placement closed out the round of financing which began in June.

 
The common stock purchased in the above referenced private placements and the common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants have piggyback registration rights.

The securities offered and sold in the private placement have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration
or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
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Repricing of Warrants.
 

The Offering (see above) included warrants issued at a price of $0.20, which triggered an anti-dilution protection for Company’s warrant holders issued under our
2012 Private Placements that were issued for an offering price of our common stock at $0.41. As a result, the Board of Directors gave approval to amend the exercise price of
2,907,347 common share purchase warrants issued by way of our completed 2012 Private Placements, which included the July, August and October 2012 closings of 507,019,
our June 2012 closing of 562,551 and the Baytree advisory agreement warrants of 1,837,777. The exercise price of the 2,907,347 common share purchase warrants was reduced
to $0.27 from $0.41 per warrant share and applies to all warrants issued in our 2012 Private Placements. On April 2, 2014, the Company provided notice of adjustment to the
Warrant Holders in accordance with the applicable section of the warrant certificate. The remaining terms, including expiration dates, of all warrants remain unchanged. The
modified exercise price of the warrants to $0.27 resulted in a repricing modification charge of $98,000 that was recorded as a cost of capital raised in connection with the
offering.
 
Option Exercise
 

In connection with a cashless exercise by one of the Company’s option holder, on April 28, 2014, the Company issued 258,536 shares of common stock, based on per
share price of $0.32. The shares of common stock issued have not been registered under the Securities Act and have been issued pursuant to exemption available under Section
4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
 
Advisory Agreements
 

Baytree Capital On June 14, 2012, the Company entered into an Advisory Agreement (“Advisory Agreement”) with Baytree Capital, a significant shareholder of the
Company, pursuant to which Baytree Capital agreed to provide business and advisory services for 24 months in exchange for 100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued
common stock at the commencement of each six (6) month period in return for its services, and a warrant to purchase 1,837,777 restricted shares of our common stock for a
period of five (5) years at an exercise price of $0.41 per share (“Advisory Agreement Warrants”). In connection with this agreement, the estimated fair value of the warrants
issued in the approximate amount of $3,258,000 was recorded as prepaid advisory fees, which is expected to be amortized on a pro-rata basis over the term of the agreement.
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, we recorded expense of approximately $1,561,000 and $1,629,000, respectively, based on the amortization of the
prepaid advisory fees. As of June 30, 2014 there was no remaining unamortized balance of the prepaid advisory fees.

 
In accordance with the Advisory Agreement, on December 14, 2012 which was the beginning of the second six-month period, a liability was recorded based on that

day’s stock price for the anticipated issuance of 100,000 shares of common stock. On February 25, 2013 we issued Baytree Capital 100,000 restricted shares of our newly
issued common stock as previously accrued, for the second six-month period beginning June 14, 2012. These shares were valued at $0.90 per share, based on the price per share
of the Company’s common stock on February 25, 2013, for the total of $90,000 due to Baytree Capital. The Company recorded $90,000 of prepaid advisory fees that were
amortized through June 14, 2013, when the next 100,000 common shares were due to be issued to Baytree Capital. The prepaid advisory fees were adjusted for amortization
already recognized from the original issuance due date of December 14, 2012.

 
In accordance with the Advisory Agreement, on June 14, 2013 which was the beginning of the third six-month period, a liability was recorded based on that day’s

stock price for the anticipated issuance of 100,000 shares of common stock. These shares were valued at $0.60 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s
common stock on June 14, 2013, for the total of $60,000, which is recorded on the Company’s balance sheet and was included in accrued expenses. On July 9, 2013 we issued
Baytree Capital 100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock as accrued for as of June 30, 2013, for the third six-month period.

 
On December 14, 2013, the commencement of the fourth and final six-month period, the Company accrued for the fourth installment of the shares for services valued at

$0.05 per share, the price per share of the Company’s common stock on December 14, 2013, for the total of the $5,000 due to Baytree Capital. The Company also recorded
$5,000 of prepaid advisory fees to be amortized over six months. On January 21, 2014, we issued Baytree Capital 100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock
at $0.07 per share. As of June 30, 2014, $0 remains in prepaid expense and $19,000 has been recognized as consulting expense during the year ended June 30, 2014.

 
Caro Capital, LLC. On April 4, 2013, the Company entered into an Advisory Agreement (“Agreement”) with Caro Capital, LLC (“Caro Capital”), pursuant to which

Caro Capital agreed to provide business and advisory services, management consulting, shareholder information, and public relations for six (6) months in exchange for 500,000
restricted shares of our newly issued common stock. Upon execution of the Agreement, Caro Capital was issued 100,000 shares of restricted stock per the contract terms, which
were valued at $44,000 based on the closing price of our common stock on the issuance date. The contract calls for subsequent issuance of 100,000 shares at 30-day increments
to the first tranche. Per the terms of the Agreement, Caro Capital is entitled to the second and third tranche issuance of 100,000 shares of restricted stock each.
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The second tranche shares were valued at $0.50 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock on May 4, 2013, when the second tranche shares

were due to be issued, for the total of $50,000. The costs associated with the 100,000 shares to be issued of approximately $50,000 were recorded as consulting expense during
the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2013. On August 13, 2013, the Company issued 100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock at $0.08 per share.

 
The third tranche shares were valued at $0.32 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock on June 4, 2013, when the third tranche shares

were due to be issued, for the total of $32,000. The costs associated with the 100,000 shares to be issued of approximately $32,000 were recorded as consulting expense during
the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2013.  On June 3, 2013, the Company terminated the Agreement with Caro Capital effective July 3, 2013.

 
Catalyst Global LLC. On October 14, 2013, the Company entered into a contract with Catalyst Global LLC (“CGL”), pursuant to which CGL agreed to provide

investor relations services for 12 months in exchange for monthly fees of $2,000 per month and 450,000 shares of restricted common stock issued as follows: 180,000 shares
upon signing and the balance vesting pro rata upon each of the three-, six-, and nine-month anniversaries of the contract. The initial tranche was valued at $0.05 per share at
$9,000 when issued on November 8, 2013. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, we recorded expense of approximately $6,000. As of June 30, 2014, the total
remaining balance of the prepaid investor relation services is approximately $3,000, and is included in other current assets and will be amortized over the next 12 months.

 
On March 19, 2014, the Company issued the second tranche shares valued at $ 0.38 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock. The costs

associated with the 90,000 shares issued of $34,000 and will be amortized over the 12 months.  During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, we recorded expense of
approximately $18,000. As of June 30, 2014, the total remaining balance of the prepaid investor relation services is approximately $16,000, and is included in other current
assets and will be amortized over the next 12 months.

 
On April 23, 2014, the Company issued the third tranche shares valued at $ 0.30 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock. The costs

associated with the 90,000 shares issued of $27,000 and will be amortized over the 12 months. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, we recorded expense of
approximately $13,000. As of June 30, 2014, the total remaining balance of the prepaid investor relation services is approximately $14,000, and is included in other current
assets and will be amortized over the next 12 months.

 
Security Research Associates, Inc. On June 26, 2013, the Company entered into an agreement with Security Research Associates, Inc., (“SRA”), pursuant to which SRA

agreed to provide business and advisory services. SRA served as our placement agent in connection with the Company’s 2014 Private Placement Offering (“Offering”) and was
paid cash compensation in the amount of 9% of the gross proceeds raised and a warrant to purchase the number of shares of our common stock equal to 9% of the aggregate
gross proceeds from the Offering received by the Company from all investors (excluding Esenjay) placed by SRA divided by $0.06 per share. SRA was paid $107,460 in cash
and reimbursement for related expenses of approximately $10,000 and issued a warrant to purchase 1,791,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.06 for its
services as our private placement agent in the Offering. In connection with this agreement, the estimated fair value of the warrants issued in the approximate amount of $107,460
(1,791,000 warrants at $0.06) and related expenses of approximately $10,000 was recorded as an offset to equity related to expense associated with the Offering. The
Company’s contract with SRA has been amended to reflect renewal to support the March 2014 placement and the recent August 2014 placement.

 
Institutional Analyst Holdings, Inc. On December 18, 2013, the Company entered into a contract with Institutional Analyst Holdings, Inc. (“IA”), pursuant to which IA

agreed to provide investor relations and report writing services for six months in exchange for an initial payment of $2,500 and 400,000 restricted shares of the Company’s
common stock upon execution of the contract. An additional 400,000 restricted shares of the Company’s common stock would be issued 60 days from the date of the contract.
The initial tranche was valued at $24,000 based on the share price of $.06 per share on the date of issuance, December 18, 2013. During the year ended June 30, 2014, we
recorded expense of approximately $24,000. As of June 30, 2014, there was no remaining unamortized balance of the prepaid investor relation services. On February 18, 2014,
an agreement was reached between the Company and IA to convert the remaining compensation of 400,000 common stock shares to 400,000 non-qualified stock options at an
exercise price of $0.06. These 400,000 options were formally issued on July 14, 2014, and were fully vested upon issuance. An accrual of $76,000 was made at June 30, 2014
to support the anticipated grant of 400,000 options on July 14, 2014. The value of the accrual has been determined by using the Black-Scholes model on the day the options
were due to be issued.

 

F-15



 
 
Warrant Activity
 

Warrant activity during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and related balances outstanding as of that date are reflected below:
 

  Number   

Weighted
 Average
 Exercise
 Price Per

 Share   

Remaining
 Contract
 Term (#
 years)  

Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at June 30, 2013, re-priced   2,907,347  $ 0.27   2.96 - 3.34 
Stock purchase warrants issued   19,891,000   0.20   2.95-4.70  
Stock purchase warrants exercised   -   -     
Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at June 30, 2014   22,798,347  $ 0.21   2.95 - 4.70 
 
Stock-based Compensation
 

We adopted the Flux Power Option Plan in June 2012, under which 2,000,000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance, and all stock options of Flux’s
outstanding as of June 14, 2012, whether or not exercised and whether or not vested were substituted by us at that time, with 4,536,949 new Company options based on the
Share Exchange Ratio. The substituted options continue to have, and are subject to, the substantially the same terms and conditions as before, but are convertible into shares of
our common stock, as adjusted given effect to the Share Exchange Ratio. However, we will not be able to grant additional options under the Option Plan.
 
Activity in options during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and related balances outstanding as of that date are reflected below:

 

  
Number of

 Shares   

Weighted
 Average

 Exercise Price   

Weighted
 Average

 Remaining
 Contract

 Term (# years) 
Outstanding at June 30, 2013   2,527,388  $ 0.15   5.85 
Granted   4,910,973         
Exercised   (295,470)         
Forfeited and cancelled   (807,196)         
Outstanding at June 30, 2014   6,335,695  $ 0.19   8.04 
Exercisable at June 30, 2014   3,272,169  $ 0.16   6.98 
 

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in our consolidated statements of operations for the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 includes
compensation expense for stock-based options and awards granted, based on the grant date fair value. For options and awards granted, expenses are amortized under the
straight-line method over the expected vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations has been reduced
for estimated forfeitures of options that are subject to vesting. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates.
 

We allocated stock-based compensation expense included in the consolidated statements of operations for employee option grants and non-employee option grants as
follows:

 
Years ended June 30,  2014   2013  
Research and development  $ 9,000  $ 10,000 
General and administration   230,000   84,000 
Total stock-based compensation expense  $ 239,000  $ 94,000 
 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to calculate the fair value of stock options. The fair value of stock options was measured at the grant date using
the assumptions (annualized percentages) in the table below:
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  2014   2013  
Expected volatility   100%  100%
Risk free interest rate   1.7% to 1.8%  0.8% to 3.0%
Forfeiture rate   17%  5%
Dividend yield   0%  0%
Expected term   5 years   5-10 years 

 
The remaining amount of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense at June 30, 2014 is approximately $418,000.
 
The following table summarizes by price range the number, weighted average exercise price and weighted average life (in years) of options outstanding and the number and
weighted average exercise price of exercisable options as of June 30, 2014.

 
Price Range  Total Outstanding   Total Exercisable  

  

Number
 of

 Shares   
Weighted
 Average   

Number
 of

 Shares   

Weighted
 Average
 Exercise

 Price  

     
Exercise

 Price   Life        
$0.04 - $0.41   6,335,695  $ 0.19   8.04   3,272,169  $ 0.16 
                     
Total   6,335,695  $ 0.19   8.04   3,272,169  $ 0.16 
 
The intrinsic value of exercisable options at June 30, 2014 was approximately $519,000.
 
 NOTE 8 - Warrant Derivative Liability
 

At June 30, 2014 there were 2,907,347 outstanding warrants classified as derivative liabilities due to exercise price re-set provisions included in the underlying warrant
agreements.
 

Warrants classified as derivative liabilities are recorded at their fair values at the issuance date and are revalued at each subsequent reporting date, using a Monte Carlo
simulation model. Warrants were determined to have a fair value per share and aggregate value as of June 30, 2014 and in aggregate value as of June 30, 2013 as follows:

 

  Issued Warrants   

Fair Value Per
 Share $ as of
 June 30, 2014   

Total Fair Value in
 Aggregate $ as of

 June 30, 2014   

Total Fair Value in
 Aggregate $ as of

 June 30, 2013  
             
June 2012 Warrants   562,551  $ 0.20  $ 110,000  $ 27,000 
July 2012 Warrants   338,013  $ 0.20  $ 67,000  $ 17,000 
August 2012 Warrants   120,719  $ 0.20  $ 24,000  $ 6,000 
                 
October 2012 Warrants   48,287  $ 0.20  $ 10,000  $ 3,000 
Advisory Agreement Warrants   1,837,777  $ 0.20  $ 360,000  $ 90,000 

Total   2,907,347      $ 571,000  $ 143,000 
 
Significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the warrants classified as derivative liabilities at June 30, 2014 are summarized below:

 
Risk-free interest rate   1.00% – 0.86%
Expected life (average)   2.96 - 3.17 years 
Stock price (based on prices on valuation date)  $ 0.30 
Exercise price  $ 0.26 
Expected volatility   100%
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NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES
 

Pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC Topic No. 740 Income Taxes (“ASC 740”), deferred income taxes reflect the net effect of (a) temporary difference between
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial purposes and the amounts used for income tax reporting purposes, and (b) net operating loss carryforwards. No net
provision for refundable Federal income taxes has been made in the accompanying statement of operations because no recoverable taxes were paid previously. Significant
components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are shown below. A valuation allowance of approximately $5,105,000 and $2,841,000 has
been established to offset the net deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, due to uncertainties surrounding the Company’s ability to generate future
taxable income to realize these assets.

 
The Company is subject to taxation in the United States and California. The Company’s tax years for 2010 and forward are subject to examination by the United States

and California tax authorities due to the carry forward of unutilized net operating losses and research and development credits (if any).
 
We have incurred losses since inception, so no current income tax provision or benefit has been recorded. Significant components of our net deferred tax assets are

shown in the table below.
 

  Year Ended June 30,  
  2014   2013  
Deferred Tax Assets:         
Net operating loss carryforwards  $    3,584,000  $ 2,727,000 
Stock compensation   1,431,000   - 
Other, net   90,000   114,000 
Net deferred tax assets      5,105,000   2,841,000 
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets    (5,105,000)   (2,841,000)
Net deferred tax assets  $ -  $ - 

 
At June 30, 2014, the Company had unused net operating loss carryovers of approximately $9,003,000 and $8,963,000 that are available to offset future federal and state

taxable income, respectively. These operating losses begin to expire in 2030. Both the federal and state net operating loss carryovers at June 30, 2014 may be adjusted once tax
returns are filed.

 
The provision for income taxes on earnings subject to income taxes differs from the statutory federal rate at June 30, 2014 and 2013, due to the following:

 
  Year Ended June 30,  
  2014   2013  
Federal income taxes at 34%  $ (1,462,000)  $ 120,000 
State income taxes, net   (251,000)   21,000 
Warrants   -   685,000 
Change in the estimated fair market value of derivatives   131,000   (2,283,000)
Other True Ups, if any   (682,000)   69,000 
Change in valuation allowance   2,264,000   1,388,000 
Provision for income taxes  $ -  $ - 
  

As of June 30, 2014, we have not yet completed our analysis of the deferred tax assets relating to federal and state net operating losses. Pursuant to Internal Revenue
Code Sections 382, use of our net operating loss carryforwards could be limited if a cumulative change in ownership of more than 50% occurs within a three-year period. We
plan to complete a Section 382 analysis regarding whether there are limitations of the net operating loss prior to utilizing any net operating losses.
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On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, subsequently codified in ASC 740, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity's

financial, and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributes for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return.
Under ASC 740, the impact of an uncertain income tax position on the income tax return must be recognized at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained
upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained. Additionally, ASC
740 provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. ASC 740 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006.
 

We follow the provisions of ASC 740 relating to uncertain tax provisions and have commenced analyzing filing positions in all of the federal and state jurisdictions
where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. As a result of adoption, no additional tax liabilities have been recorded. There
are no unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2014 or June 30, 2013.
 

The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.
 

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S. and state jurisdictions. The Company’s tax years for 2010 and forward, when filed, will be subject to examination by the
IRS and tax years 2010 and forward are subject to examination by California tax authorities. The Company is currently not under examination by any taxing authorities. 

 
NOTE 10 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
 

We follow FASB ASC Topic No. 820,  Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”) in connection with financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis subsequent to initial recognition.
 

ASC 820 requires that assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:
 
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data
 

The hierarchy noted above requires us to minimize the use of unobservable inputs and to use observable market data, if available, when determining fair value.
 

The fair value of our recorded derivative liabilities is determined based on unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data, which is a level 3
classification. We record derivative liabilities on our balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in our consolidated statements of operations.
 

Following is a summary as of the reporting date of the fair values and applicable level within the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis:
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At June 30, 2014:
 

  

Quoted Prices in
 Active Markets

 for Identical
 Assets   

Significant Other
 Observable Inputs   

Significant
 Unobservable

 Inputs  
  (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3)  
Description:             
Warrant derivative liabilities  $ -  $ -  $ 571,000 
 
At June 30, 2013:

 

  

Quoted Prices in
 Active Markets

 for Identical
 Assets   

Significant Other
 Observable Inputs   

Significant
 Unobservable

 Inputs  
  (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3)  
Description:             
Warrant derivative liabilities  $ -  $ -  $ 143,000 
 

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of our Level 3 financial instruments for the twelve months ended June 30, 2014:
 

Fair value measurements of warrants using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
Balance at June 30, 2013  $ 143,000 
Change in fair value of warrant liability   330,000 
Warrant re-pricing modification charge (Note 7)   98,000 
Balance at June 30, 2014  $ 571,000 

 
The fair value of new warrant derivative liabilities and the change in the estimated fair value of derivative liabilities that we recorded during the twelve months ended

June 30, 2013, related to warrants issued in connection with our private placement transactions and Baytree Advisory Agreement (see Note 7).
 
Quantitative Information about Significant Unobservable Inputs used in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
 

The following table represents the Plan’s level 3 financial instruments at June 30, 2014, the valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of those financial
instruments, and the significant unobservable inputs and the ranges of values for those inputs:
 

Instrument  Fair Value   
Principal Valuation

 Technique  
Significant

 Unobservable Inputs  
Range of Significant

 Input Values  
           
Warrant derivative liabilities  $ 571,000  Monte Carlo simulation  Volatility   100%
             
        Risk free rates   1.00%  –  0.86%
             

        
Probability of subsequent
financing   100%

 
 
NOTE 11 - OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 
Distribution/Manufacturing Agreements

 
During 2009, the Company entered into a cancelable Term Sheet Agreement with a LHV Power Corporation, an entity owned by James Gevarges, one of our major

shareholders. Mr. Gevarges is also the Chief Executive Officer and President of LHV Power. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement, Flux Power was appointed as a distributor
of LHV Power battery charging products allowing Flux Power to sell the products either separately or as part of an energy storage solution. Additionally, Flux Power was
required to develop a microprocessor control board (“MCB”), and the associated software to enable communication between the parties’ respective products which entitles Flux
Power to royalties for any such units sold by the related entity. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement Flux Power may purchase the products at the then current price list for
distributors. Further, under the Term Sheet Agreement, if LHV Power sells its products to a different distributor Flux Power is entitled to a distribution fee equal to 20% of the
gross profits on such sale. This distribution fee and royalties are capped at a total of $200,000. The chargers are not currently under commercial production and therefore no
Distribution and Royalty Fee has been received by Flux Power. On September 1, 2010, with our consent, LHV assigned the Term Sheet Agreement to Current Ways Inc. a
different company that is owned by Mr. Gevarges. The parties are also subject to restrictions on the use and disclosure of confidential information of the other party which
ended April 1, 2013.
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Pursuant to our standard purchase order terms and conditions, during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company purchased approximately $0 and

$29,000, respectively, of charger products from Current Ways, Inc., which was not subject to the distribution fee or royalties referred to above under the Term Sheet Agreement.
 
On August 1, 2009, the Company entered into a Manufacturing Implementation Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with LHV Power pursuant to which Flux

Power granted LHV Power a right of first refusal to manufacture our battery management systems and agreed to pay for any specialized tooling LHV Power may require to
manufacture Flux Power’s battery management systems. The Manufacturing Agreement expired on August 1, 2014. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
the Company paid approximately $0 and $108,000, respectively, to LHV Power pursuant to the Manufacturing Agreement.

 
Sale of Assets

 
In January 2014, our former CEO and current board director, Chris Anthony, purchased various equipment items which had been fully depreciated and for which Flux

Power anticipated no further use for $3,000.
 

Transactions with Epic Boats
 

Effective July 1, 2013, we relocated our principal office and manufacturing to the Epic Boats (an entity founded and controlled by Chris Anthony, our board member
and former Chief Executive Officer) facility in Vista, California. We entered into a month-to-month sublease agreement for shared space with Epic Boats.

 
On March 1, 2014, the landlord terminated its lease with Epic Boats resulting in the termination of our previous sublease agreement with Epic Boats, and entered into a

lease with Flux Power as lessee. On February 25, 2014, Flux power entered into a two-year sublease agreement to rent the property, at $12,130 per month, with an annual
increase of 3%. The agreement provides for monthly payments of approximately 10% of the monthly rental payment. On March 26, 2014, Flux Power as the sub-lesser entered
into a new sublease agreement with Epic Boats as the sub-lessee, whereas Epic Boats agrees to pay Flux Power 10% of facility costs on a month to month basis, for a period no
longer than through the end of the two year lease agreement. We believe our facility at Vista, California provide adequate space for our current and projected needs.

 
The Company paid to, and received from, Epic Boats $37,000 and $7,000 during the year ended June 30, 2014 related to sublease rent expense and income,

respectively.
 
On October 21, 2009, we entered into an agreement with Epic Boats where Epic Boats assigned and transferred to Flux Power the entire right, title, and interest into

products, technology, intellectual property, inventions and all improvements thereof, for several product types. As of this date, Flux Power began selling products to Epic Boats
under Flux Power's standard terms and conditions and has continued to sell products to Epic Boats as a customer. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, Flux
Power sold approximately $3,000 and $61,000, respectively, of product to Epic Boats. The customer deposits balance received from Epic Boats at June 30, 2014 and 2013 is
approximately $136,000 and $138,000, respectively. There were no receivables outstanding from Epic Boats as of June 30, 2014.
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NOTE 12 - CONCENTRATIONS

 
Credit Risk

 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of temporary cash investments and unsecured trade

accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash balances at a financial institution in San Diego, California. Accounts at this institution are secured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. As of June 30, 2014, cash totaled approximately $116,000, which consists of funds held in a non-interest bearing bank deposit account. The Company
has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes that the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk with respect to its cash.

 
Customer Concentrations

 
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, the Company had two major customers that each represented more than 10% of its revenues on an individual basis, or

approximately $129,000 or 36% of the Company’s total revenues, which was a result of sales to two customers, Penguin ASI and Southern States Motive Power, which
represented $67,000 or 18.7% and $62,000 or 17.3% of sales, respectively.

 
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014, the Company had one major customer that represented more than 10% of its revenues on an individual basis, or

approximately $480,000 or 62% of the Company’s total revenues which was a result of the Company recognizing deferred revenue as previously reported. Revenue from our
customer, Wheego Electric Cars (“Wheego”) is recognized on the sell-through method with their customer, which was completed during the Company’s fourth quarter of fiscal
2013.

 
The following table represents customers that are more than 10% of its revenues on an individual basis for the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013: 
 

  2014   2013  
Customers:                 
Penguin ASI  $ 67,000   19% $ -   - 
Southern States Motive Power   62,000   17%  -   - 
Wheego   -   -   480,000   62%
                 
Subtotal   129,000   36%  480,000   62%
                 
Other customers (39)   229,000   64%  292,000   38%
                 
Total revenue  $ 358,000   100% $ 772,000   100%

  
Suppliers/Vendor Concentrations

 
We obtain a limited number of components and supplies included in our products from a small group of suppliers. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 we had

two suppliers who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases, on an individual basis. Purchases for these two suppliers totaled $96,000 for a total of 38.7% of our total
purchases.

 
We obtain a limited number of components and supplies included in our products from a small group of suppliers. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 we had

one supplier who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases. LHV Power accounted for 34% of our total purchases.
 

In the past we have sourced Lithium batteries from a number of suppliers. We realign our battery sourcing periodically to improve consistency, responsiveness, and
quality.
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NOTE 13 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

 
On July 23, 2014, the Company and Institutional Analyst approved a stock option grant of 400,000 options as compensation for services provided, as part of the

contract approved December 18, 2013. Institutional Analyst has provided investor relations services. The non-qualified stock options vested immediately with an exercise price
of $0.06 per share.

 
On July 31, 2014, the board approved a second round of financing for 2014. As such, starting in August 2014, the Company has been conducting a Private Placement

Offering of Units (“September Offering”) that is intended to raise a total of $990,000. As of October 7, 2014, we have sold 1.58 units to 9 accredited investors (“Investors”) for
total gross proceeds of $142,500, pursuant to which we issued 1,583,333 shares of common stocks and warrants to purchase up to 791,667 shares of common stock. The
warrants are exercisable for three years and each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at $0.25 per share. The units were offered only to accredited
investors and the purchase price of each unit was $90,000, with each unit consisting of 1,000,000 shares of common stock and 500,000 warrants. Security Research Associates,
Inc. (“SRA”) served as our placement agent. We paid SRA $6,750 and issued a warrant to purchase 75,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.09 for its
services as our private placement agent. The securities offered and sold have not been registered under the Securities Act. The securities were offered and sold in reliance upon
exemptions from registration pursuant to Rule 506 promulgated thereunder.

 
On August 21, 2014, we borrowed $25,000 under our Bridge Loan Note with Esenjay. This takedown represents our only outstanding debt under our three credit

lines. Total unused credit under these lines is $3,225,000. Esenjay has no obligation to loan funds and the right to not advance funds under these facilities. For the takedown, the
interest rate is 6% and the note matures December 31, 2015.
 

On October 2, 2014, the Company entered in a line of credit agreement in the maximum amount of $500,000 (“Line of Credit”) with Leon Frenkel (“Lender”).
Borrowings under the Line of Credit bears interest at 8% per annum, with all unpaid principal and accrued interest due and payable on September 19, 2016 pursuant to the terms
of the Secured Convertible Promissory Note (the “Note”). In addition, at the election of Lender, all or any portion of the outstanding principal, accrued but unpaid interest
and/or late charges under the Note may be converted into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time at a conversion price of $0.12 per share. Borrowings under the
Note are guaranteed by the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, and are secured by all of the assets of the Company pursuant to the terms of a certain Security
Agreement and Guaranty Agreement dated as of October 2, 2014. Proceeds from the Line of Credit can be solely used for working capital purposes. As of October 7, 2014, the
Company has borrowed approximately $100,000 under the Note. In connection with the Line of Credit, the Company issued a Warrant Certificate to the Lender, entitling the
Lender to purchase a certain number of shares of common stock of the Company equal to the outstanding advances under the Note divided by the Conversion Price, for a term
of five years, and at an exercise price per share equal to $0.20. The Lender has no other material relationship with the Company or its affiliates.

 
The Company has retained Security Research Associates Inc. (“SRA”), on a best-efforts basis, as its placement agent for the placement of debt. The Company will pay

to SRA for services rendered in conjunction with this debt financing in the amount of five percent (5%) of the gross proceeds raised and a warrant for the purchase of the
Common Shares. The number Common Shares subject to the warrant will equal five percent (5%) of the aggregate gross proceeds from the Note received by the Company from
the Lender divided by Twenty Cents ($0.20) per share. The warrant will have a term of three (3) years and will include cashless exercise provisions as well as representations
and warranties that are customary and standard in warrants issued to placement agents or underwriters. The exercise price will equal twenty cents ($0.20). The Company also
agrees to reimburse SRA periodically, upon request, or upon termination of SRA’s services, for SRA’s expenses incurred in connection with SRA’s financial advisory services,
including fees and expenses of legal counsel, travel expenses and printing. All such non-accountable fees and expenses for the debt offering shall not exceed a combined
aggregate amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000).
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Exhibit 10.22

 
FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.

 
UNIT SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

 
THIS UNIT SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and between Flux Power Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”),

and the person or entity executing the Agreement (the “Investor”). In this Agreement, the pronoun “it” means “he, “she,” or “it,” as appropriate.
 
A.           The Company is offering to selected “accredited investors” up to 11 Units for aggregate amount of $990,000, for $90,000 per Unit, or $.09 per common

share (the “Offering”), subject to the terms, conditions, acknowledgements, representations, and warranties stated herein; however, the Company reserves the right to accept
subscriptions for lesser amounts as well as the right to reject in whole or in part subscriptions received during the Offering. Each Unit consists of 990,000 shares of common
stock of the Company (“Common Shares”) at a price per common share of $0.09 and 500,000 warrants (the “Warrants”), with each warrant entitling the holder to purchase one
share of common stock (“Warrant Share”) at an exercise price of $0.25 per share (“Exercise Price”) at any time for a period of up to three (3) years from the issuance date at
which time the Warrant will expire. The Units, Common Shares, Warrants and common stock issuable upon the exercise of the Warrants (the “ Warrant Shares”) are herein
collectively referred to as the “Securities”.

 
B.           The Company and the Investor are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption from registration afforded by Section 4(a)(2) of

the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Rule 506 of Regulation D (“Regulation D”) as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act.

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and

adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Investor agree as follows:
 

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

 
1.          Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings indicated:
 
“Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
 
“Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday, any day which shall be a federal legal holiday in the United States or any day on which banking

institutions in the State of New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close.
 
“Closing” means the closing of the purchase and sale of the Securities pursuant to Section 2.3.
 
“Company” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
 
“Common Shares” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
 
“Common Stock” means common stock of the Company, par value $0.001.
 
“Disclosure Materials” means the SEC Documents and this Agreement.
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“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 
“Investor” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
 
“Investor Suitability Questionnaire” means the Investor Suitability Questionnaire, in substantially set forth herein as “Exhibit A” as completed and executed by the

Investor.
 
“Material Adverse Effect” means (i) a material adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, business, prospects or financial condition of the Company or (ii)

material and adverse impairment of the Company’s ability to perform its obligations under any of the Transaction Documents.
 
“Regulation D” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
 
“Rule 144,” “Rule 415,” and “Rule 424” means Rule 144, Rule 415 and Rule 424, respectively, promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rules

may be amended from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC having substantially the same effect as such Rule.
 
“SEC” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
 
“SEC Documents” has the meanings set forth in Section 3.4.
 
“Securities” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
 
“Securities Act” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
 
“Shares” means shares of the Company’s Common Stock.
 
“Securities” means the Units, Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares.
 
“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the schedules and exhibits attached hereto, including but not limited to the Investor Suitability Questionnaire and the

Warrant Certificate.
 
“Warrant Certificate” means the warrant certificate in the form attached hereto as “Exhibit B.”
 
“Warrants” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
 
“Warrant Shares” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

 
ARTICLE II

PURCHASE AND SALE
 
2.           Offering and Purchase of the Securities.

 
2 . 1           Offering. The Company is offering to sell up to 11 Units for aggregate amount of $990,000(“Offering Amount”), for $90,000 per Unit, or $.09 per

common share with each Unit consisting of 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock and 500,000 Warrants (the “Offering”). The Company has the sole discretion to increase the
Offering Amount. The minimum investment amount in the Units per Investor pursuant to the Offering is $90,000, however, the Company reserves the right to accept
subscriptions for lesser amounts as well as the right to reject in whole or in part subscriptions received during the Offering.
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2 . 2           Subscription. The Investor hereby irrevocably subscribes to purchase from the Company, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement,

that aggregate number of Units for the purchase price set forth on such Investor’s signature page to this Agreement.
 
2 . 3           Investor Deliverables. Promptly upon execution of this Agreement, the Investor agrees to deliver to Company (a) an executed Agreement, (b) a

completed Investor Suitability Questionnaire, attached hereto as Exhibit A to the Company (“Investor Suitability Questionnaire”), and (c) the Aggregate Purchase Price set
forth on such Investor’s signature page to this Agreement in United States dollars and in immediately available funds, by wire transfer to the Company pursuant to the
instructions provided by the Company (collectively, referred to as the “Investor Deliverables”).
 

2 . 4           Acceptance or Rejection of Subscription. The Investor understands and agrees that the Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to reject
this subscription, in whole or in part if (a) the Investor is not an "accredited investor" or otherwise fails to meet the investor suitability requirements as set forth in the Investor
Suitability Questionnaire, (b) fails to deliver payment of the Aggregate Purchase Price, or (c) fails to deliver a completed Investor Deliverables, until there has been notice of
acceptance of the Investor’s subscription. In the event of rejection of this subscription, the Subscriber’s funds (without interest) or, in the event of a partial rejection a check in
the amount of the rejected portion, will be promptly issued to the Investor. Upon acceptance of the subscription by the Company and the Investor Deliverables (“Closing”), the
Company will cause the purchase of the Common Shares to be reflected in the books and record of the Company, and will deliver to the Investor:

 
(a)          an "accepted" Subscription Agreement;
 
(b)          a Warrant Certificate in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, issued in the name of the Investor, pursuant to which the

Investor shall have the right to acquire such number of Warrant Shares equal to that number of Warrant Shares included in the Units purchased by the Investor as set forth on
such Investor’s signature page to this Agreement; and

 
(c)          the stock certificate representing the number of Common Shares represented by the Units purchased by the Investor, as set forth on the

Investor’s signature page to this Agreement.
 
2.5           No Escrow or Minimum Investment Amount. No escrow or minimum investment amount will be used for the offering.

 
ARTICLE III

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF COMPANY
 
3 .           Representations and Warranties of the Company.  Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents and as otherwise stated to the contrary herein, the Company

hereby represents and warrants to the Investor as of Closing that:
 

3 . 1           Authorization. All corporate action on the part of the Company, its officers, directors and shareholders necessary for the authorization, execution
and delivery of this Agreement has been taken. The Company has the requisite corporate power to enter into this Agreement and carry out and perform its obligations under the
terms of this Agreement. The Company will have the requisite corporate power to issue and sell the Units. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the
Company and constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by general equitable
principles and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as
limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions
may be limited by applicable law.
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3.2           Organization, Good Standing and Qualification. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws

of the State of Nevada and has all requisite corporate power and authority to carry on its business as now conducted. The Company is duly qualified to transact business and is
in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the failure so to qualify would have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
3.3           Conflict of Interest. Timothy Collins is the President, CEO and Founder of KleenSpeed Technologies Inc. (“KleenSpeed”). Mr. Collins has invested

and advanced more than one million dollars in and to KleenSpeed during the past six years and is the largest of approximately 50 shareholders. Mr. Collins, as CEO of
KleenSpeed, negotiated with the Company the non-binding letter of intent (LOI) for the proposed acquisition of KleenSpeed by the Company (“Acquisition”) as more fully
described in the Company Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 27, 2013. Mr. Collins is also the President and CEO of Security Research Associates Inc. (“ SRA”) the
investment banking firm that the Company has engaged as the placement agent to assist with its private placement. Mr. Collins therefore will benefit financially from the
compensation derived by SRA from this Offering and other private placements in which SRA assists with, as well as the receipt of shares from the Company if and when the
contemplated Acquisition of KleenSpeed is completed and the recovery of advances he has made to KleenSpeed. Mr. Collins has solicited the advice of other partners in SRA
as to the structure and terms of the Company’s financing. Also, Mr. Collins was appointed Executive Chairman of the Flux Board of Directors on March 13, 2014. He has been
and continues to spend substantial time on the affairs of the Company.

 
3 . 4           Delivery of SEC Documents; Business. The Company has made available to the Investor through the SEC’s EDGAR system, true and complete

copies of the Company’s most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014, and all other
reports filed by the Company pursuant to the Exchange Act since the filing of the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014, and prior to the date hereof (collectively, the
“SEC Documents”). The Company is engaged in all material respects only in the business described in the SEC Documents and the SEC Documents contain a complete and
accurate description of the business of the Company in all material respects.
 

3 .5           No Conflict with Other Instruments. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the issuance and sale of the Securities to be sold
by the Company under this Agreement and the consummation of the actions contemplated by this Agreement will not (a) result in any violation of, be in conflict with, or
constitute a material default under, with or without the passage of time or the giving of notice (i) any provision of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, as amended, or
Bylaws, as amended (or similar governing documents); (ii) any provision of any judgment, arbitration ruling, decree or order to which the Company is a party or by which the
Company is bound; or (iii) any bond, debenture, note or other evidence of indebtedness, or any material lease, contract, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, loan agreement, joint
venture or other agreement, instrument or commitment to which the Company is a party or by which the Company or its properties is bound; or (b) result in the creation or
imposition of any lien, encumbrance, claim, security interest or restriction whatsoever upon any of the properties or assets of the Company or any acceleration of indebtedness
pursuant to any obligation, agreement or condition contained in any bond, debenture, note or any other evidence of indebtedness or any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust or any
other agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which the Company is bound or to which any of the property or assets of the Company is subject.
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3.6           Capitalization. As of June 11, 2014, the authorized capital stock of the Company consists of (a) 145,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which (i)

93,274,112 shares are issued and outstanding, and (b) 33,437,951 shares are reserved for issuance upon the exercise or conversion, as the case may be, of outstanding options,
warrants or other convertible securities; and (c) 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, none of which, are outstanding or reserved for issuance upon the exercise or conversion, as
the case may be, of outstanding options, warrants or other convertible securities. Except as disclosed in the Company SEC Documents and set forth in the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation, as amended and contemplated in the Transaction Documents, there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions, co-sale rights, registration rights, rights
of first refusal or other similar rights contained in the terms governing any outstanding security of the Company that will be triggered by the issuance of the Securities.

 
3 . 7           Valid Issuance of Securities. The Securities will be duly and validly authorized and, when issued and paid for pursuant to this Agreement, will be

validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and shall be free and clear of all encumbrances and restrictions (other than those created by the Investor), except for restrictions on
transfer set forth in this Agreement or imposed by applicable securities laws. The Company has reserved a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock for issuance upon the
exercise of the Warrants, free and clear of all encumbrances and restrictions, except for restrictions on transfer set forth in this Agreement or imposed by applicable securities
laws and except for those created by the Investor.

 
3.8           Litigation. Except as set forth in the Company SEC Documents, there is no action, suit, proceeding nor investigation pending or, to the Company’s

knowledge, currently threatened against the Company that (a) if adversely determined would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect or (b) would be required
to be disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K under the requirements of Item 103 of Regulation S-K. The foregoing includes, without limitation, any action,
suit, proceeding or investigation, pending or threatened, that questions the validity of this Agreement or the right of the Company to enter into such Agreement and perform its
obligations hereunder. The Company is not subject to any injunction, judgment, decree or order of any court, regulatory body, arbitral panel, administrative agency or other
government body.

 
3 . 9           Governmental Consents. No consent, approval, order or authorization of, or registration, qualification, designation, declaration or filing with, any

federal, state, local or provincial governmental authority on the part of the Company is required in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, except for notices required or permitted to be filed with certain state and federal securities commissions, which notices will be filed on a timely basis.

 
3 . 1 0        No Material Changes. Except as disclosed in the Company SEC Documents, , since March 31, 2014, there has not been any material change that

has had a Material Adverse Effect.
 
3 .11        Investment Company. The Company is not an “investment company” or an “affiliated person” of, or “promoter” or “principal underwriter” for an

investment company, within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and will not be deemed an “investment company” as a result of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement.

 
3 .12        No General Solicitation. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has engaged or will engage in

any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within the meaning of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act) in connection with the offer or sale of the
Securities.
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3 . 1 3         Placement Agent. The Company has retained Security Research Associates Inc. (“SRA”), on a best-efforts basis, as its placement agent. The

Company will pay to SRA for services rendered in conjunction with this Offering compensation in the amount of 9% of the gross proceeds raised and a warrant for the purchase
of the Common Shares. The number Common Shares subject to the warrant will equal 9% of the aggregate gross proceeds from the Offering received by the Company from all
investors placed by SRA divided by $0.09 per share. The warrant will have a term of 3 years and will include cashless exercise provisions as well as representations and
warranties that are customary and standard in warrants issued to placement agents or underwriters. The exercise price will equal $0.09. The Company also agrees to reimburse
SRA periodically, upon request, or upon termination of SRA’s services, for SRA’s expenses incurred in connection with SRA’s financial advisory services, including fees and
expenses of legal counsel, travel expenses and printing. All such non-accountable fees and expenses shall not exceed a combined aggregate amount of $15,000.

 
ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF INVESTOR
 

4.          Representations and Warranties of the Investor. The Investor hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows
 
4.1           Organization, Authority If the Investor is an entity, such Investor is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or partnership, association,

joint stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or other entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization
with the requisite corporate, partnership or other power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents and
otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The purchase by such Investor of the Securities hereunder has been, to the extent such Investor is an entity, duly
authorized by all necessary corporate, partnership or other action on the part of such Investor. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by such Investor and
constitutes the valid and binding obligation of such Investor, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by general equitable principles and
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws
relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited
by applicable law.

 
4 . 2           Investment Representations. In connection with the sale and issuance of the Securities, the Investor, for itself and no other Investor, makes the

following representations:
 
(a)          Investment for Own Account. The Investor is acquiring the Securities for its own account, not as nominee or agent, and not with a view to,

or for resale in connection with, any distribution or public offering thereof within the meaning of the Securities Act. The Investor has no present intention of selling, granting
any participation in, or otherwise distributing the Securities. The Investor does not have any contract, undertaking, agreement or arrangement with any person to sell, transfer or
grant participation in any of the Securities to such person or to any third person.

 
( b )          SEC Documents; Disclosure Materials. The Investor has received, read and fully understands the SEC Documents and the Disclosure

Material. The Investor acknowledges that the Investor is basing its decision to invest in the Securities on the Disclosure Material and the exhibits thereto and has relied only on
the information contained in said material and has not relied upon any representations made by any other person. The Investor recognizes that an investment in the Securities
involves substantial risks and is fully cognizant of and understands all of the risk factors related to the purchase of the Securities, including but not limited to, those risks set
forth in the section of the SEC Documents and Disclosure Materials entitled “RISK FACTORS.”
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( c )          Investor Status. At the time such Investor was offered the Securities, it was, at the date hereof it is, and on the date which it exercises any

Warrants it will be an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act or a “qualified institutional buyer” as defined in Rule 144A(a) under the
Securities Act. Such Investor is not a registered broker dealer registered under Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act, or a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority,
Inc. (“FINRA”) or an entity engaged in the business of being a broker dealer. Such Investor is not affiliated with any broker dealer registered under Section 15(a) of the
Exchange Act, or a member of FINRA or an entity engaged in the business of being a broker dealer.

 
( d )          Representations and Reliance. The Investor understands that the Securities are being offered and sold to it in reliance on specific

exemptions from the registration requirements of the United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Investor set forth herein and in the Investor Suitability Questionnaire to determine the
applicability of such exemptions and the suitability of the Investor to acquire the Securities. All information which the Investor has provided to the Company, including but not
limited to all information given herein and in the Investor Suitability Questionnaire or otherwise, concerning itself, investor status, address, residence, financial position and
knowledge and experience of financial and business matters are correct and complete, and that if there should be any material change in such information the Investor will
immediately provide the Company with such information. The Investor will promptly notify the Company of any material fact or circumstance that would cause any of the
foregoing representations to be untrue, incomplete, or misleading.

 
( e )          Restricted Securities. The Investor understands that the Securities the Investor is purchasing are characterized as “restricted securities”

under the federal securities laws inasmuch as they are being acquired from the Company in a transaction not involving a public offering and that under such laws and
regulations such securities may be resold without registration under the Securities Act only in certain limited circumstances. The Investor is familiar with Rule 144, as presently
in effect, and understands the resale limitations imposed thereby and by the Securities Act. The Investor also acknowledges that the Company was a former “shell company” (as
defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act) and as such the Investor understands Rule 144 is not currently available for the sale of the Securities and may never be so
available.

 
( f )          Transfer Restrictions; Legends. The Investor understands that (i) the Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act; (ii) the

Securities are being offered and sold pursuant to an exemption from registration, based in part upon the Company’s reliance upon the statements and representations made by
the Investor, and that the Securities must be held by the Investor indefinitely, and that the Investor must, therefore, bear the economic risk of such investment indefinitely,
unless a subsequent disposition thereof is registered under the Securities Act or is exempt from such registration; and (iii) each Certificate representing the Securities will be
endorsed with a legend substantially in the following form until the earlier of (1) such date as the Securities have been registered for resale by the Investor or (2) the date the
Securities are eligible for sale under Rule 144.
 
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ SECURITIES ACT”),
OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATES. THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND
MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND THE APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS,
PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION OR EXEMPTION THEREFROM. UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT, THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL IN FORM AND SUBSTANCE SATISFACTORY TO THE
ISSUER TO THE EFFECT THAT ANY PROPOSED TRANSFER OR RESALE IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS.
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( g )          No Public Market. The Investor understands and acknowledges that although the Company is currently traded on the OTC, no public

market now exists for any of the Securities and that the Company has made no assurances that a public market will ever exist for the Securities.
 
( h )          No Transfer. The Investor covenants not to dispose of any of the Securities other than in conjunction with an effective registration

statement under the Securities Act or in compliance with Rule 144 or pursuant to another exemption from registration or to an entity affiliated with the Investor and other than in
compliance with the applicable securities regulations laws of any state.

 
( i )          Investment Experience. Investor acknowledges that the Investor is able to bear the economic risk of the Investor’s investment, including

the complete loss thereof. The Investor has a preexisting personal or business relationship with the Company or one or more of its officers, directors or other persons in control
of the Company, and the Investor has such knowledge and experience in financial or business matters that it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in the
Securities.

 
(j)          Financial Sophistication; Due Diligence. The Investor has such knowledge and experience in financial or business matters that it is capable

of evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in connection with the transactions contemplated in this Agreement. Such Investor has, in connection with its decision to
purchase the Securities, relied only upon the representations and warranties contained herein and the information contained in the Company’s SEC Documents. Further, the
Investor has had such opportunity to obtain additional information and to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the Company, concerning the terms and conditions of the
investment and the business and affairs of the Company, as the Investor considers necessary in order to form an investment decision.

 
(k)          General Solicitation. The Investor is not purchasing the Securities as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or other communication

regarding the Securities published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or broadcast over the television or radio or presented at any seminar or any other general
solicitation or general advertisement. Prior to the time that the Investor was first contacted by the Company or either of the Agents such Investor had a pre-existing and
substantial relationship with the Company or one of the Agents. The Investor will not issue any press release or other public statement with respect to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Company. Other than to other parties to this Agreement, the Investor has maintained and will continue
to maintain the confidentiality of all disclosures made to Investor in connection with this transaction, including the existence and terms of this transaction.

 
4 . 3           No Investment, Tax or Legal Advice.  The Investor understands that nothing in the Company SEC Documents, this Agreement, or any other

materials presented to the Investor in connection with the purchase and sale of the Securities constitutes legal, tax or investment advice. The Investor has consulted such legal,
tax and investment advisors as it, in its sole discretion, has deemed necessary or appropriate in connection with its purchase of Securities.
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4.4           Disclosure of Information. The Investor understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or governmental agency

has passed upon or made any recommendation or endorsement of the Securities. The Investor has reviewed the documents publicly filed by the Company with the SEC and has
read and understands the risk factors disclosed therein. The Investor has received all the information it considers necessary or appropriate for deciding whether to purchase the
Securities. The Investor is solely responsible for conducting its own due diligence investigation of the Company.

 
4 . 5           Additional Acknowledgement. The Investor acknowledges that it has independently evaluated the merits of the transactions contemplated by this

Agreement, that it has independently determined to enter into the transactions contemplated hereby, that it is not relying on any advice from or evaluation by any other person.
The Investor acknowledges that, if it is a client of an investment advisor registered with the SEC, the Investor has relied on such investment advisor in making its decision to
purchase Securities pursuant hereto.

 
4.6           Subscription Rejection Right. The Investor acknowledges that the Company reserves the right to reject any subscription, to accept any subscription

in part only, or to prorate subscriptions, to negotiate any checks or other tenders of payment for discrepant amounts and to refund the excess to the Investor if (a) the Investor is
not an "accredited investor" or otherwise fails to meet the investor suitability requirements as set forth in the Investor Suitability Questionnaire, (b) fails to deliver payment of
the purchase price, or (c) fails to deliver the completed Investor Deliverables substantially in the form as reasonably acceptable to the Company.

 
4.7           No Short Position As of the date hereof, and from the date hereof through the date of the Closing, the Investor acknowledges and agrees that it does

not and will not (between the date hereof and the date of the Closing) engage in any short sale of the Company’s voting stock or any other type of hedging transaction involving
the Company’s securities (including, without limitation, depositing shares of the Company’s securities with a brokerage firm where such securities are made available by the
broker to other customers of the firm for purposes of hedging or short selling the Company’s securities).

 
ARTICLE V

ADDITIONAL COVENANTS
 
5.           Additional Covenants.

 
5 . 1           Confidential Information. The Investor covenants that it will maintain in confidence the receipt and content of any information provided in

connection with this Agreement until such information (a) becomes generally publicly available other than through a violation of this provision by the Investor or its agents or
(b) is required to be disclosed in legal proceedings (such as by deposition, interrogatory, request for documents, subpoena, civil investigation demand, filing with any
governmental authority or similar process); provided, however, that before making any disclosure in reliance on this Section 5.1, the Investor will give the Company at least 15
days prior written notice (or such shorter period as required by law) specifying the circumstances giving rise thereto and the Investor will furnish only that portion of the non-
public information which is legally required and will exercise its best efforts to ensure that confidential treatment will be accorded any non-public information so furnished;
provided, further, that notwithstanding, the Investor’s agreement to keep such information confidential, the Investor makes no such acknowledgement that any such information
is material, non-public information.
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5 .2           Transfer Restrictions. The Investor covenants that the Securities will only be disposed of pursuant to an effective registration statement under, and

in compliance with the requirements of, the Securities Act or pursuant to an available exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, and in compliance with
any applicable state securities laws. In connection with any transfer of Securities other than pursuant to an effective registration statement or to the Company, or at such time
that the Securities may be sold without the requirement to be in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) and otherwise without restriction or limitation pursuant to Rule 144, the
Company may require the transferor to provide to the Company an opinion of counsel selected by the transferor, the form and substance of which opinion shall be reasonably
satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require registration under the Securities Act. The Investor agrees to the imprinting of the restrictive legend
in substantially the form set forth in Section 4.2(f).
 

5.3           KleenSpeed Acquisition. The Company agrees to use its best efforts to negotiate and consummate the proposed Acquisition with KleenSpeed.
 

ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS

 
6.           Miscellaneous.

 
6 . 1           Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, without regard to the

choice of law provisions thereof, and the federal laws of the United States.
 
6.2           Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the

successors, assigns, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties hereto.
 
6 . 3           Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the exhibits hereto, and the other documents delivered pursuant hereto, constitute the full and entire

understanding and agreement among the parties with regard to the subjects hereof and no party shall be liable or bound to any other party in any manner by any representations,
warranties, covenants, or agreements except as specifically set forth herein or therein. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer upon any party, other
than the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement, except as expressly
provided herein.

 
6.4           Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, it shall to the extent practicable, be modified so

as to make it valid, legal and enforceable and to retain as nearly as practicable the intent of the parties, and the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

 
6 . 5           Amendment and Waiver. Except as otherwise provided herein, any term of this Agreement may be amended, modified, supplemented and the

observance of any term of this Agreement may be waived (either generally or in a particular instance, either retroactively or prospectively, and either for a specified period of
time or indefinitely), with the written consent of the Company and the holders of a majority of the Common Shares sold in this Offering. Any amendment or waiver effected in
accordance with this paragraph will be binding upon each holder of any Securities purchased under this Agreement, each future holder of the Securities, and the Company.

 
6 . 6           Fees and Expenses. Except as otherwise set forth herein, the Company and the Investor shall bear their own expenses and legal fees incurred on

their behalf with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. Each party hereby agrees to indemnify and to hold harmless of and from any liability the
other party for any commission or compensation in the nature of a finder’s fee to any broker or other person or firm (and the costs and expenses of defending against such
liability or asserted liability) for which such indemnifying party or any of its employees or representatives are responsible.
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6 . 7           Notices. All notices and other communications given or made pursuant to this Warrant Certificate shall be in writing and shall be deemed

effectively given upon the earlier of actual receipt or (i) personal delivery to the party to be notified, (ii) when sent, if sent by electronic mail or facsimile during normal business
hours of the recipient, and if not sent during normal business hours, then on the recipient’s next Business Day, (iii) five (5) days after having been sent by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (iv) one (1) Business Day after deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier, freight prepaid, specifying next
Business Day delivery, with written verification of receipt. All communications shall be sent to the respective parties at the address indicated for such party in the Purchase
Agreement, or at such other address as such party may designate by 10 days advance written notice to the other party given in the foregoing manner:

 
if to the Company, to:
 
Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
985 Poinsettia Avenue
Vista, California 92081
Fax (760) 741-3535
Attn: President
 
if to the Investor, at its address on the signature page to this Agreement.

 
6 .8           Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements. Notwithstanding any investigation made by any party to this Agreement or by any of the

Agents, all covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made by the Company and the Investor herein shall survive the execution of this Agreement, the delivery to
the Investor of the Securities being purchased and the payment therefor, and a party’s reliance on such representations and warranties shall not be affected by any investigation
made by such party or any information developed thereby.
 

6 . 9           Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile signature and in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE

 
In addition to the foregoing, Subscriber hereby certifies that it (a) agrees to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, (b) meets the suitability standards set forth

in this Agreement, and (c) is a resident of the state and jurisdiction indicated below.
 

 Name of Investor:
  
 By:  
  Name
  Title:
 Address:  
 
 State of Principal Residence:  
 
 State of Incorporation/Organization:
 
 EIN/Social Security Number:  
 
 Telephone No.:  
 
 Facsimile No.:  
 
 Email Address:  
 
 Number of Units:  
 
 Aggregate Purchase Price :  
  
Delivery Instructions (if different than above):
 
c/o:   
 
Address:   
 
Telephone No.:   
 
Facsimile No. :   
 
Other Special Instructions:   
 

 



 

 
SUBSCRIPTION ACCEPTED

 
Date:    FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.

 
  By:  
    
  Name: Ronald Dutt
    
  Title: Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer

  

 



 

 
EXHIBIT A

 
Investor Suitability Questionnaire

 
(Not Included)

 

 



 

 
EXHIBIT B

 
Form of Warrant Certificate

 

 



 

 
THIS WARRANT CERTIFICATE AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE HEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”) OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE SOLD,
TRANSFERRED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND UNDER APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR THE ISSUER SHALL HAVE RECEIVED AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO
THE ISSUER THAT REGISTRATION OF SUCH SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IS NOT REQUIRED.

 
FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.

  
WARRANT CERTIFICATE

 
No.: W-___  Number of Warrants:        
________
Original Date of Issuance: _____ __, 2014
 

THIS WARRANT CERTIFICATE certifies that for value received, _________ or its registered assigns (“Holder”) is entitled to subscribe for and purchase, during the
Term (as hereinafter defined), the number of warrants specified above, each of which entitles the holder thereof to purchase during the term, one fully paid and non-assessable
share of common stock, $.001 par value per share, of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., (the “Issuer”), at an exercise price per share equal to $0.25 (the “Warrant Price”), as may be
adjusted,, subject, however, to the provisions and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. Capitalized terms used in this Warrant Certificate (this “ Warrant” or
“Warrant Certificate”) and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings specified in Section 6 hereof.

 
1.           Term. The term of this Warrant Certificate shall commence on the Original Issue Date and shall expire at 6:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on the third anniversary of

the Original Issue Date (such period being the “Term”).
 
2.           Method of Exercise; Payment; Issuance of New Warrant Certificate; Transfer and Exchange.

 
(a)          Time of Exercise. The purchase rights represented by this Warrant Certificate may be exercised at anytime during the Term.
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( b )          Method of Exercise. Each Warrant shall entitle the Holder to purchase one share of common stock of the Issuer at the Warrant Price. The Holder

hereof may exercise the Warrants, in whole or in part, by the surrender of the Warrant Certificate (with the exercise form attached hereto duly executed) at the principal office
of the Issuer, and by the payment to the Issuer of an amount of consideration therefor equal to the Warrant Price in effect on the date of such exercise multiplied by the number
of shares of Warrant Stock with respect to which the Warrant Certificate is then being exercised, payable at such Holder’s election by certified or official bank check or by wire
transfer to an account designated by the Issuer.

 
( c )          Issuance of Stock Certificates. In the event of any exercise of the Warrants in accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions hereof,

certificates for the shares of Warrant Stock so purchased shall be dated the date of such exercise and delivered to the Holder hereof within a reasonable time
 
(d )          Transferability of Warrant. Subject to Section 2(f) hereof, the Warrants may be transferred by a Holder, in whole or in part, without the consent of

the Issuer. If transferred pursuant to this paragraph, the Warrants may be transferred on the books of the Issuer by the Holder hereof in person or by duly authorized attorney,
upon surrender of this Warrant Certificate at the principal office of the Issuer, properly endorsed (by the Holder executing an assignment in the form attached here to) and upon
payment of any necessary transfer tax or other governmental charge imposed upon such transfer. This Warrant Certificate is exchangeable at the principal office of the Issuer for
Warrants to purchase the same aggregate number of shares of Warrant Stock, each new Warrant to represent the right to purchase such number of shares of Warrant Stock as the
Holder hereof shall designate at the time of such exchange. All Warrants issued on transfers or exchanges shall be dated the Original Issue Date and shall be identical with this
Warrant Certificate except as to the number of shares of Warrant Stock issuable pursuant thereto.

 
(e)          Compliance with Securities Laws.

 
(i)          The Holder of this Warrant Certificate, by acceptance hereof, acknowledges that the Warrants and the shares of Warrant Stock to be issued

upon exercise hereof are being acquired solely for the Holder’s own account and not as a nominee for any other party, and for investment, and agrees that the Holder will not
acquire the Warrant Stock, offer, sell or otherwise dispose of this Warrant or any shares of Warrant Stock to be issued upon exercise hereof except pursuant to an effective
registration statement, or an exemption from registration, under the Securities Act and any applicable state securities laws.

 
(ii)         This Warrant Certificate and all certificates representing shares of Warrant Stock issued upon exercise hereof shall be stamped or

imprinted with a legend in substantially the following form:
 
THIS WARRANT CERTIFICATE, THE WARRANTS, AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE HEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”) OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND
MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND UNDER
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR THE ISSUER SHALL HAVE RECEIVED AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY
SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT REGISTRATION OF SUCH SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND UNDER THE
PROVISIONS OF APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IS NOT REQUIRED.
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( f )          Loss, Theft, Destruction of Warrants. Upon receipt of evidence satisfactory to the Issuer of the ownership of and the loss, theft, destruction or

mutilation of any Warrant and, in the case of any such loss, theft or destruction, upon receipt of indemnity or security satisfactory to the Issuer or, in the case of any such
mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of such Warrant, the Issuer will make and deliver, in lieu of such lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant, a new Warrant of like
tenor and representing the right to purchase the same number of shares of Warrant Stock.

 
3 .          Adjustment of Warrant Price and Number of Shares Issuable Upon Exercise.  The Warrant Price and the Warrant Share Number shall be subject to adjustment

from time to time as set forth in this Section 3. The Issuer shall give the Holder notice of any event described below that requires an adjustment pursuant to this Section 3 in
accordance with the notice provisions set forth in Section 4.

 
(a)          Recapitalization, Reorganization, Reclassification, Consolidation, Merger or Sale.

 
(i)          In case the Issuer after the Original Issue Date shall do any of the following (each, a “Triggering Event”): (A) consolidate or merge with or

into any other Person and the Issuer shall not be the continuing or surviving corporation of such consolidation or merger, or (B) permit any other Person to consolidate with or
merge into the Issuer and the Issuer shall be the continuing or surviving Person but, in connection with such consolidation or merger, any Capital Stock of the Issuer shall be
changed into or exchanged for Securities of any other Person or cash or any other property, or (C) transfer all or substantially all of its properties or assets to any other Person,
or (D) effect a capital reorganization or reclassification of its Capital Stock, then, and in the case of each such Triggering Event, proper provision shall be made to the Warrant
Price and the number of shares of Warrant Stock that may be purchased upon exercise of this Warrant Certificate so that, upon the basis and the terms and in the manner
provided in this Warrant Certificate the Holder of this Warrant Certificate shall be entitled upon the exercise hereof at any time after the consummation of such Triggering
Event, to the extent the Warrants are not exercised prior to such Triggering Event, to receive at the Warrant Price as adjusted to take into account the consummation of such
Triggering Event, in lieu of the Warrant Stock issuable upon such exercise of the Warrants prior to such Triggering Event, the Securities, cash and property to which such
Holder would have been entitled upon the consummation of such Triggering Event if such Holder had exercised the rights represented by this Warrant Certificate immediately
prior thereto subject to adjustments (subsequent to such corporate action) as nearly equivalent as possible to the adjustments provided for elsewhere in this Section 3. Upon the
occurrence of a Triggering Event, the Issuer shall notify the Holder in writing of such Triggering Event and provide the calculations in determining the amount of issuable
Securities, cash or property issuable upon exercise of the new warrant and the adjusted Warrant Price. Upon the Holder’s request, the continuing or surviving corporation as a
result of such Triggering Event shall issue to the Holder a new warrant of like tenor evidencing the right to purchase the adjusted amount of Securities, cash or property and the
adjusted Warrant Price pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Section 3(a)(i).

 
(b)           Stock Dividends, Subdivisions and Combinations. If at any time the Issuer shall:

 
(i)          make or issue or set a record date for the holders of the Common Stock for the purpose of entitling them to receive a dividend payable in,

or other distribution of, shares of Common Stock,
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(ii)         subdivide its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger number of shares of Common Stock, or
 
(iii)        combine its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares of Common Stock,

 
then (A) the number of shares of Warrant Stock for which this Warrant Certificate is exercisable immediately after the occurrence of any such event shall be

adjusted to equal the number of shares of Warrant Stock which a record holder of the same number of shares of Warrant Stock for which this Warrant Certificate is exercisable
immediately prior to the occurrence of such event would own or be entitled to receive after the happening of such event, and (B) the Warrant Price then in effect shall be
adjusted to equal (1) the Warrant Price then in effect multiplied by the number of shares of Warrant Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable immediately prior to the
adjustment divided by (2) the number of shares of Warrant Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable immediately after such adjustment.

 
4.          Notice of Adjustments. Whenever the Warrant Price or Warrant Share Number is adjusted pursuant to Section 3 hereof (for purposes of this Section 4, each an

“Adjustment”), the Issuer shall cause its Chief Financial Officer to prepare and execute a certificate setting forth, in reasonable detail, the event requiring the Adjustment, the
amount of the Adjustment, the method by which such Adjustment was calculated (including a description of the basis on which the Board made any determination hereunder),
and the Warrant Price and Warrant Share Number after giving effect to such Adjustment, and shall cause copies of such certificate to be delivered to the Holder of this Warrant
Certificate promptly after each Adjustment.

 
5 .          Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Warrant Stock will be issued in connection with any exercise hereof, but in lieu of such fractional shares, the Issuer

shall round the number of shares to be issued upon exercise up to the nearest whole number of shares.
 
6.          Definitions. For the purposes of this Warrant Certificate, the following terms have the following meanings:
 
“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Issuer.
 
“Capital Stock” means and includes (i) any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents of or interests in (however designated) corporate stock,

including, without limitation, shares of preferred or preference stock, (ii) all partnership interests (whether general or limited) in any Person which is a partnership, (iii) all
membership interests or limited liability company interests in any limited liability company, and (iv) all equity or ownership interests in any Person of any other type.

 
“Common Stock” means the common stock, $0.001 par value per share, of the Issuer and any other Capital Stock into which such stock may hereafter be changed.
 
“Holders” mean the Persons who shall from time to time own any Warrant. The term “Holder” means one of the Holders.
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“Issuer” means Flux Power Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation, and its successors.
 
“Original Issue Date” means date set forth on face of this Warrant Certificate.
 
“Offering” means the Issuer’s offering to sell up to 11 Units for aggregate amount of $990,000 (which amount may be increased at sole discretion of Issuer), for

$90,000 per Unit, or $.09 per common share with each Unit consisting of 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock and 500,000 Warrants.
 
“Person” means an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, joint venture,

Governmental Authority or other entity of whatever nature.
 
“Purchase Agreement” means the Unit Subscription Agreement dated as of _________________, 2014 between the Issuer and the Investor.
 
“Securities” means any debt or equity securities of any Person, whether now or hereafter authorized, any instrument convertible into or exchangeable for Securities or

a Security, and any option, warrant or other right to purchase or acquire any Security. “Security” means one of the Securities.
 
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any similar federal statute then in effect.
 
“Term” has the meaning specified in Section 1 hereof.
 
“Warrants” means the Warrants issued and sold pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, including, without limitation, this Warrant Certificate, and any other warrants of

like tenor issued in substitution or exchange for any thereof pursuant to the provisions of Section 2 hereof or of any of such other Warrants.
 
“Warrant Price” initially means $0.25 per share, as such price may be adjusted from time to time as shall result from the adjustments specified in this Warrant

Certificate, including Section 3 hereto.
 
“Warrant Share Number” means at any time the aggregate number of shares of Warrant Stock which may at such time be purchased upon exercise of this Warrant

Certificate, after giving effect to all prior adjustments and increases to such number made or required to be made under the terms hereof.
 
“Warrant Stock” means Common Stock issued or issuable upon exercise of any Warrant or Warrants or otherwise issuable pursuant to any Warrant or Warrants.
 
7 .          Amendment and Waiver. Any term, covenant, agreement or condition in this Warrant Certificate may be amended or waived (either generally or in a

particular instance and either retroactively or prospectively) only with the written consent of the Issuer and the Holder.
 
8.          Governing Law. This Warrant Certificate shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Nevada, without giving effect

to any of the conflicts of law principles which would result in the application of the substantive law of another jurisdiction. This Warrant Certificate shall not be interpreted or
construed with any presumption against the party causing this Warrant Certificate to be drafted.
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9 .          Notices. All notices and other communications given or made pursuant to this Warrant Certificate shall be in writing and shall be deemed effectively given

upon the earlier of actual receipt or: (i) personal delivery to the party to be notified, (ii) when sent, if sent by electronic mail or facsimile during normal business hours of the
recipient, and if not sent during normal business hours, then on the recipient’s next business day, (iii) five (5) days after having been sent by registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (iv) one (1) business day after deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier, freight prepaid, specifying next business day
delivery, with written verification of receipt. All communications shall be sent to the respective parties at the address indicated for such party in the Purchase Agreement, or at
such other address as such party may designate by 10 days advance written notice to the other party given in the foregoing manner.

 
10.         Successors and Assigns. This Warrant Certificate and the rights evidenced hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns

of the Issuer, the Holder hereof and (to the extent provided herein) the holders of Warrant Stock issued pursuant hereto, and shall be enforceable by any such Holder or holder
of Warrant Stock.

 
11.         Modification and Severability. If, in any action before any court or agency legally empowered to enforce any provision contained herein, any provision hereof

is found to be unenforceable, then such provision shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to make it enforceable by such court or agency. If any such provision is not
enforceable as set forth in the preceding sentence, the unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the other provisions of this Warrant Certificate, but this Warrant
Certificate shall be construed as if such unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

 
1 2 .         Titles and Subtitles. The titles and subtitles used in this Warrant Certificate are used for convenience only and are not to be considered in construing or

interpreting this Warrant Certificate.
 
1 3 .         Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for any delays or failures in performance resulting from acts beyond its reasonable control including, without

limitation, acts of God, terrorist acts, shortage of supply, breakdowns or malfunctions, interruptions or malfunction of computer facilities, or loss of data due to power failures or
mechanical difficulties with information storage or retrieval systems, labor difficulties, war, or civil unrest.

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has executed this Warrant Certificate as of the day and year first above written.
 

 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
  
 By:  
  Name: Ronald Dutt
  Title: Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer
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EXERCISE FORM

WARRANT
FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.

 
The undersigned                                         , pursuant to the provisions of the within Warrant Certificate (the “Warrant”), hereby elects to exercise                                 

warrants to purchase                                   shares of Common Stock of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. covered by the Warrant.
 
Number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned or deemed beneficially owned by the Holder on the date of Exercise:
 
Holder represents and warrants that Holder is acquiring the Warrant Stock pursuant to an effective registration statement, or an exemption from registration, under the Securities
Act and any applicable state securities laws.
 
The undersigned intends that payment of the Warrant Price shall be made as a cash exercise.
 
Dated:    Signature  
   
  Print  
  Name  
  Address  
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ASSIGNMENT

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto    ,              warrants under Warrant Certificate No. ____ and all rights evidenced thereby and does
irrevocably constitute and appoint _____________, attorney, to transfer the said Warrant on the books of the within named corporation.
 
Dated:    Signature  
     
   Address  
     
     
 

FOR USE BY THE ISSUER ONLY:
 
This Warrant Certificate No. W-         cancelled (or transferred or exchanged) this _____ day of                                           ,                                                shares of

Common Stock issued therefor in the name of                      , Warrant No. W-             issued for                          shares of Common Stock in the name of                                       .
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Exhibit 31.1

 
CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
 

I, Ronald F. Dutt, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of

the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of

operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)

and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:
 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information

relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

 
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s

fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

 
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and

the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the

Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: October 7, 2014  
  
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt  
 Name:  Ronald F. Dutt  
 Title:  Chief Executive Officer  
 (Principal Executive Officer)  

 

 

 



 
Exhibit 31.2

 
CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
 

I, Ronald F. Dutt, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of

the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of

operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)

and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:
 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information

relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

 
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s

fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

 
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and

the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the

Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: October 7, 2014  
  
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt  
 Name:  Ronald F. Dutt  
 Title:  Interim Chief Financial Officer  
 (Principal Financial Officer)  

 

 



 
Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2014 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the capacities and on the date indicated below, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge:

 
1.         The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
2.          The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

 
Date: October 7, 2014  
  
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt  
 Name:  Ronald F. Dutt  
 Title:  Chief Executive Officer  
  (Principal Executive Officer)  

 

 

 



 
Exhibit 32.2

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2014 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the capacities and on the date indicated below, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge:

 
1.         The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
2.          The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

  
Date: October 7, 2014  
  
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt  
 Name:  Ronald F. Dutt  
 Title:   Interim Chief Financial Officer  
  (Principal Financial Officer)  

 

 

 


